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.;"fi,“'{ler very uncomfortable and gave her a long kiss on the cheek from which she was visibly
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TO: ROBEI‘(‘; N. AEBERSOLD, INTERIM PRESIDENT

FROM:  TOMMIE CARR, COORDINATOR OF MULT}
DIRECTOR OF AFFIRMATIVE ACTION | RECEIVED
DATE: MARCH 14, 2005
_ . FEB 05 2018
RE: SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT OF ' 5
: P RIVERAITY SRQUITY
. SUMMARY OF COMPLAINT:

Complainant - a student, alleged that Professor Josh Perlstein subjected her
to sexual harassment on or about April 30, 2004, Specifically, complainant charged that
on that day, Professor Perlstein made several unwelcome comments to her, which made

- ‘shaken. Further, complainant alleged that Professor Perlstein invited her to his playon
the following week and suggested that they go to dinner after the play to which
complainant claimed that she gave a noncommittal reply. As complainant and Professor
Perlstein departed, complainant stated that Professor Perlstein hugged her goodbye and as
he hugged her, he allegedly grabbed complainant’s butt and squeezed it. Complainant
charged that Professor Perlstein e-mailed her Iater in the day regarding their earlier
meeting and despits her objections, Professor Perlstein continued to gend complainant
nnwélcome e-mails until complainant’s parents e-mailed him warning him not to talk to
complainant any farther and not to approach her on campus again,

While attending a show a fow days later, complainaut alleged that Professor Perlstein,
immediately came over to her, touched her hand, and apologized. n addition,
complainant charged that Professor Perlstein approached her after the show in an attempt
to allegedly “talk together about what happened.”

SUMMARY OF INVESTIGATION: -

The Offico of Multicultural Affuirs/Affirmative Action conducted 2 fiull investigation of
‘complainant’s allegations to determine whether Professor Perlstein sexually harassed
complainant, in violation of Central Connecticut State University’s Sexual Harassment

Policy. '

Complainant reported the allegations of sexual harassment to the Office of Multicultural

Affairs/Affirmative Action on September 29, 2004, She was igitially interviewed at

length on said date and interviewed again on January 14, 2005 regarding Professor

Pel‘lsté,ﬁ:’s response to the allegations. Complainant wag provided with copies of the

University’s Sexual Harassment Policy as well as the Discrimination Complaint

Procedures. She filed a written statement of charges on October 13, 2004. Professor

, Perlstein was notified of the complaint on November 9,-2004 and provided a copy.ofthe ™ .~ "7 LT
“allegations on November'11, 2004, in addition to 2 copy of the 'Un'ivers_it)_r-’_ss Sexwal - - .. .ol
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Harassment Policy anl.. e Discrimination Complaint Procedures. He wag subsequently
interviewed on November 30, 2004 with his union representative, Caryl Greatorex
present. Professor Perlstein provided & written response at that time, . .

Neither complainant nor Professor Perlstein identified any individuals who had first hand
knowledge of this matter, Therefore, no other, individuals were interviewed. The
investigation was concluded on J anuary 31, 2005. .

FINDINGS:

At all times pertinent to the compla f, complainant was a student at the University and
Professor Perlstein was a professor in the University’s Theatre Department. Complainant
had been a student in Professor Perlstein’s iﬁlas‘s approximatelyiilililycars prior
to the alleged incident. All students in the class, including complainant, developed a very
friendly, close working relationship with Professor Perlstein as well as with each other,

On or about April 23, 2004, Proféssor Perlstein attended a musica] that complainant il

. Professor Perlstein congratulated complainant on the show. Complainant and
Professor Perlstein agreed to get together for “catching up.” Complainant, later, e-mailed
Professor Perlstein to arrange a day and time for them to get together. N

On or about April 30, 2004, complainant met Professor Petlstein as planned. They
agreed to go to the park to talk. The conversation initially began by talking about what
‘was happening in their lives, Complainant talked about her classes and her plans for after
graduation. Professor Perlstein discussed the stressful things that were happening in his
life. Professor Perlstein alleged that as he spoke, complainant began mbbing his back in

as Professor Petlstein talked about his life after college and his current career, he
indicated that he kept returning to Conmesticut. Complainant responded that it must be
his destiny to which Professor Perlstein answered, “I think my destiny might be sitfing
right here on the bench with me...but my destiny’s not Connecticnt.” In addition,
complainant confended that Professor Perlstein went on to say how amazing it had been
 to have complainant in his{iliclass and what a rare and talented person she was, He
then said that on the day that they hugged after her play, on or about April 23, 2004, “the
whole room swirled around me.” Thess comments made complainant uncomfortable and
she perceived them ag “hitting “ on her as well as unwelcome. However, she did not
express this to Professor Perlstein. After several additional comments, Professor
Perlstein kissed complainant on the cheek. Complainant was shocked and mmable to
object, but did make an exclamation, Professor Pexlstein confirmed that complainant
appeared shocked by the kiss. Jn response to complainant’s question about his upcoming
play, she claimed that Professor Perlstein told her fo “come on Tuesday night” and they
would “go out for dinner afterwards.” Complainant stated that she made a noncommittal

response.,
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Complainant asserted wwat as she and Professor Perlstein returned to campus he tried to

hold her hand, but coniplainant made her hand go limp and Professor Perlstein took his
hand away. Professor Perlstein affirmed that he indicated to complainant that he had

Later that day, Professor Perlstein gent complainant an e-mail indicating that he thought
the earlier meeting wag “splendid” and to “forget the troubles. .. today we had none.”
Complainant emphatically replied ‘no’ to the e-mail. Professor Perlstein’s response
questioned complainant about hey ‘no’ reply. He apologized and said he thought that he
should not putsne another meeting, but suggested that they meet the next day, in case he
had misread her intentiong, In complainant’s Tesponse, she clearly described what she
felt about the meeting earlier that day, including her inability to express her feelings at
that time, Complainant conchyded this e-mail with “Don’t talk to me again.” Despite thig
clear statement, Professor Perlstein sent another e-mai] to complainant stating that he
Tegretted nothing but her rage and folt that all was not lost, Complainant did not reply to
the e-mail. Then, Professor Perlstein sent another e-mai to complainant in which he
stated that he realized that he “violated 4 frust” and that he considered her “in other
ways,” even for a moment, Complainant’s father ¢-mailed Professor Perlstein a warning
to ceage all contact with complainant. Professor Perlstein sent an apology to
complainant’s father and assured him that he would cease contact with complainant

immediately,

On or about May 5, 2004, complainant attended a play directed by Professor Perlstein,
Complainant alleged that when she arrived with a group of fiiends, Professor Perlstein
immediately carire over to her, brushed her arm, and apologized, However, Professor
Perlstein denied that he made a first contact with complainant. He contended that
complainant initiated a brief conversation by congratulating him on hig play and he
JInterpreted her actions ag g, sign that they could clarify any misunderstandings that had
occurred. Complainant acknowledged that she did congratulate Professor Perlstein ag the
group congratulated him in order not to alert her companions to what had transpired
between she and Professor Perlstein, but did not intend to begin any conversation
regarding the events that had occurred, Since that time, complainant and Professor
Perlstein have had no firther contact, . : '
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complainant and that ho had attempted to relieve complainant’s upset. Professor
Perlstein indicated that he intends not to have any further contact with complainant,

ANALYSIS:

The findings of the complaint were analyzed to determine if Pfofcssor Perlstein sexually
harassed complainant, in violation of the Central Connecticut State University’s Sexual

Harassment Policy.

has the purposs or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual’s work
performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, offensive learning or working
environment.” .

The above noted findings suggest that on or about April 30, 2004, complainant was

in his interactions with complainant and misunderstandings occurred,
Based on the above noted findings, Professor Perlstein engaged in conduct on or about

determined that the totality of Professor Pexlstein’s actions constitited sexual haragsment

in violation of the Central Connecticut State University’s Sexual Harassment Policy,

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that Professor Perlstein have no firther personal contactwith... .._.... .
-o- ".‘_OOI.I_IPI_Z_JJJ'_EJJC. TUTTIoTTootrottrottroetet e e - A T




~—riginal Message---~
From: Delventhal, Thomas {Theatre}
Sent: Friday, March 21, 2014 1:39PM
To: Plsano, Lou (Human Resources}
Subject: RE: New message

il
This s Thom Delventhal. | never worked with you directly 50 you may not remember me, bit | teach in the Theatre Departient. 5
mmuhdammmmsmudmmmmmmmmuum
2013650 pm
I have not felt rieht since aressaging you, Please forget § did, akthough ' quite happy 0 have seen your wall photos.
Perhaps i got to hear day (Are you still playing? So sorry to read abost ¥ you wouid ke to pursue this
the colizague | and she ls on facebook.

Hope | didr't upset you.
Breath and Laughte,
Thom

February 26th, 9:50pm
Hi Thom,

13 sorry for such  Iste reply... had no ides my FB email even HAD a *Junk malf* folder, and your messags went directly into 1.1
Just found your message tonight and read! 1t for the first time. ' sory | didn't see Kk sooner...and | am sorry o hear that peopleare
5t having "Yssues” with Josh, even after allthis timel Could ft be possible thet the resl issuo is with the nsan hinself? | hope you're
well, and {hope that the Theater department is in a happy plsce, &t usially was when you were i R.

Takecare.
February 27th, 12:04pm
1 feel so wonderful having been rescued from the jnk fles!

Thanks for replying. | assumed that | had touched a nerve that didn't want touching. Things are a It better today. It Is astounding
how long things can last tho.

Nice to heve the opp to look In your facebook window and watch your maim journey. Good work! IR
Breatha nd laughter...

February 27th, 5:15pm

uup..wmmtamwwmmmmmmmmmnwmmumm
feelings of sadness and hurt on my final experiences with Josh outside of the theater department. | assume you are sl on faculty In
the department, and dont want to make anything awkward between you and Josh, but | just have to know...was | Simply too nalve,
to think could have an innocest friendship with him at a time when he was clearly hoping for more, even from such a "child” a3 |
was? | got the Inpression from several of my giriirlends who were majoriig in thester that his incredibly forward behavior with me
weas Just one of many instances of him pushing boundaries with students, One of the hardest things for me 0 “move on” from was
the foeling that | was the one to biame, for making an Issue over the fact that ane of my trusted professors wanted to idss me and
hold my hand off-campus, talfing me | was "his destiny”. Meybe he (and you7) biame me for makdng a stink shout i to the schook
board, and feel 25 though | had no right to take an tssue with him. IFso, | can say that | wes a completely naive and innocent girl who
. 1




wm-mmm.mwmmnmmmmmmmmam-umaunm
mmumuyu-wmmmmmmlwwuﬂmnn.mtmmmummmuu-
mwwmammmmmmumthmummmrm,

mmmm«nmnmamwwtﬁmumm-mu

Pebrusry 28th, 9:28am

anmﬂlhmm.lmmmmmmw any blame. | respect admire and applawd your
bravery in taking action mlltmlmmmmlmwmnlmhmnne-ﬂvawiwm.\mm:mfwmm
mwm«»mm.lmnmupm-muwmmmmmwnmmammw
mmwmm|mmwumwu-omnlm.mmmmmmwwu
mmm-mmmmmamm(mummm)mﬁammw
mmmsm»mamammmammmmmummmmmumm
mammmutmwmmmmusmmmmmmmmwn
mumunmmmmnmw-n.bmmnmmmmmmmm:‘m
thovam).:olwndhblmlm\aﬂumﬁtﬂmhmbypﬂhwumormmnw.mlwn
mmmnpmd.awu-mwmwudmmmmenhwmum
movcdon.wwmmmwwmhhhmmdhoplﬁn-mm'smmmdowbhbhmdm
wlm.mnmmwudmmmMnumwmmnnmwmduudm
runm.|mmmmmummmmmm«mmmmmmm¢m
mmledawdmms;mlmﬁuudnmnmmhtmmtmhcmhhmm“m
wwmnm-mwnmmmmumwm-mnmmmm-t-'upmm
mmmmwmaumummmonhnmummummmm
ammmmnmm-mmwmﬂm.'lmwmwtmmmmummu.
hutlkmv&ql-nlndmmmm.MIMMMMU»W.MWNW
mmnmm|mammmmuummumummnnmcoupm
mnulmwwmmmmmmmmnuanummmummm
m.v«rmudunmfolmuu-mhuﬂnhnm'smqmﬂmmmwuldblmoﬂlfh
mmwm|mwmmmnmmmummmmhmsmm
makos mo feol Eke I'd be hung out to dry.
%u.ﬂ-t‘nht.:owhadommMdeﬁlwﬂeleMMlhﬂmthlmhﬂ
mwmmmhmmmmmm.wmwsmmmmmwumhm
beautiful woman and mom you've become.

Breath and Laughter,

Thom
February 28th, 1:49pm

Thom....m.mlmmwMMwﬂmlMdm&lwmlmmummwuudhu
mmmm-nuammuubmumdwmmmmfmmumof
confusion and gult regerding my iteractions with Josh. No one st CCSU EVER told me "R's not your fault”, Ever. You are the first
_ puwntoowﬂymmmnpruhlor.nndﬁntlwulﬁhlﬂ&mﬂuhw*wbtuﬁnﬁmudmlhnﬁlm
mmmdmmmmmmmwmwmmmwmmmﬁwmm
come...] was raally dysfunciional for a while becausa of that experience. 1 foal slightly sick knowing that Sosh's behavior has
mmaumlmmmmmmmnunmwmwmmmw

advised not to contact you again.” That was IT. | stlt had to SEE fiim everywhere, he still came up to ma on several occasions, trying
mw«wmnmmmmmmuuaummmm,
nndnumwmwmnmum-MmmMMMWMbduhumuoh.mnluﬂ
uuwmmmammmdommustomyummmnomammmmﬂm
word, | will write a report, go to the Dean with you, testify In cowrt, ANYTHING. To know that you ars willing to keep trying, oven in
muammmmmmmmnmmmmmmmm.umm&mmm
dsuntliwom&mmllmh:mwmwmywm.mﬂhmﬂhmwuddmm
It’suoodMhmm.mmmmwmbnkwmmmIlndd?mmmw-ndnmm
fernale alurnnl were who flied complaints? Let me know how | can get involvad. (i warn you, Pm HUGELY pregnant

-mmmmdwnmnmmwumam-lduﬂmm
** oppastunity to slip amdtbmmtmmwmm.ndmumnmwmw
mmmmmwummmmmuamummmmm.m'sdouu
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. Monday 7:25pm
My turn 10 s8y wow, snd P sorry. | last your reply. I've been trying to Agure out what | seid. | thought you hado’t replied to the fast

message.

| was crying quite Intansaly as ! mad your previous message to ny wile, and I'm snifiling as ) write now. | sm ftled with so much
shame that it teck me 50 forg. Thank you for your kind words. ) couldn't belleve he wes s despicable w ha ebviously k. 1 am
forwrding yout message io the Desn. She s said she is on It and doss:t need snymore nemes from me, but | want to bs srs she
stays hot. ’

AR Y-o-0-a-0-2-211] Wit & blassing! What name? When's the due deta?

1 doa't Rnow wivet the Desn's plans ara, ut | heve bean 10k that she's trying to stay focused on currant ssoes and that she Is
prepming & “Spachl Assessment.” Acconding to Tom he ssked how fong thal may tae and her raply is, *) don't inow, there’s never
m:wmumqumwuummmu balng levelad ait has wousd up retresting evary
thve.

Thask you for your hesuly, strength sd honesty, | will not withdraw or relense prazswre in sny wey. Mey your taet month of
pragnancy be comly and SEAENEIL

Wadnesday 1228pm

Theilied to pat your reply...} was starting to et worriedi| Al my prayers 9o with you In your pursult of the Dean...plesse keep tne
sppeised of sny developaments - | am eager 10 know hew this pans cat, aspacially I any of ey involvernent can help 2 3y way. '
Sad you inckided my smell 1 your case to the Dean..don't hesRate i | can be of any move usel (You can ses how ealous | am fora
cortain lowlife fo be brought to Judgement )

Can'twalk to meet 1] to
[} to be alive.

Al the best 10 you, your wike and fanslly, Hope any/all of your spring prodictions ara golng swimmingly!

Froms Phaang, Low {Human Resources)
Seat: Wednesday, March 19, 2014 4:17 PM
To: Delventhal, Thomes (Thestre)

Stfc ot o e o NN

i Thom. Can you sand the chain of emails In conmection with this respomes 90 | can 208 the Al contat of the convarsation?
Thanks,

Low

e Origingl Message-—

Fron: Delventhal, Thomes (Thewtre)

Seat: Mondsy, March 17, 2014 7:35 PM

To: Panss, Susan (Desn Arts snd Sclonces); Pisand, tou (Human Resources)

1 kmows you said thet yett hac sll the names snd info you naaded, and Tom said Wt you ware steering sway from old cleima, but |
Tound this message 30 moving | hed 1o forwand, | siresdy shared mansage and had thoaght respond
0 my response. | was thinking that it mest be too much decided to lesve k. Bt | just that she In fact,
rasponded immedistaly,

Braath and lsughter,
Thom

From: Facaboek
Seok: Pricey, Rebruary 28, 2004 2:19 PM
‘To: Delventinl, Yhomas (Yhantre)

Subject: New messege from




MlaguiazI Ernest !Dlven& and Egulg)

To: Aliing, Anne (Clilef Human Resources Officer)
Ce: " Price, Bonnie (D!venily and Equily)
Subject: Complaint - theater depariment

On September 30™ | received a complaint from assistant professor Sheika Siragusa about associate professor Josh
Peristein, both of the theater department. | reviewed the written complaint and spoke to both Shella and Josh
separately. | also spoke to department chair Tom Callery regarding the complaint.

Based on my brief investigation | have concluded that this compiaint is more appropriate for Human Resources than for
this office. Therefore, | will be turning the complaint file over to your office,

. Please let me know if you have any questions.

Thank you very much,
Ernle

Lrwset £, Margasz, bsq,

Interim Chief Diversity Officer
Central Conmecticut State University
860-832-1652 )




Directed toward me:
9/07 My first day on the job. Josh came in to “share” the joke about how he’d

{imagined a really Sophia Loren-like, sexy, dark woman when he was talking to me
on the phone and how it turns out that | am nothing like that.

10/07 Told me he had a sexual dream about nie as we were carpooling home
together. DREAM ABOUT YOU: One time we got in the car and he said, “l had a
dream about you last night.” "It was pretty exciting.” It was clear it was sexual.
responded by acknowledging It “Isn’t it sweet.” Didn't skip over it, but then quickly
moved it into something else (started talking about Liesel or something). He

dropped it.

Spring 08 Told me if he had to say what actor | most reminded him of he would say
it was Kathy Bates (like 20 years my senior and archetypically cast as the ugly
crone). I tried to remain light as I protested and he asked if | was hurt by that and I
said yes. The next day, several students arrived at my class telling me that josh had
told them the anecdote, When I confronted him about it he said he only wanted to
fllustrate how our perception of our self is often so different than what it actually is.

4/08 A female student came to me to report that a male student in her cast had
shoved a female student quite violently in rehearsal and that he had been behaving
erratically throughout rehearsal of the play and she wanted to have him removed
from the cast because she and others felt unsafe. The reporting student was very
mature and responsible and the male student had a reputation for making people
uncomfortable with his anger.

Feeling a bit intimidated myself, I called Josh in to the conference with this female
student to ask advice about how to proceed. He agreed that he should be removed
from the project. When I asked if he would deliver this info to the male student he
refused. When I asked him to be with me while 1 delivered the information he
refused. So I negotiated the situation on my own, alone, with the student (who was
removed from the show and voluntarily apologized to the students involved).

5/08 Iwent to Josh because I was afraid of a male student who had repeatedly
“joked” about beating me up and "smacking me in the head with a board”

1knew 1 had to confront the student but I didn’t know how. Josh was not
forthcoming, and so | suggested that I talk to this student and then Josh would knock
on the door at the-end so the student knew he was present nearby. Josh agreed.

After return sabbatical: threats about my job




He was coming into the office and saying things like “with this economic crisis, we
need to protect your job. If someone is going to get fired, it's going to be you. We
need to make sure the classes we are teaching are appropriate.... Get more students”

Trying to push me towards intro to theater classes (away from acting classes). “Just
want to warn you.” He didn’t want to talk about it at a faculty meeting.

The next meeting I brought it up (it was my re-hire meeting). The first thing I did
was address the situation, I want the job, it’s scary to hear [ might get fired.
Everyone was shocked... the numbers are not down, they are up because of the
crisis. (he was in the room, intentionally threw him under the bus).

Lannie went away and found numbers to support the idea that numbers were up.

After these conflicts (and he found out about my rebuttal), the student who went
to the me in with her monologue and it was the one I had already
coached her on, and Thom Delventhal had too. She got up to do her work, and Josh

went instantly into this theoretical /philosophical thing about her approach (she had

already EEEEMEENSNSNNNE) . He went into a deep pull apart (uncessary, §ll timed).

She said I really want to start stronger. ! want to figure out what my action is at the
beginning.” Sheila and Tom responded, started to adjust it. Tiny tinkering. Josh
interjected, “1 don’t think that helps you... it {s an intellectualization. You are too
intellectual already” (tearing into me, via her). He lectured for 10 minutes while she
waited onstage. She started to cry and left the classroom. 1said “I think we were
talking about the piece and excludinq. and we were ignoring her, and she was
trying to keep her performance energy up.

There was agreement. We talked for a couple of minutes about other things. She
didn’t come back. I asked [Jll, her sister, to go check in on[JJJjjj

Pnd didn’t come back. ] went go look for them. i} :"] can’t go back.
m’ so embarrassed, etc.” me: “It was our fault, we all agree.” She agreed to come
back in and work (just for a couple of mintutes) .

I went back in the classroom. came back {n. We started working. She said a '
couple of lines. She said “I just need to tune things up moment to moment.” Lines...
Tom gave her a short note. Then Josh talked for 10 minutes again.

Sheila: "Hey- I want to let other people have time, is that ok” (to get her off the
stage).

The next day, a student of mine great progress, he was a tough case). But he
had been Josh’s advisor, | had kim lor a semester.,




Josh: "Whoever was advising you really screwed things up and I'm really pissed off
aboutit” “it really sucks" (as he walked by the door) (really loud and violent)

BBwas hearing it too. I stood up and went into the hallway and safd *I was-
advisor, you know that."

Josh then makes light of it.

. apologizes to Sheila.
Sheila says don't apologize (didn't want[Jjto freak out).

[l stu!! apologizing (Sheila- no big deal, 2 minutes,to fix).
Josh now making light of it too.
“(had to go a LONG WAY to make- feel ok)

Later that day, Josh acting 3 class met, Josh said “I want to talk about something.”

" I'hope don’t mind you bring it up. When ! critique you, I'm not trying to hurt
yourleelings. [ don't intend these things personally.” (suggesting had been
oversensitive, and then basically telling everyone).

Josh: "Tom and Shefla tell you how great you are, and that’ Jizst not my style”

Spring 2009

Jeans comment: Josh, Ken and I were standing in front of Diane's desk in the main
office, I was wearing jeans, that Josh commented that he liked, I said *I know, I
never wear jeans, I don’t know why I don’t wear them to school”, and I walked to my

office and overheard him mumble something and Diane replied “Oh, now now now, .

none of that kind of talk here®.

Atmeetings, in front of students at practicum, in his classroom (students tell me
about what he says, on their own volition, | do not solicit this information) or in the
hallway, when Josh says something offensive and critical about me, he will
subsequently apologize In private, For example, when we were in practicumn, and he
mentioned to the new students that there was a possibility of getting a BRA in
acting, I chimed in “also in directing” (which is the program ] head) and said “No,
there's not a BFA in directing, its only acting and design.” 1 said “what?” He said
“there’s no BFA ih directing, it's a concentration” (41 students and faculty present)
Later-privately: “I'm really sorry I said that, I was just really confused, I had
forgotten we had changed that a couple years ago.” Isaid *Are you going to go back
in the next class and straighten it out?” And he said "No, there’s a catalog, they can




look it up.” 1said he really should tell them, and he refused. Ibrought a listing of all
the BFA programs in the department back into the meeting and showed the students
all the offerings of the department. I prefaced it by saying we've changed the
program recently and there was some confusion.

As Josh and [ tried to work out the conflicts between us, he said *I thought I was
hiring a “yes” person”

Aftera directing student won (for thé first time), the top honors at the Kennedy
center ACTF conference, he made a Comment about the directing awards not really
having anything to do with us, uniike the Irene Ryan awards (the acting awards).

August of 2009:
‘During height of our disagreements about the direction on'the BFA program (which

was resolved by Thom and 1 removing ourselves completely from the running of the
program as the only way we could see to make it work) he sent me, through
Facebook, a message that was a page of photos of topless call girls with phone
numbers.

At the next meeting, I brought it up and sald “you seem to have a virus in your
facebook, because I recefved a message firom you and when I opened it it was a page
of call girls” and he said “oh, yea, somebody sent that to me and I can’t get it off my
page” (it Is easy to remave things from and you don’t get a message from face book

unless someone sends it)

Didn't enter As You Like It ( my 2009-2010 prodction) into the ACTF competition
“because it was a Spring Show”. The Tempest, which was entered in previous year
was a Spring show—also said that we were only entering 2 shows this year-though
every other year we enter 3 shows in the ACTF. AT the first meeting in the fall, he
asked everyone if we thought we should enter this year’s spring show. I commented
that he'd said we never send spring shows and he said it changes all the time,

When he needs me to do something like take on extra work, he reminds me, in a
threatening way, that my reappointment is dependent on my taking on the work.

Other faculty member telling me that he is always talking about how | was never in
my office, and not taking enough initiative, then saying “what am I supposed to
say?",and then I asked if he thought it was true, and he said no instantly, and I said

how about telling him you don't agree?

Toast for As You Like It. Traditional toast, colleague to colleague, and comment
specifically about the director’s work. I had given effusive toasts for his work, while
we were in deep conflict knowing its vital that the students don't see any of this
played out, and his toast after As You Like It was "To the cast and crew for a
wonderful production.” Toast in total,




During meetings, he doesn’t look at me, and he refers to me as “she” and *her”. when
I said *who's “she”? He sald "She—(pointed at me) La.” In the same meeting,
someone asked me for my email address, and | said "siragusashm@ccsu” and he said

- “Schmutz” (which is Yiddish for dirt)

Whole campaign to get me to direct the musical in the fall, after Ken Mooney's
resignation, when I had already taken on an additional course. Tom Callery didn't
want me to do it, the dean didn’t want me to (seeing that I had already taken on the
course and the marketing) but Josh insisted I do it, saying that it was crucial for my
re-hire. (I have never directed a musical, it is not my field, nor was directing a
musical ever mentioned as part of my job before), Josh called Tom Callery at home
late at night with a laundry list of why I should do it. After many attempts to refocus
him, Tom told him Josh the decision was the chair’s (Tom), and he didn’t want me
directing it. Josh then went to me and other faculty members, and sald that Tom
was making executive decisions without our consent. “We need to protect ourselves.
He's trying to take over the department, and we need to look out for our own

interests.”

There have been multiple times when Josh has threatened my re-hire, using itasthe
reason I need to do things he wants me to do.

Josh told me "I was giving students random questions to answer—and I asked them

why do they call Ships "she”? (my nickname) It was really funny one kid went on
about how there was this woman named sheila who fucked so many people that

they talked about boarding her."
He recently told me this joke: “What's Australian foreplay? “Brace yourself, Sheila”

Josh came in one day laughing and saying he had just come from class, where he
asked them what animal other students reminded them of. One student sald of
R “Sioth!” And everybody agreed. And its so true, isn't it! { the sloth is a
hideous animal, Jllllis overweight and has been the object of Josh's frequent

comments about her body)

In a BFA meeting with and the 3 performance faculty, Josh -
discussed her audition piece, her physical characterization, and said ” you looked

like you were taking a shit.”

Frequent topic in performance faculty meetings is Josh commenting that students
are too fat or otherwise flawed (or, if they are beautiful, he makes frequent




comments about how they aren’t smart) to “make {t” and we should tell them so
they study something else.

Denied“ casting fn student directed shows (for disciplinary reasons),
then cast him in his own directed show.

ToldjJJ] to do a Jaundry list of things to be accepted into the BFA program, then 6
months later denied her access after she completed all those assignments. Again, she
is someone who is frequently singled out for being overweight.

Students have to complete 2 acting projects to get a BRA-big roles. He frequently
denies their proposals for acting projects, because the role is too small, or forgets to
give them required paperwork, He admits he forgot to give them things, but then

says they needed to be in the program longer for other reasons.

10 students are standing in the hallway, joking about having a car wash to raise

money, someone says “we need pretty girls, eye candy, to wash the cars” Josh said
"let's get » while making a gesture indicating the size of her breasts—and

then "the lot going on there”. Group lncluded- and-

In a BFA meeting, he sald to a female student *I used to have this really bad acting
teacher who said outrageous things to people. Like you really can’t act if you're not
having sex. Even though its so outrageous that he would say that, its really true, IT

gives you depth of experience.”

A few students, male and female, were actively pursuing the leads in Cat on a Hot
Tin Roof, which were a former football player and his beauty queen girifriend. Josh
repeatedly came in to say to me and other faculty members, how crazy it was that
these students would think that they could get cast as an attractive man or woman.
The tone was making fun of them, for not understanding how ridiculous it was that
. these students would think they could play attractive people. "Oh my god- IR
came to me saying he wants to play Brick!!” He brought it up in a faculty meeting-
*{s it our responsibilty to tell them they aren’t going to get cast as attractive people.”

BFA meeting, he asked student mwho he wanted to cast in his show,
_whether she wanted to do the musical or the mainstage production, if she had to
choose. is the most talented musical actress we have) She said- if she had to
pick, she’s choose the mainstage, to improve her acting chops. Josh said ok in a way
that conveyed that he would seriously consider her. She was not cast, and she was
really shocked. This happened with several other students, where he lead them to
e wanted them for a role, then cast someone else. For example, telling
ractice your accent (he wants to cast him) while fellow studentil
tells that she’s heard him tell that to everyone—it isn't a suggestion specific to

ut that is how it sounds. .




After a student was kicked out of school, one semester before graduating, for
making an offensive sexual comment, ] said to my colleagues that we need to
educate students about appropriate behavior, boundaries and the law. Josh said 1
don't’ think there is one way, I don’t want to be about one viewpoint. I replied that
this wasn'’t about viewpoints, it was about the law. Josh then proposed that we do an
original work about sexual harassment, exploring all the different points of view,
and that he was going to spearhead the project out of his acting class. The student
who was the object of the harassment was still in the department and would have

been subjected to this project.

4 people auditioned for the BFA program last year, accepted 3, and sent 1 away to
work on specific things. The BFA students, it {s understood, get whatever mainstage
roles we can give them, because they are required to complete 2 major roles to
gradutate. Josh did not cast 5 out of 8 in the BFA and cast the major role to the
student we rejected last year for the program. This will challenge their ability to
graduate, Thom Delventhal subsequently created several projects so they could
fulfill their BFA requirements. Josh’s response was resistant, saying “We don’t want
to seta precedent that we're going to do special projects for them.”

Josh talking about Maggle, (Cat On A Hot Tin Roof), that the character is supposed to
be sexual. We had general conversations about student’s maturity and comfort with
their sexuality, students who could convey that on stage or not, The conversation
turned when Josh said about JJl} (who wanted the role) *I don't want to fuck that *

(meani

Saying in the faculty meeting that he could cut all of Maggie's text in Cat- as long as
she touches her breast the audience will be happy.
e & res idier PPY. Maggee anrcts Yo b

\\-e«usdx, s )
In Conversations wi Who was interested in Cat on a Hot Tin Roof) talking

about the character of Maggle “she’s really a sexual being and you are not” and
saying the other part, Big Mama, is old and overweight. *how would you fee} if
people call you fat? You'd have to be okay with that” Asking if that's “hard for her to

hear” until she was in tears.

3
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Several students who were not cast in Cat, were invited into Josh's office to talk to
him about not getting cast. He had asked them to write essays about why they
should be cast (this is mmon ce, I've never heard of this in a professional

or educational setting) and had crying breakdowns later that day (I

had to send Jake to counseling) because they were so upset.
Josh came in the next day and sald it was good for them to have the "struggle”.

Whole series of comments abou NS show not being that good after
it got invited to the festival (having not chosen his show)
(after she won

Comments about eady to dir

the )




Series of follings for [ show being entered Into the Kennedy Center Festival;

He missed the deadline for registering her show
* Response to me in meeting about no respondent ;ir so video and then

subsequent comment about the only reason show went was the video
* Iwrote to the organizer, Paul, asking if a respondent could come (it's Josh’s

job to do this)
* Josh then sent the dates to the organizer-said it was September 9%, when the

show was the 10th and 11t

* Paul said he could do {t and asked Josh for the correct dates, Josh wrote him
that the show was October 10t and 11t,

* Paul called several times and left messages for Josh, emailed him as well, to
clear up date confusfon. Josh did not return Paul's calls and did not answer
emails.

* OnOctober 9%, ] asked josh for Paul's number, and learned from Paul about
all the communication snafus. I asked him if he could come the next night,
and he vas able to do so- and said he was glad to speak with me because the
communication with Josh had been so frustrating, '

* Josh came into my office the following Monday and said he heard the show

was invited to the festival,
* Iresponded that the director had been invited and he said "oh~—I didn’t think

so”
* The next day came in and apologized also about his comment because he

heard the show got better.

Wouldn't let several students do an acting project for As You Like It because the
rolls were too small to merit that level of study (after a year of text work), and then
when complaining that the students didn’t have their acting projects A & B yet
(which they need to graduate) we reminded him that he nixed those, and he went on

a rant about people that shouldn’t be in the BFA program because they are not
actors,

ADA violation with Ryan Campbell. Refused him accommodation in the classroom

i d :
Constant age jokes to Lan{ Johnson'’s face in meetings
Constant sex jokes about Lan{ being gross to consider sexually
Campaign against Tom C after directing the musical thing
Campalgn to get rid of the technical area of the department because it really doesn’t
exist. “There’s really nothing but the acting program.”
Comments about Ken Mooney being a monster while he was still here
Extremely negative comment (“mistake”} on Thom’s promotion review
Constant denigrating Jarek, professor I replaced, with and In front of students

Submitted to Ernest R. Marquez, Esq. on Sep 30, 2010 by Sheila M. Siragusa




Alling, Anne (Chief Human Resources Officer)

From: Siragusa, Shelila (Theatre)

Sent: Wednesday, November 10, 2010 4:03 PM
To: Alling, Anne (Chief Human Resources Officer)
Cc: Sheila Siragusa

Subject: RE Josh Peristein

Dear Anne,

I'm deeply concerned that I'm being retaliated against for asking that Josh Peristein’s behavior toward
me change.

~ Some incidents have taken place since Monday of this week that 'm sending to you for consideration.

On Monday, Thom Delventhal returned from your office eager to talk with me privately. In the
conversation, he relayed to me that he was going to ask me something that you'd advised him
against asking me. | stopped him and said, “are you sure you want to ask this anyway?” | think he
thought | was joking, so he continued.

He commented that he had spoken with Josh and that Josh was firmly stating that this problem was
me and that he had no intention of changing anything in his behavior. Thom said in light of this, it
‘seemed | had a decision to make if | wanted to stay here. | either didn't let him intimidate me and
stay or not. | proceeded to explain to him that | had been trying everything | knew to handle the
situation as best | could; and that it isn't right that I'should have to defend myself at this level and that
this was why there are laws against making a difficult work environment. He said he understood now.
He seemed very concerned that | feel taken care of and listened to, as he always does.
_Nonetheless, | think his comment made clear his lack of understanding about the issue.

On Tuesday, the faculty gathered for a meeting (called by Josh when there wasn’t enough time to K
pursue his topic at the monthly meeting last Friday). The meeting was to discuss the possibility of
moving our program from a BFA to a BA program. He indicated in the Friday meeting that he was
trying to find ways to solve the problem-of low numbers in classes, which he has spoken about for -
several semesters. | asked if the enrollment was down. Tom Callery said that it was indeed lower in
the past couple of years, but that he didn't have the numbers with him. Lani had said last year that
numbers weren't down when | asked at a faculty meeting (after Josh had privately brought that crisis
up with mé when talking about possibly being asked to cut faculty).

In the discussion, | became concemed that the bulk of what | teach would change to electives. Josh
said that it would probably be necessary to not offer those classes as often. Asitis, the classes.I'm
talking about; Directing, Acting 4, American Theatre Today, and Shakespeare in Performance are .

only offered once every two years. For this reason, the question seemed like a legitimate concem. -

| brought it up and Josh shifted the focus to what we would have to do to recruit greater numbers of
students. SO the question was not answered. When | brought it up again, Scott told me that Josh -
wasn't talking about eliminating the BFA, but only enhancing the BA program. Thom Delventhal
approached me as the meeting disbanded and addressed it directly, saying that we would just beef
up teaching Theatre for Education intro classes, which he and Josh, and two adjuncts, Jackie and
Barbara could teach. - ' :

| asked what | would teach and he said | could teach a section of that. | responded that | didn't know
1
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anything about teaching theatre education and he said “well we have to be flexible, we can't always
teach the high level courses that we want”. While | felt he was missing the point that this change
would eliminate the courses | am trained to teach, and was hired to teach, | backed off. | replied that |
was afraid, because others would have the qualifications to teach those things and therefore make
my job more doable by an adjunct then by me. He walked away, clearly thinking | was being
inflexible.

When | returned to my office, Josh went to the doorway of Tom Callery’s office and said “| thought
that went very well”. Tom Callery responded, “me too, except (silence and then quiet laughter) oh
well * and then they laughed again.

Later in the day we convened (without Tom Callery) again and | began the meeting with an apology,
saying that I'd misunderstood until Scott had commented in the last meeting that Josh wasn't trying to
eliminate the BFA. | felt that I'd caused an interruption for no reason.

Josh said thank you and then proceeded to explain that he.had meant to eliminate the BFA, but he
was only wanting to approach that carefully because ( and he pointed to where Tom Callery was
sitting and shrugged his shoulders) and then said he didn’t want to say anything behind anyone's .
back.

We continued to talk and then | brought something up that | had brought up in the earlier meeting
(with Lani and TomC present). | requested that we think in idealistic or even unrealistic ways about.
what we want for the department in order to not limit ourselves in our thinking and therefore stop
envisioning things because we can't get them right now. :

Josh, Thom D, Ken Mooney and | had a biweekly meeting last year for exactly that purpose, which
we called “the committee”. We invited Tom C and Lani so they wouldn't feel excluded, but fold them
it was for the express purpose of dreaming and stretching, as they both (having both been chairs and
here for the longest of all the faculty) had difficulty looking around the problems and focusing on the
possible. : '

| brought this up again in the second meeting, saying we should think about consciously thinking that
way and that we should be careful of getting hooked into the “language of impossibility that Tom C
and Lani are so versed in”. :

Josh instantly stopped me and repeated what I said and said that he thought Lani had all the best
wishes for the department. | said that | hadn't meant it that way (knowing full well they both have the

' best wishes for the department...they made it!) and that | meant they were focused on how things
couldn’t work from running the department for so long and that it would be a danger to us to fall into
that. Asking instead that we approach issues with new energy and possibility.

. Josh interrupted me and said, “I'm sorry but I'm uncomfortable talking about people that are not
present,” | responded that this was exactly what we talked about for a year on the committee and he
repeated that he refused to talk about the issue. Thom D-and Scott just stared at the floor. '
Thankfully, my phone alerted me that | had another scheduled meeting and | got up and caimly
excused myself and asked to be filled in later about anything | needed not to miss.

This feels like retaliation to me because from what | heard today, Josh is engaged in actively
eliminating my job and Thom D and Tom C seem to be unaware and therefore not stopping this.

" In conversations I've previously had with Tom Callery and Thom Deiventhal, they have told me
2




stories of Josh treating them in similarly abusive ways, and while they have wondered why | don't just
put up with it, like they do, they ultimately have supported me in my action to get Josh to stop this
behavior.

Today, from what | heard and saw, and from Tom Callery’s email last weekend, | believe Tom is

characterizing Josh's inappropriate behavior as a persona|.conﬂicf I'm having with Josh, which is
making his job more difficult, and that he is working with Josh to make him more comfortable with this

unfortunate situation.

N know you are working on this as quickly as possible, but | am having difficuilty coming to work this
week. As you know, | do not have the luxury of not attending.

| hope that some action is taken to alleviate this situation for me.
Thanks again for your time.
Sincerely,

Sheila Siragusa




HUMAN RESQURCES

CCSUL@

- ‘ -
Central Connecticut State University December 2, 2010

Professor Josh Perlstein
Theatre Department

Dear Josh:

This letter is a follow-up to the Article 16.5 Investigation into the complaint filed against you by
Professor Sheila Siragusa. '

* We met on November 16 and 30, 2010, with your AAUP representative Donna Sims present. The
following recommendations were made to you in order to address the concerns raised by Professor

Siragusa:

1) Be sensitive to others’ feelings and consider how they might react to something you say before

you say |t. .
2) Listen more than you talk,
3} Consider the fact that others may be offended by something that you may not consider
offensive,

4) Do not make off-color jokes,
5} ‘Someone else in the department should be assigned as a mentor to Professor Siragusa and you

should step back from being her “self-appointed” mentor. { have discussed this with Tom
Callery and he plans to ask Thom Delventhal to serve as Shella’s mentor, in accordance with the

Faculty Senate Promotion and Tenure Policy and Theatre Department guidelines.
6) Do not use e-mail to have a conhversation with other faculty, including Sheila, about other
faculty, students, or personal issues. E-mail should be used for routine departmental

" communications only.
7) Do not invade others’ personal space.

I trust that you have and will continue to take seriously the concerns raised by Professor Siragusa, some
of which were corroborated by colleagues. It is incumbent upon you to do everything you can to modify
the behaviors that are making her uncomfortable so that the department can move forward in a

productive way,

Also, please remember that retaliation, whether covert or overt, Is illegal and will not be tolerated.

Thank you for your cooperation throughout this investigation, and  am confident that you will make a
positive contribution toward a renewed spirit of collegiality in the Theatre Department.

SiZc)erely yours,/\ p -
i !
e / \‘i b&’(&a’\}
Anne 8. Alling )
Chief Human Resources Officer

Cc: Donna Sims, AAUP

1615 Stanley Strect — P.O. Box 4010 — New Britgin, Connecticur 06050-4010 — T 860-832-1756 ~ F: 860-832-2342




June 13, 2013

Lou Pisano

Ditector of Human Resources
Central Connecticut State University
Davidson Hall 101

MNew Britzin, CT 06050

Dear Mr. Pisano:

This letter is to inform you that the Office of Diversity and Equity has received a complaint from Sheila
Siragusa, Assistant Professor in Thestre. Parts of the concerns discussed in her complaint are related to the
University’s Consensual Relationship Policy. I've attached the sections of Ms. Siragusa’s complaint related to

this matter.

1f you have any concerns or ques}ions, please feel free to contact me at 860-832-1652,

Sincerely,
RS

Rosa Roddguez
Chief Diversity Officer -

Enclosutes

1615 Suanley Street — PO. Box 4010 - New Brirain, Connecticur 06050-4010 — T: 860-832-1653 — F: 860-832-2146 — www.ccsu.edu




1. Aletter from a professional colleague and friend

DATE: May 31, 2013

TO: Attorney Jacques Parenteau
FROM: Penny Remsen
SUBJECT: Sheila Siragusa

Dear Attorney Jacques Parenteau,

I'want to report to you an incident that happened on Friday, May 24, 2013

At approximately. 10:30am | was walking with my neighbor, Kathleen
Lugosch, and our dogs on January Hills Road near our homes in
Shutesbury, Massachusetts.

We approached two women walking toward us, and | recognized Josh
Peristein's wife, Anna Dolan. | said hi and asked how she was. -

Anna stated the following:
"l feel like shit. Josh is having an affair with a student.”
She then said she could not belleve it given that they had been togsther,

23 years. | cannot testify to the number of years, but | do believe that is .
what she stated.
Sheila Siragusa is one of the most trustworthy people | know. | think that

the treatment she has received from Mr. Perlistein and the administration at
Central Connecticut State University is unconscionable and egregious.

Should you require any additional information or assistance, please do not
hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,

Penni Remsen

2. Summary of retaliatory incidents

Detalls of retaliatory actions toward me as a result of my submission of a complaint
against Prof, Josh Perlstein (submitted to Human Resources by me in October of

2010):
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Copy,

Continuation of page 3 d(;ﬂadMandelm

1 balieve I have been harassed, retaliated against mnd trwatud mafishvly, bused on wy

gender, by Profeasor josh Paristein, '
Having veported Prof Perlstein to Human Resourcas fn October of 2010, I have been

victim to his consistent and dafly elforts to discredit ma, to his hostile trestment; o

his nagative comments about me to other faculty members and to students. He has
commantsd ahout me both in and outsids of thé classroots and attampead to recruit

studentsin his quest to futesfere with my work here st CCSU. Professor Peristein
nlso deals with othar faculty members and students in a way that | feal duty-bound
to respond to in this document,
In addition, my complaint of retaliation is sgainat thoss who adopted Professor
Peristel’s position and retalinted against me by denying my reappoiutmant (Desa
Sussn Pease) in Spring of 2012 and by denying me a positive reconunendation for
tenurre this year (Thestrs Depastment Chair Professor Tom Callery, Profsssor Thom
Delventha), Profesior GOl Gigiiottf), Dean Susan Pease In particuler has been heard
to describe me a8 a “ronblemsker” since iy original complaint against Professor
récommendation from the

Peristain, Despite the fact that I received a positive
University PAT Committes, [ have been denied tenure by Provost Cavl Lovitt and

President Jokn MiBler,
I have attached documentation as follows:

1. Alettar from a professional colleagna and Iriend, who bas called my attention to 2
MHMMPMiMMﬁ&Mnh ‘

particular 1

my lawyer, Attorney Jacques Parentesin

2, Summary of retaliatory incidents

8. Reportage of collections of incidents sant to HR, Bach incidence is datd and they
%wuuwummmuumuwmymu

4. Latturs sent to Provost Lovitt and Dem Peass during processing of my
reappointment snd tenure,

Stncerely,
Shella Siraguss
Documentstion on subsequent pages.

L




1. Aletter from a professional colleague and friend

DATE: May 31, 2013
TO: Atiomey Jaoques Parenfeau
FROM: Penny

Deer Attorney Jecques Parenieau, ,
| want to report to you an incident that happenad on Friday, May 24, 2013

At approximatsly 10:30am | was walking with my neighbor, Kathieen
Lugoech, and our dogs on Januery His Road near our homes In
Shutesbury, Massachuselts.
Woappgmdwomwdmbwardm,endlnmiudm.
Perieteli's wife, Anna Dolan. | sald hi and asked how she was.

. Anna stated the following:
*] foo! fika shit, Josh Is having an affalr with a student.”
She then said she could not balleve k given that they had been fogether,
28 years, | cannot testlfy fo the number of years, but | do belleve thet Is
what she stated,
Shella Siraguss Js one of the most trustworthy peopie 1 know. I think that
the trestment she has received from Mr. Peristein and the adminiatration at
Central Conrieciiout State Universlty ls unconsclonable and egregious.

Should you require any additional information or assistance, please do not
heasiiale to contact me. )

Sinosrely,

2, Summary of retalfatory incldents

Detafls of retalistory actions toward me as » result of my sulimission of a complaint
mmmmwummmmhm*d
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"o

Professor Josh Paristein making comments shout having to be
careful shout what he sys In owr n’nhchnotnluqnmhd
have continmed sincs Oct 2010

Chair Professor Tom Callery making continued refevence to svents
mmwmmmuammm
Professar josh Peristein actively pursuing other faculty members to “side
with him” about my action and creating endless conversations with
individuals and in gronps about my work in the department and my value ss
& factity membar,
mmmwmmnmﬂmmjcb could bs
tarminated due to the current fiecal crisis.

Professor Josh Paristein disnasing my teaching style and contenit negatively
in his classes (with out' shared

Piolessor Josh Peristein embroiling students in his conflict with me, through
criticlem of my actions to my students and compelling them to apologize to
me for what they untderstand to be them cating conflict,

nnmr-ummmmcmmmmmumw
in reference to my submitting my complsint to HR aftsr having already
wummmmmmm
Professor Josh Peristein’s presence on nty Promotion and Tenure committes
Mwmmmmhﬂuluwbwmhm
the commfittee wih the

sguinstthat. He subsequently recused
muhmmmmnmwmm
mynulh. My moeting was still dominated by his contbwied discourse

m-muwmmmmomum the report of Chair,
Professor Tom Callery diemissing discussion abowt the rightness of bis
presence on my committes,

Hiz presence in my classes to review my tsuching porformance and the
allowsnce of his docurments about that review into my tenure materials after
the comniittes reviewsd them (other membars did not see his reviews) and
before it went to Desn Pease and Provost Lovitt,

His unquestionsd opinion abont my work outside of the in -
consideration of my materials. Thess opinions were the basis of the bulk of
the nagative comments in my commities’s letter to Dean Pease,
muu«wmmmmwmw
Tom: Callery about Dean Pease’s recommendation that my tesaire track
position be terminated and my ensuing rebuttal letters to both Deant Pease
and Provost Lovitt,

Dﬂ!dofmby&emw , despita the University PAT Committee's
reconunendstion of granting




3. Reportage of collections of incidents sent to nn.
Sent Sep 30,2010

Directad toward mea:

9/07 My first day on the job. Joch came in to “shase™ the foke sbout how be'd
fmugined & really Sophia Loren-lke, sexy, dark woman when ha was talking to me
on the phone and howit turns out thet [ am nothing liks that.




10/07 Told me he bad a saxuial dream sbout me as we were carpoaling home &
together, LOne thue we gotin the car and he said, *1 had a dream shout you last
night.* “It was preity exciting.” It was clesr it was sexual | by
acknowledging it. mtﬁmnbummmuumu
. (stwrted talking about Lisse! or something), Ha dropped It

Spring 08 Told meifhe had to sxy what actor ] mast reminded hiva of he would say
1t was Kathy Bates (ke 20 years my senior and archetypically cast as the ugly
crone). Itrisd to remain Tight as [ protested and he sskad if ] wes hort by thatand [
sid yes, The next day, seversl students srrived at iy class telling me that Josh had
told them the anecdots, When | canfrosited him aboutithe said he only wanted to
{Iustrate how our perception of our self is often so diffevent than what{t actvally is.

4/08 A famals student came to mato report thet a male student in her cast had
shoved a femnale student quits violsatly in rehearsal and that e hed been behaving
erraticaBy throughout rehearsal of the play and she vanted to have hics removed
from the cast because she and others felt unsafe. The reporting stadmnt wes very
mature aud respansibie snd the male stndent had & reputstion for making people
uncamiortable with kis anger.
mammwlm;ﬂmmmmmum
student to ask advice ahout how to proceed. He agreed that he should be removed
from the project. When I asked ifhe would doliver this info to the male student he
relused. When [ asked him to he with me whils I defivered the informetion he
refused, &IWhMMnnymm-ﬂﬁamovbm
removed from the show and voluntexily apologised to mmnd).

5/08 xmmmlwmmmmmmm
“Joked” shout beating me up and “rmacking me tn the head with a board*
I knew] had to confront the student bot | didn’t know how. Josh was not

and so I suggested that 1 talk to this student and then Josh would knock

mﬁedmumn@nmmhnhmmw Josh agreed.

After yeturn sabbatical; threats about my job

chnmhghbthoﬂundmh;ﬂinplib'ﬂtht&nomﬂcaﬂgm

need to protect your job, If someone is going to get fived, it's golng to be you. We
need to make sure the classes we are teaching are appropriste... Got more studants”

Trying to push me towards intro to theater classes (xway from acting classes). “Just
want to warn you.” He didn’t want to talk about it at a facuity mesting.

mmmannmmmmmmmmmwd
mddruﬁeMmlmtﬂnkhfsmmhwlm'tM

L Q)
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Bveryone was shocked... the numbevs are not down, they are wp becauise of the
crisis. (he was in the room, intentionally threw him under the bus).

MMWNMMummhMMmm

ghr and he found out about my rebuttal), the student who went

came in with her monclogue and 1t was the ane | had already
on, Delventbal had too. She got up to do her work; and Josh

went inetantiy into this theoretical/philosophical thing abont her approach (she had
already won a competition). Ha went fnto a Mnhput[mm,mm

" She sild “T really want to start stronger. [ wantto figare out what my action {s at the
begiming.” Sheils snd Tom responded, started to adjust ft. Tiny tinkering. Josh .
Interjocted, “T dan't think tist helps yot... it is an intellsctualisation. You sve too
WMMMmﬁMMWNMMM“
waited onstage, She started to vy and left the classroom, ] said *J think we were
mmmmmm-mmmmhumn
trying to keep her parformance enesgy up.

‘There was agreement, W, lhneuuplufmll;mmm things. She
didn't come back. [ B t o checkin [

1"l con't go back.
agreed to coms

coma back. 1 went go look for them,
nmu'm'ltwmhlr.mmw
buku: ud work (Just for a couple of mintutas)
. lmhuklnthe oame back in. Ws startad working. She seid a
couple of lines. She sald “I fust to tune things up momant to moment,” Lines...
‘Tom gave her a shart note. Then Josh talkad for 10 minutes agate,

mwlmmummmmuuormpwwh

The next day, & stndent of mine great progress, he was & tough case). But he
bad beens Josh'sJIIN § had him for a ssmester,

Josh; “Whoever was JJJll7ou really screwed things up and I'm resily plssed off
aboitit" 4t really sucks” (uhonbdbyﬂnd&or) (rulbrlondmdvlahnt)

Ehrh;hmtmodup-ndmthbtbchnwmdd'lw.
you know that.”

Joah then males light of it.

a
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.mmum

Shefla syys don't apologiss (didn't wantifilco freak out).

- It spologiaing (Shefia- o big des) 2 minutes to 3.

1]

Josh pow making ight of it too.

oum.o.wmmmu-u'uuu

duy, Josh acting 3 class met, Josh said T want to talk about something” '
%m&mmmnmmxm«m I'mnottrying to burt
your 1 don't tntend these things personally.” (suggesting JJJJJJJJj bad been
overssnsitive, and then hasically teling

Josh: “Tom and Shella tell you how groat you are, and that’ just notmy style.”

Spring 2009

Jeans conment: Mhﬂlmm“inhmdwsduthmm
office, | was wearing jeans, that Josh commented that ke Mied, 1 sald *T know, I
mmh&lMMWldﬂthhMuﬂwﬂhﬂbw
office and overheard him nunnbls something and Disne replied “Oh, now naw now,

none of that kind of talk here”,

umumumnmmmmmmn
aMthmuMmﬂﬂmldomM&hM) orinthe
EMMJdmanddudehwm
subsequently apologiss in private. For example, when weware in practicum, sud he
mentioned to the new students that thers was a possibility of getting a BFA
acting, I chimed in “also In divecting” (which is the program [ head) and said “No,
there's not a BFA in directing, its only acting and design.” 1 said "whet?* Hesaid
“here’s no BFA In directing, it’s a concentration” (41 students and faculty present)
mﬁmﬂywldd&mlvmmwwlm
forgotten we had changed thata coupls years ago.” 1said “Are you guing to go back
{n the next class and straighten it out?” And he sxid “No, there’s a catalog, they can _ -
Tookitup.” 1said he really should tel] them, and he refused. Throught a listing of al!
the BFA n the departmant back fnto the meeting and showed the students
mﬂﬁmo;mwxmnwwmm
mmwndﬁmmmmm
mwmnmwmwmmmuhmﬂwlm

hiring a “yes” person”




Cop »
ARer s directing student won (for the frst time), the top honors at the

he made a Comment about the directing not really
to do with us, unike the Irene Rywn awards (the acting swards).

August of 2009 .
During beight of our issgreements abort the direction on the BRA program (which

mmdnd!vﬂmmdlmﬁunuﬂvumphﬁ#&mhmﬂdm
program ss the only way we could see to make {t work) he sant me, through
mw-wmnm-mormumannmm

Atthe nextmeeting, 1 brought it up and said “you ssem to have 2 virus in your
because I received a message from you and when [ opened it ik was & page
ol call girls” and he said "dh, you, somebody sent that to me and I can't get Rt off my
mmauummmmmmummmmm
unjees someons sends &) '

Dicn't enter As You Liks It {my 2009-2010 prodetion) into the ACTF compotition
"bacause it was a Spring Show”, The Tempest, which was sutered in previous year
was a Spring show—also said that we were anly entering 2 shows this yoar-though
every other year we auter 3 shows In the ACTR, AT tha first meeting tn the fal}, he
.asknd everyone {f we thought we should enter this year’s spring show. [ commented
that he'd sald we neyer send spring shows and he sald it changes all the time.

When he needs me to do something ke take on extrs work, he reminds ma, in s
threstening way, that my resppointment is dependent on my taking ou the work,

Other faculty member talling me that be is always talking sbout how | was never in
my office, and not taking enongh inftiative, then saying “what am | supposed to
wﬂﬂ&ml:ﬁdfhﬁuﬂkmb&nﬂhnﬁm%nﬂlm
how shout talling him you don't agree?

Toast for As You Like It. Traditiona] toest, collengue to collsague, and comment
about the director’s work. 1 had given effusive toasts for bis wark, while

we were in desp conftict knowing s vital that the students don't see any of this

plaged out; and his toast after' As You Liks It was “To the cast and crew fora

production.” Toust in total,

During ho'dossn’t Jook stine, and he rafers to me as “she” and “hex”. when
123id *who's He said *She—{pointed at me) La.” In the same meeting,
mmuhdmbrmndlidhndtwmdhdd
“Schuruts” (which is Yiddish for dirt)

Whale campaign to get me to direct the musical in the fall, after Ken Moonay's
when 1 had already teken on an adiditions] course, Tom Callery didn’s

wantma to do it the dean didn’t want me to (seeing that 1 had already taken on the

mmdﬁemh&dhﬂ]uhwrdohmmnwwdﬂhw
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mammdﬁw-mmm feld, nov was directing a
musical ever mantioned as part of may job ]. Josh callad Tom Callery st hame
late at night with & laandry Nt of why I shouid do it After many sitempts to refocus
him, Tom told him Josh the decision wes the chair’s (Tom), and he &idntwantme .
directing it. Josh thes: weut to ms and other fculy members, and seid that Tom

was making executive decisions without our congsent. "We nesd to protect ourssives.
~mmm|. to take over tha depariment, and we nead to look put for our own

Mhuhmmlﬁhmmxdmumdmwmm:uh.
reason I need tn do things he wants'me to da.
Josh toid me “T was giving students random questions to snswer-—and [askhed them

whydo thay call Ships “she"? (my nickname) It was really fumy one kid went on
mmu-nmummmmw”mmu

ﬁayhﬂddmtbwdulur.
Harecently told me this joks: mmw “Brace yourself, Sheils®

Divectad towaxd studante '
Josh cume in one day lsaghing and ssying be had just come from class, where he

what animal othey stndents reminded them of Ove student suid offil
And its so trus, ien't ] (the sloth is a

) “Slathl* And everybody agreed.
fe overweight and has boen the object of Josh's frequent
comments ahout her body)
In a BYA mosting with and the 3 parformance
Mm

facuky, Josh
discussed her audition and sald “you Jooked

1fke you were taking a shit"

Frequsnt toplc in performance faculty meoetings is Josh MMM
aretoo fit or otherwisa fRawed (ov, if they are beautiful, he malkes frequent
‘comments about how they sven’t smart) to “maks fe” and we should tell them so

* theystudy something elee.

mhmmmwmm
. then cast own divected show.

wdo-mwmmwm?
denied her access after she completed wmm

1s someons who s frequently singled out for being overwefght.

o
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MMWM';?&MMWNMMMMM
says they needed to be in the program longer for other reasons.

10 students sve standing in the hallway, joking about having a car wash to raise
mﬁmvmwmw cars” Josh said

sl while making s gosturs Indicating the sise of her
um»mumum.mw_hm

haNMhﬂhaMMﬂmﬁhhhr—wmm
taacher who ssid outrageous things to peopls, Likh you really can't act if you're not
having sex. Rven though its 50 outrageous that he would sey that; fts really trus IT

gives you dopth of experience.”

A fow students, male and femals, wers actively pursuiug the Jeads in Cat on a Hot
Tin Roof, which were a former football player and his beauty quesn ghrifriend. Josh
Mmhmnmmmdmmmw“tmu

thess students would think that thay could get cast as an sttractive men or woman,
The tone was making A of them, for not understanding how ridiculous it was thet

thess stadents would think they could play attvactive people. “Ob my god-
came to me sayin he wants to play Bricd® He broughtitup in a facully
“is &t our responsibilty to tall them they sren’t going to get cast ae attractive people.”

 BFAmeeting he asked sindent who he wanted to cast in his show,

whether she wanted to do the malnatage ifshebad to
choosa. s the most talentad musical actress we have) She sald- ifshe had to

plck she's the mudnstage, to tmprove her acting chops. Josh sxid ok in a way
that conveyed thet he would seriously consider har, She was not cast, snd she war

wmmwu&mmmmuum»
bellove ho wantad them for & role, then cast somsone elve. For example, talling
your accent (be watts to cast him) while fellow student
she's heard him tell that to sveryons—{tien't a suggestion ]
thatis how it sounds. . :

ARer a student was kicked out of school, one semester before gradusting, for
an offensive sexusl comment, [ ssid to my colleagues that we need to

making

educsts students about appropriate , bayndaries and the law, Josh said 1
don'¥ think there is one way, ] don’t want to be about ane viewpolnt. Freplied that
this wasn't shout viewpoints, it was ahout the law, Josh thea proposed that we do m
orighial work about sexual harassment, exploring all the diffevent points of view,
and thet he was going to speerhead the project out of his acting class. The student
whowas the object of the harazsment was stil in the depmrtment and would have

been subjected to this profect.




. or aducational setting).

a1

a0 )

4 people auditioned for the BFA program last year, accepted 3, and sent 1 awayto -
work on specific things, The BFA students, it is understood, get whatever mainstage
roles we can give them, because they are required to completes 2 major roles to
gradutate, Josh did not cast S out of 8 in the BFA and cast the major role to the
student we rejected last year for the program. This will challenge their ability to
graduate, Thom Delventhal subsequently created several projects so they could
fulfll thefr BFA requirements. Josh’s response was resistant, saying “We don’t want
to set a precedent that we're going to do spectal projects for them.”

Josh talking about Maggls, (Cat On A Hot Tin Roof), that the character is supposed to
be sexual, We had general conversations about student’s maturity and comfort with

thelr sexuality, students who could convey that on stage or not, The conversation
turned when Josh said about JJi(who wanted the role) “I don’t want tp fuck that®
(meaning )

Saying in the faculty meeting that he could cutall of Maggie's text in Cat- as long as
she touches her breast the audience will be happy.

In Conversations with [lfwho was interested in Cat on a Hot Tin Roof) talking
about the character of Maggle “she’s really a sexual being and you are not” and
saying the other part, Big Mama, Is old and overweight. *how would you feel if
people call you fat? You'd have to be okay with that” Asking if that's “hard for her to

hear” untfl she was in tears,

Several students who werenot cast in Cat, were invited into Josh's office to talicto
him about not getting cast. He had asked them to write essays about why they
should be cast (this is not cormmon practice, I've never heard of this in a professional
andfJiJbad crying breakdowns later that day (1
counseling) because they were so upset, .
next day and said it was good for them to have the “struggle”,

notbdnst}mtgoodd’ar

had to send
Josh came in

Whole series of comments about

it got invited to the g not chosen his show)

Comments about ready to direct on ourm (after slie won
the the 2

Series of follings for how being entered into the SEENENEG

e Hemissed the e for registering her show
d so video and then

* Response to me in meeting about no respon
- gubsequent comment about tha only reason show went was the video
¢ lwrote to ths organizer, Paul, asking if a respondent could come (it's Josh's
job to do this)
* Josh then sent the dates to the organizer-said it was September 9%, when the

show was the 10t and 11%
¢ Paul said he could do it and asked Josh for the correct dates, Josh wrote him

that the show was October 10% and 11%,

.
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* Paul called several times and left messages for Josh, emafled him as well, to
clear up date confusion, Josh did not return Paul's calls and did not answer

emalls,

* OnOctober 9%, I asked Josh for Paul’s number, and leamed from Paul about

*  all the communication snafus. | asked him if he could come the next night,
and he was able to do so- and said he was glad to speak with me because the
communication with Josh had been so frustrating,

* Josh cameinta my office tha following Monday and said he heard the
was invited to the festival, :

* [responded thatthe director had been invited and he said “ob—I didn't think-
so0"”

* Thenext day came in and apologized also about his comment because he
heard the show got bettsr.

Wouldn't let several students do an acting project for As You Like [t because the
rolls were too small to merit that level of study (after a year of text work), and then
when complaining that the students didn't have thefr acting projects A & B yet
(which they need to graduate) we reminded him that he nixed those, and he went on
a rant about people that shouldn’t be in the BFA program because they are not
actors,

ADAvlolsuonwith_ Refused him accommodation in the classroom

Divectzd toward other faculty:

Constant age jokes to Lani Johnson’s face in meetings

Constant sex jokes about Lani being gross to consider sexually

Campaign against Tom C after directing the nrusical thing

Campaign to get rid of tha technical area of the department because it really doesn't
exist, "There’s really nothing but the acting program.” - -

Comments about Ken Mooney being a monster while he was still here

Extremely negative comment (“mistake"} on Thom's promotion review

Constant denigrating Jarek, professor I replaced, with and in front of students

Submitted to Ernest R. Marquez, Esq. on Sep 30, 2010'by_ Sheila M. Siragusa

Covering Fall 2010

visitfor our lecture series, which ts my responsfbility to book. 1gladly accepted-and
recelved this info:

She
here s info for Rathy for Practicum, [ told her $150. Is that still OK

611 18




Do you want to pick ber up 80 you could have some quality tims togetherT?

Kathlen A. Chalfant

)

1 replied that Twould pick her up (to Josk) then. T happily publicised the event!
Then, on Monday Nov 1, I wrots him to get her mumber or smail to arvangs the pick
wﬁmwmmulmnmmmuummn. This
was his responss:

Shella
n&mdmmm“mmmmwmamm
said you would be Eappy to pick ber up in New Haven. She just sant me & message
mumwmmmummummmmm
uwwum»mmmuqmmmmm
mmmMImmmmhmwnuwnIhdh

September.
Josh

Then before I could respond:

Shells

Hore I3 Kathy's contact info.Josh
From: <katchacisal.com>
Then fom Kathy

doarjosh- 1 can make 1 8:30 class - the bigh school thing1atn New Haven - 5o all is
mlllbrﬁhmmmﬂmnd-m:umudymhﬁnn
hour and a half from new haven?7777 - with sverything crossed xoxoxoaxo kathy
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1 spoke with Kathleen and she was able to rearvangs her schaduls for Thursday
for travel, [ am forwarding

Wejust need to process her pay and make
her contact tnfo, Pleass Jet me know if this Iy ok for you.josh

Her response seama to indicate that be had suggested she wouldn't be able to make
f2 to CCSU bacanse It takes an hour and & halfta get here, .

Anze,
‘Thess smafls are presented sz oldest first.
This was quizs upsstting to me, &5 the lecture saries [n the department is my
responsibility this ssmester.
Josk had kindly effered two candidates for bringing to speak to the students (a favor
to me as ] was In charye of booking the season). He offersd to contact both of kis

as he knew them both personally (as mentjaniad shova). He confimaed

Tochorars
that Ratiileen Chalfust was coming on Nov ¢ (ae you read sbove) and that s man

namod Juliano from The Froodom Thester in Palestine (on whose board Josh is3

maember) was coming on Sep 21. T mads and published (even in marketing

roaterials) the Rtinerary for the lecture series (called Practicam) with thoss detes
lecturers contatnad,

A woek or 50 before Julianc’s visit, T overheard Josh telling someans in the hallwey
thiltJulano couldn't get a VISA to get here for his viait, ] was annoyed that he hadn't

told ma and was glad that I'd ovethesrd, 50 st Jeast Limew. ] challed it up to his
being buzy opentag bis show that next week, A few days lster I mentioned £ and he
said "obs yesh, I forgot to tell you”. I decided to have class mywny with soms other
activity, On Wednesdxy before the class (on Thursdays) 1 decided that I would do
whatwe have tradftionally done fn othsr semesters for the same class, which was to
count going to opening night of the show as the class tine snd aidp the 8:30 class. [
sentout an emafl to the students.

Waednesday evening | recelved x call from a stndent ssking sbout my cancelling the
locture, I told him that Juliano wasnot caming and he said that josh was planning to
have two visiting company members from the Freadom Thestre take over his
Jecture, Ha had naver mentioned anything ahout that to es. Not onca, Bver,

Pelling strange that a student was calling me with this info, | ssksd i ifJosh wes

. theve, He saidyes, [ asknd to speak to hitn and there was & long pawse and he
responded that he couldn’t come to the phone right now. 1asked the studentto
have Josh lot me know ifhe'd lks ms to write the students snd reschedule the class.

"t
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mw:&mnpmdhmsomhnumm-ﬂddmm
would ke me to do that:

In the other amail chain | sent to you, you'll find that Josh inciunded this ta his bullet

1. Thejob of ths Managing Directoris to promote all
We have on rumerous occasions had the ov and of-campus press
mmmmuwmwmmn-&
Saculty meeting this summer and fn September and was even mentioned in
Practicum 2 wesks befbre they cama, | simply think this was a squandered
When [ ses the amount of sttention that Exxy opening got for the

qumtlmmm.ﬁumwddpthmo:

m

The suafus with Kathieen Chalfat's visit the next wesk sesmed suspect to me In
Iight of these previous events,

Nov 5, 2010

Friday, Nov £%, 2010

Anne,

‘This morzing was our first full faculty mesting since Fve come to you about Josh.

We sat down st the tahle and saw that Jackis had inciuded the small chain int the
focuky mesting minutes. Peopls were looking around uncomfortably.
Totn Callery then called the meeting to order suying, “we'll talk to Jackie shout what

to Inciude in the minutes, Normally I'd get a chance to look st this, but with ofl this
shit (holding up paper) I've been dealing with ......(didn’t complete the sentence)”

Later in the maeting, Josh was talking shout elinfuating some tech classes and
pretty quickly and with dearopposition. He held up his hands

everyous respanded
mmmwmhmpmaﬂmmm
misnderstand

Thanks for reading all this ynckl-

Sincerely,

Sheila Stragusa
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Anne,

Things in blue within the emall taxts that  am forwarding ave sy notes to you. The
most recent appears fivet i the saquence. Following the emadi chain, I have notes
about content addressed to you.

Thizis from Tom Callery:

Ympmhmdumﬁhmﬂo@hgwdhmbmdmmu
mmawmmmmwum-mmmwm
ol academic department at a University, oops | gaes they are one and the same.
Is this all 50 important that you wish to barm the integrety snd reputstion of this
asnd all the hard work we've put in buflding a program of nots and
recognition, Think sboutitill. Best, DAD
W

From: Pexlstebi, Joshua (Theatre)

Sents Thureday, October 26, 2010 5:57 PM
.NMMMMMWMDWML
wmm (Theatre); Johtiwon, Laut (Theatre); Colon, jacqueline
Subject: RE: Fac meeting )
Hi everyone

First of all [ never mantioned the word thflures, Suggestions about what might be
done in the future or were not done in the past are inbended to point out
oppertunttise. Without this there would be no mugical or Moblloxyshlock. It ssems .
a8 an organizaion that we must be able to mention when things come up short so
that we can Mabmpbmﬂnmbmﬂmlwm.ﬂ.mn

discussion of how we could maks improvements. Sings alist was
munmmmmmhmmmxm

they came. I simply think thiz was a squandersd opportunity.
amount of attention that Iy opening got for the Art dspartment I am simply
wishing that we could get the same.

2, Tobe honest the senson press relssss which I got an October 14th was very




d¥fficult to read with strange characters i between words. It also contained

misspellings of Rugene O'Neill's name .
3, The campus calendar on display at the Studsut Center has no Bsting for the piay.
Soms of the online calendars do. In the past there have bean srticies watiten for the
Herald snd  notced that both Art end Music are festured in the news section of the

websits, This was not & comment about fafhure but about opportunity.
4,The poster was shown to me 8 days before we wentup snd was hung st the end of

the week prior to opening,
5, The difficulties with House managemnent were as Shefla mentions but aleo
included stdents who were hrand new to the departmsent snd aven to theatrs,

They needad on several ocoaions to be told not to come in and out of the doors
during thazhow. | was happy to inform them of title but it does sppesr to me that

more divect supervision may bave besn necessary,
6.1 would Nke to be shle to address these concerns in person with Shefla but | have
been advised tn Nght of recent events to be extra csutious so as to avoid fulse
accusations or hearsay. This ls why ] have sent thess comments through the mail. I
would be more than willing to discuss them at the fscully mesting or with Shefla as .
long a3 there {5 & third perty present. Otherwiss | have had no problem this year or B
any other yosr in taking up cohcerns [ have had with any feculty

1 beBave that to move forward we should make an effort to listen to and corvect
mrﬂlﬁnbmhmdm

Josk

From: Stiragusa, Shella (Thestrs)

Sents Thursday, October 28, 2010 1:59 PM

To1 Pexistetn, Joshun (Theatve); Callery, jr, Thomas (Thestre); Bartley, Scott L.
(Theatre); Delventhal, Thomas (Thestre); johnson, Lani

Hello to alll

*1just wanted to write down & response to joslv’s three points about the faflures in
Department (advartisement for Practicum lecture, houss mansgeuent
and advertiszment for shows) »

1. Publicity for Precticmm events have not sver happened in the times Fve besn
herw, a¢ faras [ am aware. This season, | mentioned two visits we ave having this
senester (Chris Bakerand Kathleen Chalfent) in the sesson press release, which
went out In September, 1 didn't know sbout your Palestinisn gnests for
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mmuwmmnmmnmxﬂﬂm

advertised even if ssked. ;

2 mmmmummmum-m

. w“ wn-:t wgmmb
aseparate to

m:nmmm«wummy.mmm

Bsteerve on Oct 14th
. Wmmmmm«wﬁbmdhhwm

. WMWMBMNWthM

newsleiter aud Betserves
. 'mmmmwnummmm

pre-opening
8 mmmmuxnmummmmu-
mmummmwmmuwn
drinking while bs was house managing. Otherwiss, [putgrest
mmwmmmummmnqunm
think it went exceptionally smoothly.

pounbubnukmhuhmm
Thanks,
Shella

On10/28/10 1:08 FM, "Peristein, joshus (Theatre)® <pacletelni@mailcamacdi

R/ UNIBIOLRG

-Immmmmmnahwmu/umlw ]
m«mmmm:m.mmmmmh

Palestine where 1 will presant workshops next fall. CCSU students have
besn tnvited to the UN to help them with an event on 11/29,
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«~Vigiting artistsfkom Ths Freedom Thestre i Jenin were on caxepus for 2 days
MudmdmmmdnmmnoWnWmfw
them which tnciuded speaking engagements at Brandsis, Cowlsbls, UCona, Holyoks
_Community College and the Plonoer Valley High School for the Performing Arts. All
ave interested i hosting tour from Palestine next yoar. I was dissppointed that
there was not mare publicity arcund cxmpus for I'hope there will be more for
the visk of Oble-whtner Kathlesn Chelfant on 11/4

wwdhnudwmwnsmﬂ—nd! .
made prasentation to SGA. The budget given by SGA matches lastyear
thay bave indicated this shonld continus into the fature

~Cat on 2 Hot Tin Roof want very well and received high praiss from the Dean and
Frovost among many others. ] want to for up big
in the exacution of the set, and

nominated for Irens Ryan. was
Mlﬁkm&dﬁm&bpﬂm&.lﬁghﬂknﬂnmm
who I spoke to seid they did ot receive any notice the play until late ta the week
mmmmmdummmummmx
believo they have been resolved

«I have visted many classrooms this Al an & part of High Impact Thestrs initistive
Iniro to Drama, American Drams, Isiamophobia and

inchding
Internationai Terrorism. Severs] move visist are planned..

—High bupact has started the 12:20 inspired byt the dance work of Nicole Carrano.
Every weeka different event will happen center campus.

—1waat to offer praise for Thors Delventhal and his work on the by project. it was
md&ghmhﬂbmﬂmmnm .
~The London trip is fall with 18 studeots which has allowed meto being sew facuity
member Scott Bartiey as & chaperobe,

Anoe,

"Tiyis Arst email from Josh is his sunouncements for the Novemnber faculty mesting
minates, }t an effort to save time in the meetings, Tots Callery has vequestsd that
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we send our aznowncements o the department secrotary and she just adds them to

the minutas,
Joul's writing of sunouncements with the entire faculty cc’d is unprecedented (for
him or anyong on the faculty). They bave s0 far gove anly to jackde, the department

secretary, (not oven to the chair as farss I know).

T've also not seen comments about mistakes that we'vemede in the department (or
even suggestad inprovemants) within snnouncements before this one, Usnally,
since the idea behind armouncements is for the university to chart our individual
and collective achievement in the department and the field, we writs them with
intention to shine, .

‘Stnos January of 2009, i both faculty mestings and pecformanes faculty mestings,

(Josh Peristeln, Thom Delventhal and myself) cornments towsmd my wark
parformance Xke thoss n the initial email have beett mads at nexrly every mesting,

and without opportumity for discussion or rebuttal. Initislly I wonld defand my
position, a2 1 was understandably upset at someons’s negative response to wry work
for reasons | considered unfoumded. This would inevitably make it worss, and oftan
significant thme in meetings would be taken up with the problem. Stace April of :
2009 I have practicad (as other fucuilty will corvuborats) indicating that Ive heard ;
him and politely refocuing the lasue or not-responeq, thinking that stmply “not i
taking the bait” wonld alleviate his focus on me.

!mw““rmmw'%mﬁmm
recently brought my complain University. word “ijres” -
muy have soemed provoldng to josh. In addition, I realize that perheps | should

have shmply responded to Josh and the Chair to adhere to ethics about not causing 8
colleagns professional embarrassment. Nonethaless, [ took great care to word it ina
civil and professional manner.

Thersspones from josh divectly contradicts what 1 have stated in my responss. I
can only say that, to the best of my knowladge, my statoments are completely true. -

In another document, Thave addressed the jssue of his Middle Eastern lecturers.

The late-night response from Tom Callery was vecy upseiting, framing, as it did, this
correspondence ss petty srguing among faculty members. Thismadeanalready -
deaply dificult sitnation far worse for me, as it is the only time anyone ou the

faculty (Inclunding Tom) has Indicated saything but total support about my

treatment by Josh being inappropeiate and undesecved.

Nov 10, 2012

it
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I'm desply conceyned that I'm being retalisted against for asking thet Josh
Paristein’s behavior towerd me changs.

Some incidents ave taken place sinca Monday of this week that Fm sending to you
for consideration,

On Manday, Thom Delventhal returned from your office sager to talk with me

_ privately, o the conversation, he relsyed to ms that be was going to sskms
something that you'd advised him againet asking me. Istopped him and seid, “are
mmrmndﬁkw ] think he thought | was joking 80 he

He commmented that he had spoken with Josh snd thet Josh was Srmly stating thet
this problens was me and that he had no intention of changing anything in his
behavior, Thom said in light of this, it seemed I had s decision to malos if | wanted to
stay here, ] sither didn't let hi intinidats me and stay or not. | procesded to
explatri to him that 1 had been trying everything 1 knew to bandie the situation as
Dest I conld, and that ft fsn’t vight that I should have to defend myself at this Jevel
and thax this was why there are laws against making a difScult work environment.
He sald he undesstood now, He ssamad very concernod that [ feel taken care of and
zmdw.uhuhm:u. Nonethaless, | think his comment made ciearhis Inck

On Tussday, the faculty gathered for a mesting (called by Josh when there wasn't
encugh tims to pursus his topic at the monthly meeting last Priday). The meeting
was to discuss the possibllity of moving our program from a BRA to a BA program.
He indicated In the Friday meeting that he was trying to find ways to solve the
problem of low munbers in classes, which ha has spoken about for several
semesters, | asind i the exrolbnent was down, Towm Callery safd that it was indeed
Jower in the past couple of years, but that be didn't have the numbers with him,
Lani had ssid Inst year that nimbers weven't down when | asked st facolty
meoting (after josh had privately brought that crisis up with ms when talking ahout
possibly belug asked to cut faculty). . _

In the discussion, | became concerned that the bulk of what I taach would changs to

electives. Josh said that it would probably be necessary to not offer thase classes as
often, As it s, the classes I'm talking about Directing, Acting 4, American Theatre
Today, snd Shake¥pears in Performance are only offered once svery two yesrs, For

this reason, the question seemed like 2 Jegitimats concern.

- brought ftup and Josh shifted the focus to what we would hava to do to recrult
greater numbers of students. SO the question was not answered, When I brought it
up again, Scott told me that Josh wesy't talking about eliminating the BFA, but only
enhaneing the BA program. Thom Delventhal spprosched ma as the mesting




nt
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two
Barbara could teach.

Tasked what I would teach and he ssid | could teach a section of that. [ responded
that I didw’t know snything shout teaching theatre educstion and he ssid “well we
bave to be flexible, we can't always teach the bigh lsvel courses that we

want”, Whils ] folt he was missing the point that this changs would eliminate the
courses J am trained to teach, and was bired to teach, I backed off: Evepled that }
was afraid, becauss others would bave the qualifications to teach thoss things and
therefore make my job mors doable by an adjmet then by e, He walked sway,
clearly thinking 1 waz being inflexible.

When I returned to ny office, josh went to the doorway of Tom Callery’s offics and
saki 1 thought that went very well’, Tom Callery responided, “ine too, except
(silence and then quiet langhter) oh well * and then they langhed again.

Laterin the convenad {without T and I hegan the meoting
wunngumrdm:ﬁ St had comasotad 1 the
last mosting that Josh wasn't trybig to eliminate the BFA. 1felt that I'd cansed an

interruptian for 0o vesson.

Josh sald think you and then procesded to explain that be had mesnt to eliminate
e e i e
h-dldn'cm:bwqmrmdww

We cantinued to talk and then I brought something up that | had brought up tn the

entiler mosting (with Lani and Tom € present), [ requiasted that we think in
1dealistic o even vnrealistic ways about what wa want for the department In order

to not imit curselves i our thinking and thevefove stop envistoning things because
‘we can't got them right now.

Josh, Tham D, Ken Moonay snd I had a biweekiy meeting last year for sxactly that

prpose, which we called “the comumitiss”. Weinvited Tom C and Lani so they

wouldnt feel excinded, but told them it wes for the express of dreaming
the longest ofall

and stretching, s they both (having both beon chairs and hare
the faculty) had difficulty looking around the probiems and focusing o the possible,

lwmdmhmmmmmm think about
thinking that way and that we should be careful of getting hooked into

consciously
the “langnsge of impossfbiity thet Tom C and Lagl are so versod in",

Josh instantly stopped me and repeated what 1 sald and said thet he thought Lani

bad all the best wishas for the departmant, | said that ] hadn’t mesnt it thet way
(knowing fall well they both have the best wishas for the dspartment..they made
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mﬂmrmmmmﬁmmmm&mmmm-
uwm»mumnmu-wuummmm
mwumwmmumwuu possiblity.
mwuummmmmwmmm
that ars not present,” lwuummwummmm.
yeoar on the committes and he that he refused to talk about the issve,
floor, Thankiully, txy phone alerted me that 1

Thom D and Scott just stared ot
Mmﬁuwmﬂlmwlﬁm_ﬂdmﬂnﬂ-ﬁdb

De flled in later about anything I needed not to miss.

mummumwmmmmxmmmuqnm
actively sltrainating my job and Thom D and Tom C sosm 0 be unaware and

therefore not stopping this.

In conversations I've previously had with Tom Callery snd Thom Delventhal, they
have told me stortes of Josh treating them in stziiarly sbusive weys, and whils they
have wondered why ] don'tjust put vp with it, Hice they do, they ultimataly have
supported me in ;y action to et Josh to stop this behavior,

butiam having difficulty

lemMmﬁuM-m
coming to wark this week. Mmm,ldonotm&hmyofmm

I'hape that sae action is taken to alleviata this situation for me.
Thanks again for your time. '

Stcersly,

Sheila Stragusa

Nov 23, 2010

Hl Anne,

Sotry | didn't get this to you before the winter break. As1told you, it's a deep

mpmmmwmmmm 1 really focused on resting over the
Was quite healing for me. Now! want to writs this before we start the spring,

tn bopes that he’s had thne to reflect about is chaloes,
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Josh walks behiad me i the hallway whils P'm chatting with a student, who is sitting
inthe box afica. He makes pig morting noises ashe passes behind me. | turn and
1o ane else is in the hallway.

Mesting that josh has called to discuss curriculum issties farther. Only Thom and
Josh and f can sttend. (Anne-This s a continuation of discussion of mesting that
sentyou notes ebout tn sn emall on 11/10) :
Josh opens the mesting by talking about how we need to do & nech better job on
p\ﬂdv.uohmp:’k “ . sob
&m“mn&wmrwhﬁMum]mm
any advanced classes, thet we all have ta ook to teaching more entry level classes,
intro to theatre (Anne-see original documentation | sent you re this

). He says that if there isa good tescher (ferencesuniiics jarek) that thoss

classes will siphon people into the department. .

Thom Delventhal talks shout education as & fasder, which was discussed in the last
mmmmmmmmwnummmm
what he's saying ls being written down. 1 umediataly show him my notes and say
thet] xm writing meeting notes. After thet I did, indeed, start taking notes of what
hawss doing/saying for the remainder of the meeting.

loiwvﬂduhhmandwwh‘naﬂnnﬂanmhhu He
tells us that Tom Callery is resisting becanse he doesn't want to let go of the BFA.

Thom D says that these changes might increass everyone's numbers. )
- Josh agrees and says that Scott Bartlay waned hint thas Tom would resist.

Josh explains that there will be a core for the BA and then thay can pressnta
portfalio to be accapted nto the BRA

mmmmmmwu&nmm
again, this touches on my 11/10 notes)

playwriting,
design, directing, acting, tach, Josh calls this applied thoatre or practical thestre and
wumkmmmmmmumﬁmmw
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about that (applied thestre and theatre education tracks) so | can present thase
m;?,mmwmwmwmmm

When I ask another question he squirms and sighs and says, “we'll type itop”.
Josh explaing that the word “appiled” needs to go ou students’ transcripts,

Josh asks me to Jook up NYU's program for appiled theatre.

Iask him for patience becanse ks is gaing too fast even for Thom Dolventhul to kesp
up with conversationally.

Despite the fact that the department has not agresd to procesd with Josh’s propasal,
Josh tells me that [ will have to work on changing the curricubum datly. ] said I
couldwt spand much tmore tims bacause [ was working hard alrendy as the semester
* appronched the close. Insked lim again to have more petience snd he said
(extremely sarcastically), “oh.....l have fxjiits patience”

Josh brings up needing to talk about things with this samester’s practicam (we
rotats somesters taking this class and [ am f chargs of the fall 2010 semester).

Ho said we needed more tims for breaking into groups (we each have a grocp of
studonts for particular focus, snd historically bave, when appropriate, put aside
cings time to atbend to the tasks assigned to the groups. Most of the organization

around these focus groups has historically outside of the
stracture,) Thom D spologizes and says that he didn't do the prep warkto mesit

Dbreaking into groups and Josh correctsd him and suid ft was cnly bocause I had not
allotied thne,

Then he said thet Anna Dolan, Josh's witi, was upset bocsuse 1 bad yet to contact her
sbout what she has to do nextin our collaboration [Anna and Thad been working

together on writing short plays in the practicum class). Annasnd I had
detuflad manner about dates and what we would do together and

.
ux:thbun dates (Anne-T have multiple emails to back this up). In addition,
we had been talking as we went along with the sessions we were doing together.

quhm,lm«andddldldn‘thwﬂw:unhmmhd
plamad so , He said it was my clsss and that 1 should've called. 1asked
bim why she didn't call me to ask snd he said ft wasmy

He then said that he had spoken to buman resources about the marathon 24-hr

rehearsal | had with stadents for our upconiing competition at the Kennady Center
Festival and they had sald & wasn't okay to do that. (Anne-we spoke about thatand 1

subsequently beld the rehesrsal at school).

e




Copy

Atthe mesting's end, 1 asked Josh for Anna’s call nuxaber so [ could contact her right
away and he said, “she doesn't have s cell phone”. Fasked if Ishould just call the
homs pumber and he said yos.

That night I wrots the following ernail (1 bave otiginais with dates of all of these
emals saved): v )
Hi Annal

Mnm!dh!uujmhdnmmwmmm

vehearsal. Josh uﬁmmmﬂﬂﬂvl_dﬁh’tnﬂdﬁlmnmwﬂd
prapare for the Dec 2nd class, P'ta 80 saavy shout that, but I didn't even knowyou
were walting on that.

whtbnqnnd.nluﬁlthnﬁt&dwwﬂhpuﬂqht“ﬁqdwﬂdb
mmdwﬂmdohnmummmh[&mhthwm).

Think that's i Let me know ifyou need/want mora. .

Bost,
M B
Mﬁnlﬂdﬂmdﬂ&ohﬂﬂhﬁnmmhmm
‘Thenext day | recaived this from Josh

Shald I wouki ba better Ifyou contact Aue by mallosh

1 received 8 responss from Auna right awsy that she hadr't been contased st afl snd
evaything was fine.

- December 3
On Dec 3™, we had a full faculty mesting and I took the following notes:

_Jmmuummmmwmmmmapm
mmmmmmmmdmmuﬂmmw

. :mmwm&mwmmwaumm Amontent

Iater Lani said she hadn’t seen or adjusted the documant in years, Josh didnot
comment. )

an




Josh suggests that my going to Kennady Center Confevences really lan't sufficlent
because of the nature of the confarence (not sure why aad | didn’t ask).

Josh begins to discuss cwrricubum changes and again is going very quickly in the
conversation. ] stop him to clarify that we are talking about the applied theater
thing again (from the 11/23 meeting) and be sy, “sppled thestre?” (looking,
completely canfused), 1 respond by harking back to the other mesting snd he ssys
uhnmmmummmummuumum
totally stapid), I just drop the subject. }

Imention the deadiine for the curriculum changes and remind sveryone that our

changes need to be done by the 168, People indicate fasling narvous about the time

crunch and Josh lsughs snd pauses. Everyonels quietly looking ot bim to see ¥ he's
doing the presentation

going to explain his laughter and he says, “the person who is
(me) has to do some work looking at other schools and sesing wihat their programs

are” To ma, he is describing the work of the whole depestmant; specifically the
pesson who is spearheading the changes (him), not the faculty member that
represents the department at the curricahum committes.

Webeginto talk about the musieal next season and Josh comments that we should
justhive a director becanne the main reason the SGA give us money is to kire
samaeone thet is an expert in the Seld tn to direct. (Anne-sos notes n original
docment re last semesters musical) Rveryons looks st bim surprised (based on the
K divected for yomy”

inthe Tom Callery says, “Will
'ﬂ'g responds that he gﬁumnﬁm He sald f you're

going to divect this you should give students someons with expertise.

1mm.mmmnmmmumormwmnu
. sn additional room at the Keunedy Center confersnce becanse Josh and I can’t share

aroom (the four of us had previously slways shaved aroom and this yeer its just
Joshand I} this year for obvious reasons, Everyons brushed it off and ssid we'd find
themoney. He then said we couldnt meet aza and plan for the
festival/rehearss the scenes for one another becatse he and I couldn’t bealone tn -
the ssme room together. Astonished, I sald, “with stadents?” and he said, “yes®

No one seemed to know what to say so it was dropped,

Decmnber 7;

Twent out of my office to go to class in Davison and Josh wes talking to thres or four .
students in the hellway behind him (lookad lfke he wes stopped in mid-traverss

through the door). He was leaming against the doar; propping topen. Aslwmt
ks his conversation with the students (also my students) to

through, he intsrrupted
say, “wow. You're welcame®, By the time he said that I wes about 10 festaway from
hh.nlptmdadtomthmhhbmcldﬂn'tmhwtomm
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obwious hostility in frout of students. ‘Then 1 heard him sty to the students, * you
open the daor for scmeona, the lesst they could do is say your",

On Doc 6% 1 had decided (with Thom Delventhal) that we would cance] the
practicum class for Thu Dec 9% becauss ws wers requiring those studants to attend
. ,nmmmhumw The practicum was scheduled fora
talkback seasion sbout the musieal “The Spelling Bos”, which had just closed. |
checked with the stage manager of the show to see if the director bad desn Informed
sbout the talkback and would sttend and she said no, so Thore and | considered
whether or ot the students that were in the showwould mind. We talied about it
briefly and decided that the show was so universally loved that the students had
gotten enough feedback and there wouldn't be tuch for discussion.

T hnd somt out am emadl on the evening of Dec 6% saying the talkback wes cancellsd
and the meeting was at 11:30 am for the performancs parade.

Student directing pisces were schedzlod for the evening of the same day, the 9th, In
changes for the

lght of these scheduls changes, we decided to rehearse the scene
show during the practicum tims, So we wars schednlad to maset from 3-4:30 sud to

pexform at 5PM, Tha dates of that performatce had bead published since

m“mxuwgmmummmmmm
wmnm»mumwmmmmmy

mmwrmﬁummm

Shells and Thom Becsuse our Peyformancs facuity mesting did not happen Ihave a

fow snnouncements /requests Please write an and of semester evaluation of all BFA
students touching on class and performance work as wel as 1 would lka to
send thege out as sacn as Trveccommend be admitted to
in Cat on o Hot Thn he sn informal

9. This will be immediately followed

have all been rogistered and mmst submit .
scone cholcos by 12/20. Make surs your candidates know about this, Itis for
mmmmmuzmmmwmummm
2nd semester snd the other will be the Monday befors we leave, | will be coaching
my students over the healk, This will be my last semester as coordinator for this
mlmbmmu&mmmmmmm
they want to de this work. Students will bs participating in a new York showcase
the last waek in May. This will be underwritten by TU That's all fornow Josh

The “Irene Ryan” masting he speaks of is ACTF.

&lmchm]uh’nﬁaud-hdhhwlvhhdmﬁdﬂlm
consulting ma, and he said thet students had been very upest that there was no

[ 4]
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[ told him that the ACTR meeting bad slveady been called for Tner 14 and he seid
he didn't care that he wanted this one.

1 expressed that all my students for directing weve going to be fu prep for the shows
st that time and wouldn’t be able to maks either mesting (my directing shudents
included all of the Speliing Bes performers and all of the ACTF compatitors,

He said they have to be there. ' :

] conldn't cancel the stagiag of the show and 1 told him s,

Heresponded by sxying that this is what screws things up in the department. Thet1
can't just go changing something fn the scheduls without consulting sveryons slse
who is affectad by that decision. I took that nots and want and apalogised to the
thres students who wers in the Spelling Bes and scheduled the staging extremely
wmm-mmmummmmms

WMIMNMaMMMMMﬁmM
again and the mesting for ACTF, No communication to Thom Dor L

December 8:

Josh walked by my affics door and made pig sorting sounds again.
Decamber 16:

As the semester drew to & .MW..M
being her coach for fust waved her awxy
in s offics when she cape 1 to ask him sbout it and sald, “right now you're the
least of my priorities” :

' ﬂummmmmmdndu“lww'um;mh
ordar to not provoke Josh or give her the impression 1 was siding with her in
exfticism of his actions.

The way our preparations for.this conference has happened sincs | arvived four
years ago is as followss

Three students are chosen from each show to compets i the competition.

We dlvida thema up, Jfthe students are chosen from a show we directed, we ave _
mtomatically thelr coach, ifthers are other students out of that classification, we

shmply divide the numbers and are therefore the official coach of thres stadents and

are expected to help them prepare for tha festival. We have always been extremaly

vocal with the studants and with one mother thet the students don‘t nsed to taks us

up on our offer of coaching or can have thelr scene coached by another professor if )

that professor s wiling, or even have all of us coach at separate sessions. If a '
mwmmmmuwm&qmduhmm :

i
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With this tn mind, [ expiained to [ that she would have to ask josh and that
be's ckay with it she fs weicoms to my marsthon rehesrsel seesion with the students

1 bave besn gssigned to.

Sho came back & couple of days Ixter and suid she will be there, Then ] recelved the
following email from Josh:

Shella 1 would have grestly appreciated itif you had ssked me bature talking with
my rene Rysn candiadtes, 1 told [N chat &t was very confuing baving, Ina
sense, two directors, Se if she mests with you on 12/28 then pleass meutor ber for
the entire process I had plans to work with theny later in the process Josh

l:lld she would be choosing only my feedback if she came on that day

Jamusry 14¢

T spoke with Thom Delventhal, who sseraed riddlod with warty sbout being iy DEC
mentor, Hesald thatJosh hiad besn “at bim every dsy” trying to persuads him that |

should not be relirad, I asked him why he couldi’t just ask hiu to stop (1 mentioned
o0 you, Aune, that I had ssked him to do that tn December when hs reparted the
same thing), Fe said he was planning to, 1 again volced my fears that the process
would be shout defending my record from Josk's attacks instand of a discussion
sbout my achievements. Thomm said he would try to achieve that snd that's why
there is someons else outside of the department ou the commiitee. T don't feel
confident about this Anne, It seers to me thet part of Gl Gighiott! ‘s job Is to Nsten to
a faculty member’s concerns about ms duing this discussion. But what if Josh
neverstops talking long enough to allow snyone else to speak? This has been his MO
1n every meeting I've sver attended, and someans who dossn’t know Josk is lesast
Micely to be able handle kis behavior and understand that it ia the noym.

I continue to be quits concerned that the University is allowing josh to sit on my re-
hire committes, when ha has heens actively campaigning to stop by re-hire ever since

1 reported his bebavicr,
Thia lewhat T have right now, Thanks sgain for plodding through,
1 hope your bresk was snjoysble and restful. More light In the sky every dayiill Yay
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Spring /Fall 2011

We're 2 fow woeks into tha new semestar, and with renewed negative attention
from josh Peristain, Pd Ufks to 55l you in on details from the Spring semester to
present day. Josly's ralentiess hostile sttitude toward me in the workplace coutinues
to cause me great herdehin, Again, I request that you do anything possible to

alleviste the affects of this on my work situstion, .

Spring Semestar 2011

Firstdayback, Jan24%  Josh slammed hie door pretty much as loud as one
possibly could while Thom and I were laughing and chatting in the office hallway.

Jan25th Eennedy Center conference. | walked up to ssversl students in a circle

with Josh to congratulate them on thelr work in the acting competition. Josh

obviously and shruptly left the conversation and welled awsy. This was
bothersoms to me, becanise the entire faculty has worked so hard to

puticulnrly
knop faculty conflicts separats from the students.

On the first day of the-conference (Tuesday), Josh told ma that he would only be
Thursday and Pridsy, becanse there was 2o money for

there culy some
m:?hhlim- used up his travel fonding, The conferencs was
Wﬂlwﬂhwﬂaﬂd&emaznhﬂﬂu
entire tima, after thinking T was chaperoning with Josh the whols wesk.

ExtiyFed Thowm Delventhal reports to me that Josh said he s 50 nat by what
have dans that he will nat stop until 1 am tenminated.

mw&tw (wot that Thom sxid it) to Josh and he didn't deny that he'd

‘Feb 18

Seo previous documantation sbout a November faculty meeting fn which Josh
mhpdnmwmdwmmmduowbm-u’am
dendiing for cwriculum changes. Over Janiury bresk, | had prspared and submitted
the changes to the Dean's offics snd the anriculom conunittes by the esrliest spring
- deadline Gan 26): The ehanges were rejected by the Desu's office on the grownds
that vast programmatic changes required a longe discussion and process.

that

1 was foeling nervous about going to the our 2/15 faculty meeting, suspecting
mmm:mummummwmrmw

. from fending him offin the fall. He did indeod suggest thet it was my fit. I very
powerfully and clemrty defended myself, and suggosted he'd set me up for this event

o
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wwwnmummmmmwhmm
me, lmmmhwmmﬂukﬁmﬂ.mnm
Wwwmmmdﬂmummmwmu

After the mesting, jﬁwmmuunmwum
mmumumumﬂmn-uwm

MmeﬁqumhMMMMwwm
m;wu:mummqpmvwmmsuum
of my moving forward in my job. Es said he had criticiam shout me before we got
into conflict. This is certainly imtrue and heavily documented with Human
Resources. He ssid that he, the AAUP and the aver In HR couldn'tundarstand
(ifter going over and going over the document) I'wantad, that my
documentsetion was all unclsar.
lwnunhmuxmdummmmmmx

reminded him of my reasons (that | had bad 4 conversstions trying te resolve
Mdmmmm

differences, with other faculty memsbers

his behavior worsenad) Atthistime, 1 offeved o sot up a mediated
mmmmmwmumum-m
conversstion with me, mdtmmmm@mmmm

subject, Ainally saying he wanted to got back to his work

ARer the sygument endod snd Toms C had left, Josh exme to 1y offics doorand sald
he felt Hia he'd just taken & big crap and that it felt great, Ho went back to his offics,
and returned a fow moments ister and said he hoped | didn't taks that the wrong

way,
mmmmhemmwmmmmummm
comment, . . .

In March sometime Tom C asked ma to come and talk to him sud Whan 1 went tnto
his offics he asked me, “what fa wrong in our amily?” 1 didn’t know what he mesnt
mdnnhdbﬁnhdnﬂ&mdheddmmhﬂnmﬂnahmlmhﬁu
lmm(alhﬁnmmmmdhnm) that we
conversations rather than bustiing around and

should all commit ta having open
talking about things behind closed doors. He agreed. Then after sn awkward pause
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he sald, "so what should we do sbout ££7° 1suggested that we have 2 mesting
with new commitment

devoted to the issue and then have an agreement to procesd
and mest more regularly. He safd he didn't think we could find time for more

mestings, [ was totally confused snd said, “then why are you asking me what we
should do™ He responded that he needed me and Scott Bastiey to “getalong”, 1 was
totally confused, as F'd hed absolately n0 confiict with Scott since bis arrival at CCSU
Worried, I asked Jiim 3 Scott hed been reporting that we had conflict and he esid no,
Ttold him | were fine and pressed him snd he said he just knaws we

thoughtwe
don'tgot along Itold him that 1 had no knowledge of that snd that I would certainly
£0 to Scott and clearjtup. He again said that Scott hadu’t told him anything,

That dy ] et to Scott and related the story and he said be hadn't complained
shout ttand thought, as did [, that we had a fins working relaticnehip. I stressed to
Scott that I was very open to criticism and couversation sbout work styles fbe ever
found our communication sirained or msatisfactory in sny way. We agreed thet we
thought owr work relaticnship was characterised by open commmumication. We are
both very vocal and deal with sxy dissgresment we run into right on the spot with
one snother. 1 really thought Tors was baving some welrd, misguided father
moment and forgotsbout it.

A fow days later, Thom D told me that josh had ssid to him snd Tom Callery that
Scott and I couldn’t stand to Wwork together and were 80 polerived in owr opluions
about work that “coe of us would have to go® because there was no way we could

work together,

Thyoughout the entire spring, I had boen trying to srrengs & retirement svent to
honor Lant Johnson befors she left us in May. 1 have amail documentation of several
exchanges, The only ones who responded were Thom Delventhal and Catherine
PMMM!MW.Mm&.MthMn
a ceremany at the Hole In The Wall Thestre in New Britain (Thursday My 5) and 8

ceremuony and a gift presantation at the closing day af a show
g mmcndgmmu-m Josh did

(Saturday May 7). Catherioe,
not contribute, We'd schecitled a four o’clock dinmer on Thursday night befere hee

sward becanse Tom Callery was going to another show that evening and couldn't

make a later gathering
we have a more relaxad dinmer after Lant’s

A few duys before hand, ] suggested
awwd ceremony since Tom Cwould be at the weskend event and it sesmed
unfortunate to have an excly and rushed dhwer on the night of ber award

presentation, Tam Csaid he didn't mind sud so we moved the dinner to aftey the,
cerenony on Thursday xight. Josh was quite upset (§ heard frotn Thom D) becanse
1 had moved the eventta after dinner and that he couldn’t go. This was the first
communieation I'd kad from kim shout anything regarding Lani's retirement. Josh

hadn't responded to a single emaf] or suggastion.
the ceremony. And, as far as [ kmow, he never had any intention of doing so.

ot
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Inthe May 62 faculty meeting, we decided on production dates for the 2011-12
\ Weagread for Dec 5% and 9 for student shows Qrave to be divectsd

academd
mmmnw Both of thess ave finel
for students that I have nmy progression for

c
4yenrs,

BOU! ‘l

the director thet hy .,:,un.n..il,‘,.vy
supported for the past four yesrs by ths departnent ss a pavticipating show in the
Kesunedy Center Axsrican Colloge Theatre Festival. This means that s adjudicator
will attend the show and naminate studenis for various lovels of further
participation in the regional festival (sciing, divecting, design, stags managetnent,
the show ftself compating at the festival). Itis out of
Mmmmmmmamwmum
consecutive years (of which two students were savt to compete all eight
reglons fn the nation and then won the single national collegs student directing -
award at the Kannedy Center in Washington DG, a fivst for CCSU).

mmamwmwm-m
mmmnuﬂu:mgd Mh?aﬂwbw
was of such quality wentsd to

student dirocted sequence I ated by

the

sward) ACTP suppost
the faculty voted to support it. At that
poiut, there was discussion In faculty mestings that the saumer slot be the directing
saquence "prine” and that we support the student show that earns the siot, Josh
cottests that [ remamber that tnaecurstely and that the sgreement never took place.
I emmot find docomsentation 1 the minutes of the conversation but atill maintain
that ft, indesd, ocomred. 1 prosent as evidence the fact that for the following two
r e e e DI orcs Gt was vt o e of e
reconsideration, The Lovea (which was tavited as one of eight
shows out of 42 snd student directed shows to go to compete st the regional
wmm—mhm
without discussion. Inthe of 2010, was
invited to corupete for was supported
without discussion.

M e of
thespring Connecticut) with a group of students there
as partof his his MFA in Genersl Theatre Bduestion st CCSU

(&MMMI&M Thare had been discussion about
whather or not he should receive the sumumer siot becauss | had not worked with
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B tmy own student directing progression and felt that giving &t to ki might
mwmummmruummu

Bducational MPA student’s work) for the pest thres yests, The other studants who
mhhhhmﬂuv’nmnﬂmm

lot.

The cholcs west forward, ¢ it had traditionally bean rxy thoics to select the work,
And this yean, the cholce wes ajolat ane between Thoe Delventhal and me.

-mummyurmmuquuw_nu
il M was asknd to have bulld plans to Scott by June 16 snd &t was agreed that
the bufld would tals place, with Scottand Tom Cand their studeut’s help on Pridey
Aug 26% sud Monday Ang 29, 1 asiced at thet thne tf it would be sneugh tims and

"Tom C and Scott Burtiey confirmed that it was.

Mlﬁy”lmuﬁuuhkmhymwdwm Jouid fosh
- seemed to be backhng off as mwach a5 he was able and thet 1 would keep 1 continuieg
record of anything and let you know how it was going,

I head fnto & thue fhatfs froe of interection, as the semester ends and the suomer

break began,
Mid July 1 from Tom Callery thet (I had not turned in ks
bulld plans for deaditne, [ called and told kim to

send the plins away, I told him ! would have sero tolerance Jor missing
deedlinnes and any other lack of responsiliity with the tech faculty. He

snd prowised that i would be the last time Iwould have to talk to him. R wes & kng
mmmmux»mmwu
serionsness of s missing » deadiing. [ wes determined to ahessle fres
eventfor everyons sincs Tom € and Scott had tnttially resisted our cholcs

show,

. ﬁ".m' H ame —E . -

(July 22) Shetls and Thom who | am iecheding [» this conversation)
Thiz ts what | had talhed about with Shefla (yox working th the summer) but since R

was the end of the semester [ dont think I Aod thought 1t through complataly, The
Mw:ﬁdmm mmwmmmm-ﬁ&h

kmﬁﬁnnﬂl&mﬂﬁamm Now thinking about f¢ this doss not
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aboutthe 2 aptionsyou dexcride. I

fwe
after cuxditfons & conld be thet you couid fust procded as piawned beceuse | declde not
Ctouee any ofyou) nor foroe them (o chooss or axything Mts that,
My vote wowkd De 80 do it ax Winturstock but that may heve ciready besn
assigned...that way noone would have to be recast and Fall Racully coukl have an apsn

Slate for casting
Shefla?Thom? Whatyou think>>>fosh

On 23 July 2011 124, I wrots:

K g Tt e, s o g et it comidbriog i i
mummﬂu 1 wanted to go tnte the semester with akeady
dolng some work In the sunumer so we wouldn't need move rebearsal thus dwring
school, [ agres with lmﬁldu‘twntwhmwhh
averwhelmed and the malnstags is the priotfty but we can work this out. Now I have
a coupls dess.. The first is that 1 bold off on rehearsals until you cast your show. if
any of the four are cast in yours, I recast. Or the sacond option being 1 hold off on
crwve until the spring semestan.. I can work dusing winter break if nesd be, | wonld
prefar the second option becatzse not only do I not want to recast, but I want a shot
styourshow. 50 you Jet e know what you think shout these idees.

Also '
e e T e
Decauss they ave being expressed. Wiy to go

§ think whh Hmm ]
wh-w:!dun!: b} m-nm»mcmm&d
a2 josh suggests, [ think we should revisit that whan we yeturn with Tom C in

conversgtion,
Somd good to all?
Hope sunmer s good.

Sant from my (Phone

As [ as ] am awars, the only students that know about axything that hashappened
with Josh and me are the two studants who wave called last year shout the confiict,
Nonsthaless, | have sispected that students have sensed tension betwesn Josh and I
1 dedact this from the frequent incidence of students making negative concments
sbout josh and his teaching arornd me. Students don't make this character of
comment to e about ather faoulty members, and 1 thay are trylag to et me
to comment. For the record, I consistently ask tham to be upfivat with josh about
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' problems thay have with jim and defend him in general ways that re-establish thetr

respect and decornm.
When we retumed for the beginning of the semester, [ was determined tp begin

answ with Josh. I'wanted very much to talk about strength of community and
interaction and bebavior that fs respectful and honoring of ane ancther. |

were ia positive comnumication, thinking that starting with the relationships of the
londers as & model would go & long way in sstting positive community mindfulness.

this semaster, which is a requivement
gathering meeting,

especially around special speakers and the
and welcoming of new mambers happens there, I welcomed all and introduced

faculty members sud they came up and spoks and then ] gathered everyone fntoa
circla, 1 asked all to hold hands and then made a joks abent not wanting to hold
Josh’s hand, and both of us made puined faces enach other’s hands and alt fell
into howis of laughter, This was sn intentional sttempt on my part to alleviate
tension publicly. | then proceeded to talk shout how much we valne the community
of owr department and that our efforts to respoct and listen and show up for one
.another is what creates that community. 1 stressed that it is our actions that creats
this and not some stroks of lnck and asked for a sharing commitment to mindAuness
with all the new members, Then [ had everyone choose a partner and | choss josh,
1 asited everyons tu talk about the most difficult momentand then the funniest
moment that happened 1o thern over the past few monthe. Then I asked people to

- share one thing they leamned sbout theynselves in the same perfod. Josh and §

* lsghed s0 hard and really ltstaned to one anothet'. It wes the best intevaction we'd

had in yourz,

I'tnclude the following account shout the'student directed shows to filustrate
pattern that Josh Peristaln is finding an apportunity to derafl my aress of
involvement in the department (raference docwnantstion jan 31, 2011 inwhich I
detailed that josh’s curriculum change propossls directly affect the aress that ]

Thare is a bistory of discomfort and snoysnce on the part of the technical faculty
around student projects that predates my arvival at CCSU. Student directed shows
Bave gotben significantly move mentored, systematic and tegulated sincs | was
banded the projects upon my serival in the fall 2007, Since those changes have
gcanved, there has beenna détente of sorts, All seom.toagreaaboutthapositiva
experiences students gism and the nstionel exposure thet the program has brought
the department, and tha tachnicsl faculty bave mades room to include the program in
owr ssason scheduls and allowsd for their studanty’ participation In the projects.

Thiis foll has been markedly different, and the account I sot down sa follows
fiustrates what is Josh Perlstein's new and unprecedentud involvement in the
studentdirectad shawe.




Scott: over the summiery Tom and Scott were
generated the conversation) and ] responded by writing m

him for not retuming phone calls to Scott and generally being a poor

[ was extremely upsst and said that since our phone call fn the summerho had
Desn extramaly acnacientious about commemication and had not bad any mis-steps.
Hohad not received a single phona call from Scott, as ] had suggestsd, snd felt apset

that [ had reprimanded him,

outthatl

I called Scott right away and Scott said thet he had emafied him, I

was under the he had called and he said no. dosm'thave
hkmwhdmnmﬂhmdu%

Scott] to contact her with mything that needed 8 and she would

koow, | reminded Scott of this and ha said he didn't number,

After locking into the accusation potbeen cotmsumicating, it seemed

quite clear that both Scottand Tom sen: in full communication with the stage

manager alinost dafly and for some reason (nﬂhdﬂybﬁhﬁmimul

her what they needed to know or even that they were trylng to Whett

1 addressed this divectly they both maintstaed thet S should have been fn
coutact with thers, 1t was clearly totally bessless.

It was sttha end of the next faculty meeting thet we would have s ‘afbor
seting about whether or not we should support him ta goto R
was understood in that masting that idling support, the students could rajse
the money themeelves ff they wanted to go. of this is that Thom Delventhal
told him that we would vots as & faculty after seeing the show

went
mwgmmwmmmwummmwm

Wemat as a faculty on the following Tussday (Sep 13), Befiirs the mesting, | asked
lmmmmmwumuummm-m&mm

gotngto mammmwmmmcuﬂmmm
that it seemed lks there

performance ared of the department. | responded, saytng
was resistance, but hopefully we can sll be and pasitive sbout going
forward. Hathan agreod and said we ju,twnﬂnuﬁhapodﬂnm

A moment laber he went fn to Tom Callery's offics and closed the daor. [didn'taven
notics until Thow Delventhel came by and mentioned it with a grimace. He sald that
Josh wasti't going to the meeting but that he was making his vote about Il show
e, Wbenluhupaudﬂndur,hedd.'nodhﬂ'udmmmahy.

Atthe meeting shortly thereaftar, the faculty voted to not mpport Josh
did show wp and was the primary generstor of the vota. N whole
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faculty voted for non-support for ACTF, excapt for me. The motian was made by
Josh and was (verbatim) “motion to not support [Jllshow for ACTF entaring and
use his show for Baly Stages”,

‘Thom Delventhal ws were not going to support his show. A couple
of days later, Thom thethe and the cast could not raise the motey
themselves becsuse we did not want the show repressnting the department and
that was infarved in thevote. ithad indesd been discussed thet way as a resson we

shouldu't support him, but faculty members (Including me) had forgotten that Thom
had already sbout our vote and thafJJj was planning to raise the
money with his 'wa didn'tsupport him. .

When Thom remembered this he discussed it with Tom C and Josh, and they both
suid thet & was fnferved i the orighnal vote. I did not agree and wanted another
opportunity to opposs. 50 I requested another vote snd Tom C was quite angry snd
said thare was 10 way we wers gofog to let the show go. Tsald I knew that was so
but ] wanted to go on record opposing. He sxid I slrsady had and | countered that
wehad not voted against them raising their own monsy, Knowing thatthis was a
second harsh hlow for the students, | resily wantsd a chancs to vote againstit. It
was notinferred fn the fizst vots, Josh started adding to the conversation from his
aoffice and sxid that 1f  had besn féllowing rules all along, nane of this confusion

inad. Then Tom Csald we should get togetherto,
or should beallowed to do his show, becxuse

‘This hes bean & rule in the department as ] have boen here and has npver
been obesrved or enforced. m:a.l:'wuhmmmu

once

bees moved in Dacember and how that was ancther exausple of my )

miscommunication, We had discussed the changes Josh talked about over

summaer right when we returned and bad even found & new dabs together

show in the spring(with Tor). Josh agreed and I commentsd that he was the one

who changed the show’s date. Joih said thet he shoulkin't have to be the bad guy

about moving shows because I'm not following rules and making sure sveryotie

 Josh sald be doesn't think be able to do his show but

to vote ot2 it and thathe didn’t

knows evesything,
that be didn't think he could make it to tha
think he should be inconvanienced by my lack of communication and adherexce to

the rules. I was shocked and Tom C made reference to voting an tha new policy
document for student directed shows, T didn’t know what be was talkingaboutand

be said it was in my emal,

- " me s emser b Mes w

There ] found the following:
IN THE WORDS OF THR GREAT BILLMAHER WITHOUT THE SARCASIM
"NEWRIILES"
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1) Al lass related Student shows will be parformad in A128 using only the
postable light board and rebearsal cubes. Students will provide thetr ows

. props, and costumes, otc.

2) Non dass related student shows will be performed tn A28 or the Torp
‘Thstre using the portabls light board o A123 or existing squipment (ia the
torp) and rehexreal cubos with students providing props, costumes, stc, No -
student show wil be auitioned, cast, rights secured or dates sec without
proposal paperwork approved by the facuky. No Budgst availsbls student
director must have a GPA ofat loast 2.5,

8) Non class related student shows to be performed elsswhete (Welts,
Blackbox, or Torp Thestra) with any type of depsrtmental br tachnical

support will roquire prior approval of the Mculty the academic yesr before
the pecformance. No studext show will be auditioned, cast, rights secared or

dates scheduled unttl propasal peperwork has besn approved by the faculty.
Auy budget ls subject to faculty snd/or chatr spproval. Stadent dtrector mwist
bave a GPA of at least 2.75.

%) mmmmmwum«wamdﬁ‘
season snd require toanimons Saculty approval and support, Proposals to be
approvad in the academic year prior to pecformance. Student divector paust
have a GPA of at least 3.0.

§) Any studeot divected show to be satered in ACTF will require aculty snd
chalr approval tn the academic year prior to the performence. The faculty
sud/or chair reserve the right to rescind entry due to substandard
produrtion or performance vakues or budgetary considerations,

6) Auy chow, performsncas, hvitad guest artist ovent, etr, will be mbject to
faculty and/or chatr approval and will not be scheduled or supportad
withoot proposa] papsrwork spproved priar t0 booking and schedultng,
Budget subject to fuculty andor chair approval.
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8) mmmmmm-mmmmmm
or rehearsa) confiicts without expreased written consent of the parties

involved and the approwel of the faculty and/or chatr.

breaching thess
understandings before mntmmhvh]mamm»uhd
cloarly been a previous conversation with Tom C and Josh.

mmmwmmmmthmwaMm
wmﬂmummwmmmmmmdm

mihdbmmhdq:.\e.odnammmd

aﬂumlw&hmmmmadmhmnhdhmhm
semester, with the return to school is & retutn to desp confiict and hostiiity,

spring
Then  dacided f was time to sknd you the new document,

This document includes things frow the spring that 1 bad written down before rmy
meeting with you in May. 1had held onto them, rather than sending, as things

seamed to have cakned down significantly.

April 2012

Aprfi9-10,2012

Nwlmunmm.wummmmnnmmamu
mesting yodsmm“mmmamwmum
with students that ave not cast in main stage. This final moment claxified that josh
mm-mwmuummmmmmmm
shows be solidly students not cast in the maingtage. This is what we went round
and round shout at that meeting, [ thought josh was saying what f just stated and in
the final moment he clarified that he was indeed asking for a mandate for stadent
shows, to which [ responded that ] didn't agres to vots yes. If what Scottsaysis true
mmmmmmmumuummmmn. In
MmMMM»MhmMMMM

" do nbt noWbeséd olf his BSculdion t that class, s :
:;zdpodmﬂ

OnTus, Apr 10, 2012 at 8:13 AM, Bartiey, Scott L (Theatre)
We did wote on this, 2 meetings ago it was prescnted and thers were no objections
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then. Asunderstand, Student Directad projects were created to give the students
who wers not acting in shows the opportunity to perform in a plece. The reason
thers is not techurical support for these shows is becauss we can not coroplete &
main stage successfully. stating students can not work on more then 1 show i 1
tineslot allowsmore to be involved and lightens the stress Jevel of those
Bot performing well acadenically. Thére also is a e o that proposal that allows

ameptions to be made on a case by case basis.
So what are we voting on now?

From: Skagusa, Shella (Theetre)
Sent: Monday, Aprfl 09, 2012 12:34 PN )
(Theatrs); Caliery, ), Thornas

To: Peristein, joshus (Thestre); Delventha), Thomas
M);MMM;MMLM]xMM

Subject; Casting
Hello esteamned collongies!

MMIMWMDMWMWGMMDWNM
with the "new casting reguistiins® (his words) that are going into effect next yser. R
mluhumudﬂﬂhmcumnm?hdwuhm

The directing propossls and discussions for next year are happening right now, so
think we should all be on the ssme page abott the issue, I think we don't bave a
Wueﬂummnvnshnmmmltmmdlanhmdﬂw

Best,

Shefla
May 11,2012
HR documant May 11, 2012

tomewitha

IW&M»M&:MML
mtﬂptduhdtnuﬁrudbmoﬂmaﬂcpbm
-~ Josh Puristetirthroughout the-yesr, Sho gaveme several sxamplss of these evants

and I recommended that she talk to her purents shout spproaching Anne

about these events. It is importanttonate 1o knowledge of my
docomentation of the event mvolving har and had not heard sny inforuation about

mmmmmmwmm.mﬁmmmw M far
as ] know they did not know from auy facuity msmber,
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Please see final pages of the previous document to HR dated 9/25/11 for contuxt for
thase following comments.

faculty begins to discuss forbidding my directing student
0 his finel project In the directing cycls (scheduled to go wp In

been researched and rehearsed during the previous
year), The Aaculty complatned that his GPA 15 too low to be fnvolved in shaws, This
is trus, according to the department policiss. Thase policies have besn consistently
WMWMHM&MMZMWWMGAL

Sep26
Tom C called me into his office to reprimand me for the tausion  have beeh carrying

around the department. He reprimanda me for disrespectil for stating that 1
memmomﬂvmmmu

He sald that he has made venn diagrams tn Jook at conversations with tension in
theminhis and that ] am the common denominstorin each event, This

department
when every cotversation for the past couple of weeks hat beet shout rendjusting
student show systems.

Sep37
[ﬂmmnmﬁnﬂwmmﬂmm&m "1t seoms like
you've got everything under control. Thersare alot of closed door mestings
wmmuwmm-wxmuhmmm
shows as ineetings in the past two days have all surroinded this issue,

mmmmmmmhnmmuum
chactic and dangerous for the actors on stage, Thres actors are hurt over several

srnent, Tha third stodent to be bwrt {s

ORTL R0 OIS VBN STONEnt I 1 oﬂw.lodn"qonhbl
fmitating her slurred speach, The students are quist in response

. “you know I'm just kidding you'.

16 students from the department, Whtls st the festival, Thom Delventhal tells me
that I should be carefuil becanse josh i “xfter the student shows” now. He says that
jmumbpmmmmm-Mmmmm

schedules and harming thelr grades. -

" In Jamiary, Thom Delvanthal snd 1 go to the Konnedy Center




[ )

February of 2012 I becaine concerned thata student of ouwrs [N
was gutting Students had been chserving this
in class and up. t leaned into 1y office to see if
was okay alterhe had a long session me ane afternoon (ndeed he was not

COPY

It has long been & policy that o students are cast in twn mainstage showe in one
semester. ‘This policy has been something we try to observe with svery casting
seesion (shared s the beginning of each semestor for just that purposs) and have
mada severnl exceptions to every term

When this first came up a3 & concern k: the il of 2009, Facalty member Keu
Mooney agresd to help me in coordinating casting of the student shows in the same
way. There would be an attempt to use non-cast students, and then when we
ventured intn the siready cast populaticn, we would look to the student being cast
in a part of the semester in which the mainstags which they were alresdy cast was
not performing, Also, we worked to “share” cast members in the student shows so
now one was belng overworked, 1 have continued this practics to the present.

Asthe semester wentt on [t did become » discussion ta the lacuity mestings, and
mm»mmmmwumwummm
student shows while cast in a mafnstage in the same semaster.

Mbmbmmdﬂumudmbmapdqbuhmdwm
Mmpﬂoumrquhbmdqwhmmhnﬂhhmdﬂom
whiich is not to overload students. ] was aware that Josh was sngling to mandste
this s0 that no exceptions could be niade to student shows and I thevefore spent
several mestings trying to gat him to articulate thet he was getting to that, He
finally admitted thet he thought ft should be raandated st the end of the third
Mmﬂnmﬂmmwnﬂm

This effectively enda my student directed program. Students upon finding cut they
will not be abls to direct and be in shaws st the sume time e unwilling to direct,
Aleo, students (especially as they progress as directors) want to use actors that can
already act, than stadents thet were not cast, for the most part, becauss they
were unable to effectively do so. .

tmmmmmmummmmcumymummu
?ﬁbwhmlwmbcj will Bot be sbout directing if student actors have no

1 called student counseling that day). She told me that she knew things were off in
the fall when Josh showed her a “craxzy” Jetter




how the universe worked and how he (illj had uncovered that secret. 1asked her
again if Josh had shown her the letter and she said yes, 1find this to be an example
Professor Perlsteln’s pattern of not observing appropriate professional boundaries.

In March Josh reraised the discussion of changes to the BA (see documentation on
this subject in original HR document). He again framed it as if it was urgentata
moment when we had about a week and a half to get the paperwork into the Dean's
oﬂiceinordermgetitontheqn-rlmlumagendabeforesemuufsmd.

The faculty agreed we should pursue it so we discussed changes and I prepared
materials again and ] submitted them by the deadline. .

In one of the meetings, Josh brought up again that I had been at fault that they had
not gone through initially and I spoke up immediately and defended myself and Tom
Callery backed me up. : '

Thom Delventhal reported that he had several conversations with Josh after that
meeting, trying to get him to understand how what he had sald was attacking me
and that Josh would not see it.

Thechénssw'emrhroughmthecurdculumcommittaemAprﬂanersomuchwork
and problem (see previous documentation) since November of 2010 and I emafled
the entire department to let them know it had been passed.

April 19

(from Thom Delv.enthal]
Hooorayl

From: Siragusa, Sheila (Theatre)

Sent: Thursday, April 19, 2012 8:10 AM '

To: Callery, Jr, Thomas (Theatre); Delventhal, Thomas (Theatre); Beaver, Cassandra
(Theatre); Bartley, Scott L. (Theatre); Sheila Siragusa; Perlstein, joshua (Theatre)
Subject: BA and TH 147

BA and TH147 have been passed

Neither the department chair, Tom Callery, nor Josh Peristein responded to the
email

In February I receive notification that josh is coming to observe my classes forthe

 DEC. He attends and does not give me responses until after the DEC has written my

611
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evaloation letter. T put his responses tn my book befors sending it to the Dean, but
10 one sise o1 tha committes sees them, - .
" InApril several students were jokingly commenting that josh was “up fn arms® in

* hisActing class about the fact that we were settings ofa
that they

particular play in my Scrpt Analysis class, Student
tried to explain it to him and concerned about
MMImmmﬂmﬁcx ::ndum.bmm'!

mdhw-hahnqdus

In May our office assistant Vanessa Clarke-Blighe reported that she overheard Josh
talking to students about how he didn’t inderstand what | was talking about in my
Practics cisss when tesching about “stilinesr”, She tndicated that this was with a
mocking tone. Agal, ] object to the situation of nty students having to defond whet [
am tasching to ancther Professor.
.OnAprnz.lmlnﬂnmumlmandmdamlmwMPml
on April 19th.

ON May, I receive aletter form the Desn stating that she s recoumending o the
Provost that my tenre track be discontinned.

On Tuesday May 8  call the Provost’s office to reguest an sppolntnant to speak
with bim and ask for fair considevation. .

On May 10 I sesk advise from Unton reprresentatives Caxyl Grestorex, Jason Jones
and Douns Stms. They sdvise me to writs an addendum latter to the Provost and
send remaining documantation to Anne Alling in Human Resources depastment.

May 11: T send an addendum Jetter to the Provost and this document to Human
Resources.

Oct9,2012
Oct9,2012

Dewr Lou Pisano,

1 have beexs working with AnneAlling for a munbar of years complaint
Iffied at Buman Resotrces in November of 2010 about my collesgua, Professor Josh
Peristoln and subsequent rataliation in responss to that action.

Thave been sanding materials (at Arne's requost) docamenting frthar ncidence of -
that retaliation,

i
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Some of what follows s continued threads from pravious documnenty, which
assume Aune has passed on and detsiled for you. .

August 31, 2012 ) ‘
At our fivst faculty mesting it s announced thatJosh Peristein had mentoreda
student divected show fn the smnmer slot, Student divected are normelly my
purview and, after mmch deliberation, the faculty abolished the summer slot out of
the divecting mentoring saquence, despits 1t's being the ultimats step in a cycle of
shows a diveciing student complates.

When I questioned this action, ] was told by Josh that it was different because the
Mdldn‘tmwdepmanmndkmuﬂcb(m"utmd .
the conversations in the last yesr). No ane else questionad this action.

policy.
Tresponded that 1was happy to have restored opportunity for nty directing
studnts, and dropped the conversation.

Seps

The admistrativa assistant in our department, Jackie Colon, related to me thet she
hdbmm&mdhmmhﬂnhmmmoﬂudmlwmh
returning as a facuky member this yesr, That bumanresources stalf pember
Wmmmmmmmm.umuhm
unsare {f] was returning this year'

Oc4

m;ddlm”'nlcwmupmn&rmm&wnn‘tmwm
would happen with my temmire process (after assuring e in the summer that |

L)
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m.tmmulmwmmm-mm
ouuddm When I brought up his stated assurance from the summer, be
widl do those things, but that he didn't want to misiead me becauss he was

unsure about what would beppen.

mmmmmmmwmmm
Clarios Bligh, tmhmuwmnmmu
Chalrwas calling with her (and without me) were unprecedented. Because he is the
chair, ] did not comment. '

0ct5®

m:mmumoannmmmmm
mhu@zmmmwnmmmmmm The
mmmmnmmmnmmmmm

despits my altemptad to maks contuct.
nmwmhtmmummmmumu(MIM
udhtmwuunedbrqhahummdm“wbmm

about who we want to be fn that pasition. There was no contect with me or
ofma tn the room st «li in the conversation, athough Vanessa is

myassistant, as were the previous UA's who have hald her posiicn.

Then Prof Partsteln brought a discussion of prevequisites for my Directing class.
A conversation sasued sbout 1 shouldn’t have students that have not talam
mmamwmmmpmmmmzaum
m(mukmu-mmmmm This
mnmﬂmﬂdmmuuhbmhmwnﬁmeuha\nlm

in & continued manner. :
lwwmmpouqndmmndhﬂu(uwwddnhtm

had not followed this bat that 1t had bess agresd by the members present notto do
by all the five faculty

0. My suggestion was inet by exaggerated

menibere therw, hmrmmmmummumm

in the sptig, which very clearly states that what 1 had fust said was true. TWo

mammmwiwmuwmmm

shows In different sections of the semester was okuy. Ths palicy is as follows:
CLARIFY EXISTING CASTING POLICIES

Mwmummmmm-nwmmd
sensester, Students will be cast in only one show per semaster. Exceptions to this
~mummmmhmmmmﬂamm‘

mainstege following
casting. muﬁmmmwuwmum
theapproval of the entire faculty on au as nesded basis. This is subject to all student

em "
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production proposal policies being followsd and complated and only
under extremae and extenuating circumstances. support for student
be considered end

productions will follow existing policies, Bxceptions will only
granted st the description of the production faculty snd with the approval of the
mhmw.rhnmm«NOhﬁklm-mupm Thaunks

you, . .
{sbove from Chatr, Tom Csliecy)
mmmwummmmmMmmm
mmmwpmmdmﬁmuwumhphdm
28 8 way to silenca me about the studsnt shows, The peperwork is puportedly

required of any show that is happening in a departnent spacs that nesds technical
support or staff from the theatre department, ]

"The student shows recaive no technical supsport, staff, nor' e it n & department
cites lack of paperwork as causing the main

space. Neverthelass, Tom Callery
problems aroynd the student shows. That paperwori consists of tha following:

Student Directed Shows
l(::sdmnkmlnﬂnw

~ Davideon 128
T express that there i3 no nfo on that peparwork thet is not on all of our calendars
Hics all the other shows i the season, but Tom ngists ] nasd to submit it before
anything can occur:

Josh picks wp the ball and explaine that communication is necessary in a department
for and smooth aperations, [stopped him and asked i he was suggesting
Mlmmhlhmymuaﬂmhmmmndhdom'tmd.
He continues to darify Tom Callery’s point in angrily insleting on the paperwork and
1 again stop him and askif he sess me s 8 bindrance to cormuunication in any way.
He states that he won't say anymore snd withdraws participation in the .

conversation,

Oct8 ' . . - eemem smma .

Ina rehesrsal report ( a document sent out by the stage manager after cvery
of the department matnstage show which is the hub of communication.

rehearsal
betwean director and the team that puts together the show, which includes facalty

mambers and students
M.Fmﬁmuwmumnm
me about turntable (a turning centerpiece of the stage) will be running.




CoOPY

Paculty member Scott Bartley bad informed me last week that 3t would be noming
by Jest Friday, mnmmmtmmwuﬂwmhwhhm

(Pculty and stadente)s
The turn table will be ready whan ftx ready. With out Paggy in tha shop, Ibave not

bean able to sitend toit. ] am burled up 1 1y neck with work in the shop trying to
Mhmﬂhmh%mbmwmdu .

Asfar as the chairs, we would have to refer to Cassandra. ‘Wa are also working with
finishing a tabls of the ssme color.

xmummmumﬁummhwmm
inappropriate tone of the response.

Y received a note fom the student that
commmication saying thatehe knew T had Scott for s spology snd that}
should give hin a breek because ho s undera lot of stress,

Lreceived no response from Prof Bartley.

That's It for now.

Fd love to meet with you when ftis possible in your schedule.
‘Thanks 20 much for your thns,

Shells Stragus

Dec3, 2012

Dec3, 2012

Dear Lou Pisano,
mmmmummmmmummmmzm Tam
mmgmypdaumm

Oct9n

Ammmmmmmmwmhmmm
heard no word fram him via email,
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Ha let me know thet he had no reason to apologise and that the Chalr of the
D Tom Callery; bad told him be did not need to apologisa. Ithen asked

spariment,
Tom Callery If this was true and he responded thet it was and ssid, “we never ssied
you whan youractors will imaw their lines,”

In the final document of the previous letter (Oct 9%) 1 have detafled the purpose of
the correspondance in the datly rehaarsal report, You will seo there thet that forum
i for discussing and working sroumd technical achievement of the show.

Tn October, student IS RN sccond
stage shows for was casting his shaw, Asnoted In previous documants, I

Jet him know he was under no circumstances allowed to cast anyons that was in the
Josh Peristein

second show of the samester (spropos to the latest b
then toldElthst casting with stadents from his show thet bad small roles was

fine and that they would work out a achedule,

Last week (Nov 28) [} came to mne ssking for sclutions around getting around
Prof Peristeln's rehearsal schodule, as it was proving dificult to do so. 1 requested

that MMMM,IIMMMMN"WMW
mnE LI‘Ml.ltlln.pntmnoutol’powu-mhcdheﬁnn!l'ﬂl!‘m-ulm-ﬂonl

cldnh.lbeanmnpmwmum

Decan

Chalr Tom Calley called me tuto his office to “set some things up for the possible
transition fn the fall®, 1responded that] would have another year of smployment
even if] did not recetve tenure, He said that I would “In case scinething else

happsnad, Hiee I got ancther job”. Then he procseded to inform me that he and
Peristain and Profassor Dalventhal had decided who would be taking aver

professor

which of my duties (department management and a shares teaching class,
Practicum) in the fill, He then showed me my teaching schedule (did not esk me for
classtimes, 23 usually occurs), which wes the same 83 ftwould have been (no

adjustments in my courses). Jtseemed there was no need for this mesting,
Wil send furthar updates as they occur,

Sincerely,

Shella Siragusa

May 30,2013

Human resoutrcas

[ 3]
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Josh Peristein announced in the fall that he was dolng a production of David
Mamot's Olosnta, & drena about a fernale student that sccuses an older
male professorof sexual Josh has been trying to do this showa for
mmmmmmndmmmﬂnwh-m
for ons reason or nother. This year besolidified todothe
%?Mm.mlemunmr
concerned, s Professor Poristain has bad two reports of sexial
harassment filed against him and femala students are quite vocal about getting him
5 look xt snd talkcto them instesd of their breasts”, With all of the cantinuing
Mﬁylhnndndbm]uhlmmwlhﬂobcthmhmﬁkupm
the Chalr, who knaw of the show annd of josi's history with students. More alscms
weat off for me when | beard from Josh was divecting the show, which
. would mean that he would be unsupesvised and slons with Ji for rehearsals.
No one on the faculty stopped this o called amy ¢f{t into question.

jm? deuM&WdMMMdM(MW
upon or scheduled by the department) confiicting with my student show dates. He
was apalogetic and telling me In the spirit of communication.

He followed that emall with one in which he guestioned thet my dabes for the
mmmwwummmmmmuh
wrota back emafis shout looking for the minutes i which that was recovded.
Andther professar concurred with me that the dates bad basa approved.

Jan 13 Josh apologised and blamad 1t on beginning of the seester confsion.

- WeekofJsn 28-Feb 3 In preparation for the Kennedy Center Amarican College
mwmpmwuqmlmmmw
reservations (after vohnteering to take care of them sa 1 didn't have to) 1had for
four ysars shaved 2 room with Joeh and Thom Delventhal at ACTF, ne the
departrient could not afford an additionsl room for faculty. This was not a problem,
bntlwnpluadwbnlwohdnmbyﬂuﬂ.wbombnmm
roous at the conference. So SGA was paying for a single room for me snd josh and
mm(mbdprnhoﬂmrhdnnmﬂmwm

- When Farcived at the festival to-check in; Josh had reserved - yogum for Seott Bartiey
and 1 sharing sid a room for himself. Thankfully | was the first person there, 8o 1
stmply informed the manager that it hed been an evror and had thom corvectft.

At the festival, one of the students 1 was cosching madethe Anal
his scencs and a

rounds of ths competition. We worked tirelessly preparing
manologue from the play Othello for the Anal round. The other studants were quite
hwadm&ﬂsmwnndmhdbmm&mamﬂuw

ons
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presatit when he landed that praiss, ' .

First week of Fehruary few days before the faculty mesting josh requested that
ﬂlﬂumhputumm This hes boen the ongoing conversation he has
to create confusion and discredit my student-divecting program,

Atths meeting on Feb 7% Josh hrought up again that the casting would be
confticting for student shows and his solution incinded ma moving my student
shows gut of the slot he wanted for Oleanna, The Chalr nipped the corversation in

the bud. 3

Josh wrote me an emadl that contained an outright request for me to changs the
dates for his show, Oleanna, because the student n the show preferred the weekand

that we were scheduled to go. In the same emall he askad if I would mind if her
directzd Othello tn the Al Ha sedd be perfect for it, He also
ftand thay bad informed bim that I

mentioned that he had talked ta
had been talking ahout doing 1t for a year. He stuaply seld ho didxt want ma to think

he'd stolen the idea,

hmﬁﬂuhwlw&m#w&hbnﬂdc
and told him to take Othello. He promptly told the students (and that]1 bad oksyed

1t) and even told ther whom he was considaring for casting Ho talked to the
stadent who'd besn working on #t and told him that (f he got into the BPA this
i ho would cast ims. The student did get into the BPA (admission to the BPA is

Josis decision) snd said tha show wasa go. 1t was the talk of the department,

Another faculty maeting tales place fn the heghming of March, at which diecussions
taks place sbout my directing classes, the studeut directing program sod Mring

[ 3
Tiew sssistaut for the professor who [s doing department Mansgeraent (this has
been ma since nyy second year here and still is my responsibility at the time ofthis

No one looksd st ma or acknowledged my presence in any way during these
discussions, despite the fact that they are all my aress.

In addition, seasan show selactions ware belng discussed, and I was never
WGMMwMMWNHL Tultimstelyjust .
vaised my hands and listed my choices. There ware no comments stall in response

to my sejections.

On Mar 19 Josh came Into my offics and asked tfwe might get togother and clear the
drmdukﬁhpw»ﬁcowmwdualmmwm
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11eft). I told him that [ would do that, but not until the tenire argument was
decided. He said that he understood and didw't knaw why 1 wasn’t getting tanine
suyway, wmmurumnmmwm
mwutumummwmm
Delventhal was my mentor]. He them apologizad thres or four thnes, tesry eyed,

1fhe had contributed in any way to any of what is happening,
mmnxw.mmmmmmmmmm
ons of two roles fora show that 1 have been hired to divect. He didn’t

ask {7 ba could audition. He ssked 1T would consider casting him. [ wes quits
surprised snd didw’t respond for a couple of days. When wa rsturned to school on
and saying it was just a whim and be dida't

Monday, ks spproached me

know what he'd besn thinking. 1 bold im he was very walcome to come to the
auditions on the following weekend. Thiswas a parfectsolution, ns thoss suditions
ware for the whole summer sesson and wers a call for me {since!
was unehle to attand fhe auditions), during which the artistic director of the show

an@lmmMmlmuhhrﬂd
The artistic director did not give me his name to revead.

That following week] was told by snother faculty member that [ should be
MhmwmmmmeMMnhm
student directad shows away from me because of confusion eround one of
had gotten a primary

Hehad approached me about wanting to do the show in another vesue on cxmpus. |
told him that we couldn't stop him from doing thet but that the palicy wasin place
to protoct students fram overextension, 1also told Mm that meant I could not
meator him in the directing process. He heard and agreed. Both Josh Perlatein and

‘Tom Cullery knew about this conversation and

He lntar schedulad a rehenrzal in the buiiding for his show. The faculty has no
mmummwwlmmmmma
histebesrvals, having set im fiwe of facuity and departmsnt suppart.

Josh wont to Tom Callery and procested that | was mishandliug my responsiilities
ww:.mn&-m;mm-.mawm -

Thestudent to e that he had been called in several times by the chair and

repocted
Josh to discuss this, He told me that he thought he should give me a heads up that
they were continually Jeading him back to to get him to throw ma under the
bus® about the whole thing, He would not and, ly, the Chair calied me fnto

his office and apologised for accusing ms of complaiuing sbout the pollcy and

o
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creating confusion, He sald that “ wesn't the one that was running into his office
mmmm&wxmmwmmmm

ammmmmmmmmwwmm
fact that ! missed thamesting due to {iness,
mmmmm[mmhwwrnmnwmmww
office hours m.mmxumnuwmmm The Chatr
mmmmmm-mmmmumowu
becauss be knew we spent our every waking momest there.

mmmmmmmmmnrm
recommendad me for tamre, mmxmmmmmu
with the news that be &id not want to Mo&dhnm‘m
who would phyowo,m’tpodqouﬁhhldh He told
as well and soon oll the students in the department had the

7alao learned In that mesting that Josh, who would be taking over the student

Mmmnmmmmwwmmu
productions, and that I would not be directing, Tom Callery; the chalr told me that
he had told me this n a conversation o December. He had not, Thankfully, {

documented that conversstion he referred to and sent it to BR at the time.
My mention of&odwmlwnmodnhmmm:umh&duy
mtdntnenotdm next year reinforces avidence of this notheing the

mmbclmﬁll.a]mﬁuorhnyww bad spoleen truthfully at the
mwmmmmmuwmmum
immediately confrontsd with

approached by Josh the fllowing week and
mmmc&.mwmummww Thom
wuwmmmmmwﬁnmw and said,
have to work bers, Shelia, I'm not Jeaving this job"

In the final weeks of the semestar, students were gossiping
and Josh having an affsir. mmmmulm
the fuvolvement.

On Thursday May 23, a collengue and friend of mina, who is » Professorin
Massachuselts, ran fnto Josh's wifl, Anna Dolan, who 18 an adjunct in CCSU's Boglish
Department. When asked how she was Anna replied that she was “terribla, My
husband’s having an affair with a student” There was mother witness there for this

conversation.

Wt
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4. Letters sent to Provost Lovitt and Dean Pease

May 10, 2012
DextDr, Lovits,

COPY

Imwdm&h-ddudmbmywmmum my evalustion
and recommandation for MMWMMM&RM

hmmmmﬁnmmcmmpmh discontinuad,
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pattern of harassment and bullying by Professor Josh Peristeln that 1 have
experienced since Janaary of 2009, As a rexult of this behavior I submitted

information to Human Resources on several ocotsions docuonsnting reports of
mnd harassment, In the winter of 2010-2011 theve was an investigation of

bullying

these allogations, In subssquentmestings with Professor Peristein, Dean Peass, the
Chair of the Theatre Department, Axme Alling and an AAUP union reprosenitative for
Professar Peristeln, Professor Parlstein was reprimanded for bis behavior and I was
instructed by HR director Anne Alling to report firther incldents to her. 1

' subsequently reported farther incidents of bullying and harsssment.

Becatiss of his histary, I became untomfortable with Professor Peristein’s pressnce
on my DEC committes the followitig spring, 1 wrotato Anne Alling expressing .
conosn about his participation and shortly thereafter be recused himsell

I am outraged that the univarsity has not affectively addressed Professor Perlstein’s
behavior toward ms in over thres yesrs. ’

Please take thess facts into considerstion of your decision sbout the recommendad
discontinustion of my tenure track appolntment.

Myw foryour time,

MADSEN, PRESTLEY & PARENTEAU, LLC
 Reprasenting individuals in Employment and Benefits Law and Ltigation

o
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Wmm' m
Nt 111
mm
Telephone: §8460) 4433466
Fooukmie: (840) 4479206
Jaogques & Parenfecy
samm
) .mz
Lou Pleano, Ohlef Human Resources Officer °
Central Connecticut Stale Universlty
1615 Sianley Street
New Britain, CT 00050
Re; Shella Shragusa
Doar Mr. Pleanc:

Pleass be advised that Shefla Siragusa has retained the servioes of
Madeon, Prastiey & Parenteat), LLG in order fo address an ongoing the
continuing harassment, bullying and retaliation from Josh Peristeln, which -
bshavior has been permitied to continue for the last three Me,

hes been harmed In many diferent ways by Mr.
duot. Based on our review of the matter, the has not taken
approprisie steps in compliance With siais and federal law In order 1o pravent this

ey Ko, n 5000, M, Stgues made a complaint 1 your HR
depertment reganing Mm’wmw:m..by:nw
Peristein. An investigaion by HR of the compiaint coourred in the winter of 2010
and 2071, Mr. Perislein wais reprinanded #s & resuk of the findings of the

then HR representative,




o
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mhmmmmﬁ:hmhmhmh‘m n the

Ms. Siraguss’s meeting With the DEC commitise fooused enrely on the

negefive comments made by Mr, Perfelsin o the DEC commities reganding Ma.
Shugues, Uttimately, I wes Mr, Perisisin's nput Gt diokaied the discussion and
the DEC Commiites.

ocossion
employment.
Amazingly, snd much $0 Ms. Siraguee’s sirpriee, b the epring of 2012, Mr.
to put himeelf badk on Me. Siragusss DEC commitise, No ane
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DEC commitiss. Based on the sbove described history, i Is abundantly dear
that the DEC commitiee members cannot provide an objective review of Ms.
Siragusa, with or without the partiolpation of Mr. Perisieln, Ho has harmed M.
mmwmmrhammb‘“"‘“m
members and influenced them with respect to their evalusiion of her
performancs. {/nder these droumetances, she asnnot posaibly obiain a fair and
unbiased assessment with the current members who would necessarfly make up

L 3]
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In sebuttal to the DEC rscommendation, I would Ske to polnt out thet my DEC

In Apdl o£2009, in the aces of Lead Gredis Lsiolty my DEC ovaluation states,

“Bhicils has taken o seversl new courses within the Theatrs and bas
sommped the American Theatye Todsy snd Directing conmes, Shella

has tanght many courses in the Department, the DRC encourages her to focus oa
Dow couses and programe in her ares of experties and interet thet will contisue

to iavigorate the carricnlan.”

Tn the eprdog; of that your (the time thet the sbove was writtes) sad In the &K of the
following yesr I taught n new class exploring First Follo Shakesposss sod Rhotocieal

In Apd 0£ 2011, i the ares of Losd Grodit.Activity nay DEC evaloation states,

"Receeds Rxpectations. In four years with the Thestxs Depactment she hes tsught
aine diffevent clasecs, mnyd'w,;hd amoog the lagest enraliments ia the
However, nons of these has been & new class and the Theatre DEC

would strongly encoumage ber to plooser some now classes 82 s0on o possible”

now condculom a8 yogular
:Il;n'tmdnnheot‘dn characiedising it ss, “nothing more than & loag waem-
In Apel of 2013, 1o the arca of Laad Gradit.Astioity niy DEC ovahmtion states,

* Moots Expectations, Profissor Sloaguss responded to the advics gives in the
DEC's omlvstion Jotter of last year thet sho cronts 8 now class, Fowewess, no

'was handod out at the beginning of the semestez, saleing concsras shout
the spplication of specific scademic zesearch and s coberent educational pln. In
additon the DEC would fike t0 sco moze concrete and varying teaching sirstegles
employed. ‘The committos belicves that, whils Professor Sieagases classroom
toaching Is strong, thers Is & concem she has pletesued.”

‘This November, 2012, in the area of Lowd Oredit dctividy sy DEC evaluatios stxtes,
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“Masts Bapectutions "{with s parsgraph of conslstestly positive cominants related

a8 8 cayot t0 their statement of 100

In nry tonure book I have ssveral letiecn that address sy teacking tecord and
have sleo beens for an exselience In teaching swand bee at CCSU this semester,

Tn Apell of 2009, In selation to my Directing wok, in the avie of Lead Gredit Astieity my
DEC evalustion states,

pablic
challonglog plocs of wack, Toapleed by the public parfoamence. Iospived by
P e s i g b ol Boruy Clo which e

dodicated itz afforts to the problem of sccenthility of cloan water in the wodd.
The vistbility of her production and 14 impact on Jocsl grospe Jod to sigaificsnt
Univensity outreach to the New Britsla commanity. The designers who
coliaborated on the production of “Water” with Shelle agree that she was 8
plossare with whom o work, sttentive to detells, and cociss i hee concept while
allowing the designens the freedom to collsborute. 8ho was open and sxcited by
the contributions of. sud stadent designes: ‘The student perfocers were
infsod with sothmeesm the process and thair contribution to Jt.”

In Apetl of 2010, i relation to sy Directing wock, 1n dhe ares of Zead GrwilAettvity my
DEC evaluation statos,

* Shalla s currently divectiog nlnuhpmhﬂhnof"b?nl’.bh’. At this
mﬂhhhmﬂdhd&.hm oncly stages of creation, inclading
the yital interaction with faculty designers, have oncs sgein been enocmonsly
mmnmhmuammu
Inspired in Sar Shekespears chass this fill, meking dsuating

- language not only uoderstandable bet cajoysbls, will melkw Lts way lato the
scheatsal procoss. mgupmw'nnmwwmu
wrote and dicected this fll was exxpuisitely staged, deeply moving and thought
provokiog”

Ja Apell o 2011, In reiation to ziyy Divecting wock, in the sres of Laed Gradit Activlty my

DEC oraluation stats,

* As  director (3 crodit during; the soview pacod), Profiasor Siragash leeds
ohd:mﬂmqgukmwﬁunhh and peovocative
design and production team M”m% CIM.




COPY

Pnﬁ-or&imh-‘tﬁhdnnhmw-lﬁﬂmmd
sxtistry demonsirated in that production. ‘The committes would ks to sesher -
sttack projects enrlier.”

Tn Apeil 0f 2013, in selation to my Directing work, In the arce of Lead Griit datiolly oy
DEC evalvation states, .

md?-hu&m,mmdmwh
. traneltions snd staging would improve her productions.”

In respones to this I have provided eovessl Jotters from In the profession, In maxy of
ma’:@mum.f

which professionsl designess, producess,

mywork, both srtiatically and with design collsborators,

This Noveber 2012, sbout ary Directing, in the ama of Lesd Gredie atboilty my DEC
omluation etntes,

Wﬂmhhhw&hwm&dﬁmd
well-receivod by sndieaces, but there has bess some question, a the past two
yous, e to ‘ Skaguse’s management of the necessery collabocative wock
‘with designers and tachalcs! saff”

Tn Apdl o 2010, in refation to my depertment mansgemontwork, in the ares of Leed
GreditAcsivity sey DEC cvalustion states,

“Shaily bas done su cxvellent job 1n the new scoe of manggement, Eer scticles
ldp-dnunmﬁﬁqﬁdthMdub—
mansged to coack the longstanding amissions of the Hartford Courent, ‘The
DEC would Bike ber 20 b a Jittle mose bande-on in the ares of House

Wbmhhh%d“f“mw ]

1o Apedil of 2011, in *hwmywmhhmofw
Credit Astivity ray DEC cvalnation statos, .

“Professor Sioagnes’s work es Managing Director of the Thostre hss
incressed slgnificandly this year. Hoc infiuance in the area of House

has been tromendons. Sho ovesssw (xnd exccated & Jagge paccentage of) the
teaneformation of ouz Jobby, instifled a scnse of profimionsiien smoag the uthers
snd generwted axcitement fir all our pocfonmances. She weots sevecal press
soleases snd asticles that were published in arvs nowspspers. Agyone in Ceatral




COPY

Conaoetiout that doosn't kngw that CCSU Thestre offers 8 thoughtfully
sggromive program of perfemances heto't been paylng sétontios.”

In Apefl £ 2012, n selation o my department manegument work, in the eres of Lewd
Grodit Aotivity suy DEC evalmation states,

“Professor Siragus’s work as Managing Directoc bas been steady.
wnummmmmmm bean
Sewes axticles poblished this Mht.:-ddumhmﬂlhhm

tmooe Initdetive taken by Siragum.
hmu&lm&dmsﬂdnhwwm
In Apetl of 2010 nty department mnegessant work, in the eses of Lesd Grodie Sctiolty
wsnotmentioped,

“Thip November 2012, ia selation to my department mansgement work, o the ares of
Loai Grodit tstioity iy DEC ovsustion ststes,

" *The finel pleos of Profcssor Stragues’s load cxedit i bec work se the theates's
Mansging Director, While she fuifills the specific suignments she's been given
and fast your she began heving stadents g to bigh schooks 1n o Aty mile radios
and defiver fiyers and postess to guidence counseloss, the DEC would, oncs agsin,
have liked to see mose Joitiative taken by Profeesor Siragoss.”

hmb&hhmomﬂbmwlu-'ﬂh‘w. I

statne in the ovaloation that T am fil@fling the specific ssignments as managing director
tut heve not taken enough Initiative, In the soveral yoass thet I bave dons this job, 1 have
o

ddad aninitistive to got OCSU Theatrs Department saterisls hagd-deliversd
-y L fifty-mile mdine of COSU, dons press

respond to and promots ous work, I recaive oce Jond credie

department, T acgpe that an that ] more fufly realise this b
unldb&ldmupdumkm&bmmﬁh
which most thestre departments employ ¢ full time staff morber, Wnuﬂqlll::

Afteen hours a week to sesist in thess tesks, who doos nons of the forementioned

8he does programe, donor outresch and budget sad webslte

moalntennnce, 1 a request of Professor Tom Callesy, our chalr, In the
0 2012 to take the load eredit sway from me aad Jet it be completely taken by the

tﬁ?ﬁm&. He sejectod my peoposal for ressons that he did not state,

In Apdl of 2009, in the arca of Grasties Sctioisy say DEC evalustion states,

ant




COPY

* Sheila’s profssions] wask includes the disection of “Blackbiad” st the
Massaciuwetts Chaster Theatre It summer and plans to disact “The Tamieg of
the Shrow” this summer. Sho etates thet she Js eager for her profossional cutaide
wock and work at OCSU to be Sategmated and foed kato each other.”

. In Apdl of 2010, tn the eron of Grastiee detiolly my DEC evaloetion stekcs,

L1

*Outside of school, Sholla hes put dgnificant snecgy tnto butkding the Angust
MMthLMﬂ‘DEhW&

we donbled the sumber of showe the compsny produced.

produced by the Angest Company, timo] dicveted & show for CCBUand o
pecfasslons] production for the Chester Thostrs Compeny.

hApddm,h&cmd'mwmyDBCMm

*Doss Not Meet Expectations, Profcssor Simgues has becn veey active in the
fleld for the last docade. She has directed for a umnber of thoatres, both

educational end and thoss produciions bave bean
1o Western Massachusctts s some of the best wodk in the acon. She

- Dewepepers
hMMnmumn&M’l&m&wa
Mm%mm&hm But for the year of this
roviow, most of wark has bean Socased on moving forward The.daget

(tha theatrs company shs Sounded with other artists n western Ma).

She hmﬁhﬂdmdhu&ﬂdnmdﬂdmﬂ
ﬁﬂnamm”hmmﬁm:mcfh

Lesgus of Regional Theatres,
The Theatcs DEC commends thess eforts end would very much 1l to see
enﬂimdmhhmpuflmd)«ofmwm

and profspeional
W-mﬁommhhwchw
‘Thestre Company for the upcoming summer. Neverthelass, greater visibility sad
scholacly sckaowledgement of her wock msust bo pussnsd, Tho DEC thereforo
achoes the Provoe?s lottee from May 2010 usging activities that ase jurled,
sdjudioated or peer reviewed. The of course, recognises the difficalty of
mmhuwﬂmum&m Since
Profcssor Siragnas stated in her mosting with the DEC that she is wocking oo 8
MuhﬁdWNMhD&Mmﬂ
that she publish pacts of it as articles 42 soon g3 possible, Flec pursult of greats to
mqﬂmmmhmmﬂmw'




CopYy

In responss to this, I began work on # body of waek that would both pecfoes and educsts
shout fiest foll, sround which I could base this wark to eventeally publish, Within the
mlhdh“hnﬁ-qhwu&mmm,
whore 1 made m art installetion (that included live performance and rshesrsel with
M&nudhuwldhmﬂ)gddﬂd;”ttww

MMWIM;M&WMW“M.
ﬂgw'm%xmwhuwdmﬂnh theyour in thestru axticle in
the InWMﬂhmthﬁqMﬁd
bo brought back to the DEC tabls, 7t wes the pesc soviow thet Dz, ead the DEC

prodnced
Asgost Cocipay sings backap.
In Apeil of 2013, In the ares of Greesiee.Activity tay DEC ovaluation states,

mu&mw&ummwnﬁmm
since ardving at ‘hae boon impesedive but inconsietant. The DEC 1
cxtramely to ace the xuview of Orime and Punishment, (tha production
Professor divected this past summer for the Chester Theatrs
flli:u “:::.ﬂof mn:::w p::-:ndl-lomw

ber 1)
huymm&m seked 0 e svidence that the
work with the Angust Company wes expaading, the anly reslews of August
Compatty's work is by the seme writer, whose seputstion Is not ons of »
disceming critic,

‘mm ot Bon mmuuaﬁu'h” oo S

e o to pusue some
Sacot of hee work with mm«um.
(which she wrots end 'ws pazt of the Theatoe's mainstage sesson

Monre specifically, advised to publish individoal

DEC, but aleo those of the Provost expoossed in two evsiustions lattars previous
to this yoor, mmm&w%&um
wbmitied anything to potentisl That 'was & book proposal
e S e e T =Y

any
mﬂmofhummlw. Based upon what ls incinded In her file, Professor
Staguse’s scholarly progrese has been mioimal.®
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"To address thess comments, sinea ey DEC eveloation in Apei af 2012 ] bave:

o Prasented s wockshop on devised theatre to College/Univeraity lovel directing
muummhmﬁummmw
and highly attended nerionsl conforonce for theatre educatoss.

e Contioyed work in the Dizceting arca for the Keunody Contor Amacican Callege
Thestre Raglonal Pestival. T havo besa Invited to bs os of five of the members

Collog/Univenity Dimating Profcesos, chosea. ftom the New Eagland snd Now

* Yodcares,
* Wetten s acticle and an sccompanying iterviow sbout the work of Ervin Staub

and Laudie Ann Pesriman on radio drames In Rwends, Basundt and the Congp
Mﬂhpﬂﬂhhﬂhd&nﬂhjﬂﬂdﬂ”ﬂl
Forformance,  peer seviowed journal, _

¢  Schmitted my wmammwmm
snd the Humaos st the Actoos Theatre of Loulsville (sespectivaly)-

"T'his Novernber 2012, in the srea of Creative Actiuily my DEC cvivation states,

“Does Not Mest Expectetions. (te refereaces Awgust company succcsses) Whils
mﬂbmmhmhpwaﬂdwhh
Mnn.chduxlnhmuhnbuhpﬁbm:w&m
a8 she and her collsborators would heve Bked. hhﬂquhﬂm@
sy e oo o oot P
past fivo yours, the
%hdﬂﬂhhb

&thduwdnﬂnmc?q
has recelved fom the DEC, the Desa 'Arts snd Sclances gnd the Provost In the

post sovernd yeats, the DEC would like to heve scon more concrate,
published resuits of her work. Thess paet rocommendstions Inchuded 1) secking

pmwamdhﬂmndb)brﬂﬂ‘h-gp&u
outlots, excorpts of her planned book longth trastment Shakesposss

Follo as pecformence gukde. Bho has dons nelther 1o any significant degres. For
mmmummaxmmmm




Moonm snd Watw, for pblication andVor elscwhere, but,
,ummuummmmnzn
Im

post-genocidal Rwanda. hhnm;dm-&v&mhﬂ
may not have been the time for wnmuwm
l”m

mbwmhm'mwwmu
wes sorr poar-seviewed, published romlts of my work, .

Since publishing in hwﬂd&&mh&m&nﬁdhmm?&'ﬂ
that }s considered the

Mrﬁmw sctivity
equivalent of publication, I argue mccesded in achisving M
dhm&Dmﬁ:hﬁquhﬂy. - e .

The Prootion and Teu:s Guidalines for the Depactment of Theatrs staioe in section
HI, Creative Activity (4.11.9.2) that, for tenure .

*Candldates shoulkd be profossionally sctive,
wamﬂthmdhmmm
(pecformances, dicecting, desigos, tochnical productions, desmaturgy .
and/ot resesrch, ete, .MMMWWMM
mmm«mmumwm

statemonts

. hmthMIwmmmmd
poce-roview sbout

o




COPY

In addition, in my DEC meoting, mecsbers mads commeats thet 1 should put Banmenier
Journal of Thenire asnd Pesformance Sato context 88 to is sapotation and Jevel of peer
zoriow, to meks the distincion betwoen it snd some self pubiished pamphlet thet
_ scunacna theow IN subsoquent convermations, s commlttes member
comasented that the journal I published the article Ia {s & religions stadies journal, I
soplied that 1t was & poec-roviowed, Thestrs and pecformanes jovrmal, to which be
that be had not really gotten & chance to got 2 good Jook st it. ‘This conversation
placs sfter the DEC evalustion was waltten and signed by the committee.

‘To my knowledge, the tenured in my department do not have & dagle
smong them, For foar of the five tevured profesors, profssions! work i

to teaching and 'workshops to univaraities o nos~professional
mm.:wbhh:kthm-ﬂuﬂqﬂ

g-ﬂu.(mulur
comslstent professionsl peoduction work, To my kmowledgs the only exception
that statement is the two mﬂm&%h;&

In in the past two seasons. Whils] understand & growing aim higher
hucﬁm»wwmwhu Mh&w,mﬂ

I have met the majority of these standands, I consider it unfiir that I sm
wnmmh.&mmm»pﬁ.muﬁ.

single toplc 1s the reasonlng for refecting my body of wock i thelr depastment.

 In summary, the following points scem dlesr:
* ‘That the stundanls beve clunged stnos my ling of the complalat egaioet

Profossor Josh Perleiein in October of 2010,

¢ ‘That my flfiflment of thess various standards bee been incramingly ignored to
the exchudon of the singlo standard that the committes s holding up about oot

mmnhwm&ﬁulwmg
M?&Mddmﬁqhdwhbkm‘zk

. T ask that you corislder this In your sview of mxy materisks and in your doclsloh sbout
secommendation of my tegre here at CCSU,

I thank you for your continmed considecation.
Stocecely,

Shefls Siragusa
Departroent of Theatrs ‘




MADSEN, PRESTLEY &PARENTEAU, LLC
Representing individuals in Employment and Beneliis Law and Litigation

Atlomeys Al Low
Hariford » New London

RECEIVED
CTIEMR . O e on 1651

OFFICE OF THE PROVOST Telephone: (860) 4422446

chqw.l.m
Iparentesu@mpoiustica.com

CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYMENT COMMUNICATION
Oclober 16, 2012

VIA FAX: 880-832-2224
-Dr. Carl Lovitt, Provost .oe L ] .
Central Connecticut State University .* ° ..
1615 Stanley Street ~ ° . ’ o .
New Britaln, CT 08050 - ' . v
Re: Shella Siragusa
Dear Dr. Lovitt:
Please be advised that Shella Siragusd has retained the servicesof Madsen,
. Prasﬂey&Pamnbau.uchorderbaddressmemnMMhammnmhmm
retafiation by Josh Pertstsin, and the Influence of that behavior in the upcoming tenure: -
review.process. As you know, Ms. Siragusa has been a victim of Mr. Peristein’s
conduct since 2010. Based on our review of the matter, the Central Connecticut State
University ("CCSU") administrafion has not taken appropriate steps in compliance with
state and federal law in order to prevent this conduct and protect Ms. Siragusa.

r . Backaround

in 2010, Ms. Slragusa made a complaint o CCSU's HR department regarding
the bullying and harassment by Mr. Peristein. An Investigation of the compiaint by HR
occurred in the wintsr of 2010 and 2011. Mr. Peristein was reprimanded as a result of




the findings of the Investigation. At the conclusion of the investigation, CCSU's then HR
repmnhﬂve,NmeAﬂm,advbedMs.Slmousabrepatanyfurherhddenhhhu.
After the reprimand In 2011, Mr. Peristein not only continued with the bullying and
harassment, but, aiso, began a relentiess campaign of retaliation. Ulimately, Ms.
Siragusa was forced to make further complaints (o Ms. Alling, who assured Ms.
Siragusa that said complalnts would be Investigated. While HR intervened In the
mmdabwmtsblbwhgmmmnd.w&rmaewas.mmw.mm

up.

. The first issue after the investigation arose In the spring of 2011 when Mr.
. Peristeln became a member of Ms, Siragusa’s DEC commitiee. For obvious reasons,
Ms. Siragusa had serlous concems about Mr. Perlstein’s participation. After Ms.
Sragusa reported her concems to HR and HR urged Mr. Peristeinto racuse himself, he
withdrew as a DEC committes member, but only with the proviso that he would meet
mmnscmmemmmbmsmm'smmwmmmmm
express his opinions. In the end, Ms. Siragusa’s meeting with the DEC commitiee
focused entirely on the negative comments made by Mr. Peristein to the DEC
commities regarding Ms. Siragusa. Ullinalely.ltwasMr.Perlsteln’shputMélchtad
ﬂ\edtscusbnandcommentarybyﬂ\emenwsofmebﬁcmube.

ﬂwemtalhﬂorycamaignhdudes,moﬂmﬂnhgs.npeabddhhbpom
Ms. Siragusa's relationship with the Chalr of the Theatre Depastment, Tom Callery. Mr.
Pel'btahalsowguhnyengageahdlmbmmommthemnepcﬁnenth
order to cast Ms.‘Siragusa In a negative light and dilute her parformance. The
mprknwmatMr.PenshhmoeNeddldnotdetermmmntmbulylngbwud
M&ShagmandHRtooknooﬂrerfonnalacﬂonlnordertoaddressMs.Sh‘agm‘a
concerns. lnmelastyear,w.PerlstehhasmadenahabltbvlsnwlmﬂwChdrofﬂn
department for the sole purpose of ralsing Issues conceming Ms. Siragusa. tmay
hhrastyouﬂ)atdudngmeﬂmpeﬂodooveredhere|n.Mr.Peﬂsunhasmmmm
one occasion stated he will do anything to cause the termination of Ms. Siragusa’s -
employment. He has now successfully made Ms. Siragusa an outsider In her own
'depadmentandhﬂuemedﬂnophbnsofmmasdswssadmembem.

Amazingly, and much to Ms. Siragusa's surprise, in the spring of 2012, Mr.
PeﬂsteindeddedbputhknselfbadtonMs.SfragusdsDECmnﬂtm. No one from
HRorMs.Sk‘aqusa‘sdepamltoblectedandprevmtedhlsparﬂdpaﬂon. As
expeoted.hlsvdcomdoplrﬂmsdaﬂmtedﬂweenﬂmﬂEccommeopm His
perﬂdpaﬂonhmeDECoomlﬂeepmvHedmepeMvmformeconﬂnuauonof
the retallatory actions.Mr. Peristein's negative comments regarding-Ms. Skragusa ave all
reflecied In the DEC commities evaluation letier. Interestingly, the original evaluation




mrmmwmmmmmmmmmm
Peristein. However, afler Mr. Peristein pressured the other commities members, they
agreed to modify the evaluation letter so that it reflected that the negative comments
were shared by the other DEC corhmittee members. The other commitiee members
have stated that they agreed to the joint finai letter because they were pressured to do
80 by Mr. Peristein. In the end, Mr. Peristein’s views were imposed on the other
commifiee members. Mr, Peristein was permitted to Imposs a retaliatory review
process upon Ms. Slragusa, .

As a result of the final evaluation [etter issued by the DEC commitiee (as dictated
by Mr. Peristein), Dean Pease recommended in writing on May 1, 2012 that Ms.
Siragusa's tenure track be discontinued. it should be nofed that when Dean Pease
. lqamedofM&SkagmdslnfﬂaleomphhthR.sheshbd‘lshaﬂdhavemmdu
woudd be frouble.” As of May of 2012, the HR person handiing this matter, Anne Aling,
had retired. As you know, Ms. Siragusa brought to you her concems regarding Mr.
Peristein’s continued bullying, harassment and retaliation, and the fact that Mr. Peristein
hadpmuredtheoﬂnerDECoamnutaemembenbadopmsnegaﬁwvlewpdnt In
response.youagreedtormewherappdnmenthhsoddngywdsoadopbdw.
Peristeln's retaliatory assessment. In your May 31, 2012 letier approving the renewal
appointment, you give credence to the negative comments in the DEC committee letter,
which comments are entirely attributable to Mr. Peristein. When M. Siragusa
expmsedhermmbywmardnng.Peﬂsteh’stﬂwoﬂmDEc
membem.yourespondodmatehadedWMmemmmsuedMMn,
Peristein will not participate In this upcoming review. Unfortunately, Ms. Siragusa
cannothustapmcessmathasalmdydammhatedafalmbehmmegdbhs.

The Bias In The Tenure Process

As you know, the tenure evaluation process for Ms. Siragusa will begin this

. Oclober. One of the first steps in the pracess Is an evaluation by the DEC commitiss.
Based on the above described history, It Is abundantly clear that the DEC commitiee
members cannot provide an objective review of Ms. Siraguea, with or without the
participation of Mr. Peristein. He has harmed Ms. Siragusea’s reputation, cast her in a
negaﬂwlgMﬁoaﬂofﬂweoﬂmDECmembemandhﬂuawedmemwlmmbM
evaluation of her performance. Mr. Peristein’s conduct also resulted In the Dean's
decision (see May 1, 2012 letter) not to reappoint Ms. Siragusa. The Dean aido has a
role In the tenure process. Due fo Mr. Peristeln’s conduct, & appears faly certain thet
meDeandsoeanndprovldeanmblasedmvlewost.Siaguaa'sapplbaﬂmfor
temm.parﬂwhﬂygmmatmeneandldnotevenapprmdm&mmm
assistance from HR, as noted above. You also have a jole In the tenure review process.




Having adopted Mr. Peristsin's negative comments In your resppolntment letter, we are
concemed that he has also successfully Influenced your opinions regarding Ms.
SImgusa.butwemenmumgedbyyourmwgmﬂonofpotenﬂalblasbyeoduder.
Peristein. :

The current situation exists because CCSU did not imely Intervene with respect
to Mr. Peristein's llegal conduct, take appropriate remedial action and address Ms.
Mm’smﬂ%hmmmmmw.aswmw
below.,

. CCSU's Legal Obilastions .

Under Title VI, 42 U.S.C. §. 2000 of. seq., and the Connecticut Falr Employment
Practices Act,Conn. Gen. Stat. § 46a-60 e saq., In response to a complaint of
dsaimuuﬂon.mwkmﬂmntormtauaﬂon.sudmsmacompldnhweby
M.Skagusa.anemployerhasanobllgaﬂonbhkammmpsbaddrmﬂn
mmmmmmmmamhhmmndﬂnmm”Mas
pmptmdeﬂeqﬂvammedlalacﬂm.Belﬂgﬂo-Malﬂeyv. Waterford Country School,
inc., 2012.wi 1597004 (D. Conn., 2012) (a jury could find that not doing an investigation
forﬂmmn&nbnotwﬁdmﬂymnwdhlorpmmpt).Themmdhlacﬂonmnhkem
different forms depending on the situation. In this case, while CCSU Investigated the
Initial complaint and took some remedial action, CCSU's remedial action was ineffective
and CCSU falled to investigate and address all future complaints. There can be no
question that the reprimand in early 2011 failed to datar Mr. Pesistein from harassing
and retaliating against Ms. Siragusa. Whidbee v. Garzarsill Food Specialties, Inc., 223
F.3d 62, 72 (2d Cir.2000) (“IFf harassment continues after complaints are made,
reasmable]lmsmay_dlsageeabqnwhemammhyefsmm )
adequate.”); Carter v. Chrysler Corp., 173 F.3d 683, 702 (6th Cir.1999) ("Faclors In_
aseasshgﬂ\ereasmabbnessdmdld‘measummaym:de...wheﬂwornotﬂn
measures ended the harassment™). .

Shortly after the reprimand In the spring of 2011, Mr. Perislein became a member
of Ms, Siragusa's DEC committes, as noted above. No representative of CC8U had
hstuetedhhnﬂmthlspa:ﬂdpaﬂonmddbehnpmper.Ms.S&agusawasforcedto
request that HR intervene. During the year following that incident, Ms. Skragusa .
complalnethRmanmberofmdmsbexpmshermmsmm.Pubbh
had embarked on a campaign of retaliation agalnst her. CCSU chose, for some reason,
to ignore those complaints. There was no further investigation or remedial action.
OOSUwasawammmuglmltmﬂandzMZMﬂwmpﬂmndhadnotdeterner.
Peristein from harassing and retaliating against Ms. Siragusa. As you may recall, Ms.




Stragusa brought her concems directly to you n May of 2012. You also chose nol fo
address the concems of retallation In your discussions with Ms. Siragusa. You did
advlsehefbmfmesysbm.buwﬂthadyqualﬂesasanhveeﬂgaﬂonorpmm
and effactive remedial action. In assessing whether an employer’s response to a
oomphhtlsmasonaue.ommmnmnsldarmemvmmofﬂlehambelmhmaed
upon the employee. Distasio v. Perkin Elmer,157 F.3d 66, 65 (2d. Cir. 1968). Asa
msultoﬂdr.Poﬂsheh’soonduct,Ms.ShgusaneaﬂybdhorappommﬁhMayd
2012 and her tenure process has been injected with bias. The harm to Ms. Siragusa I8

clearly significant and ongoing.

. You should also know that under the Connecticut Falr Employment Practices Act
andﬂﬂeWRls_mlawaormempbyerbdmhﬂmbaadnstanmployeebeeam
heorshehasopposedapracﬂeematlsunlawful under the acts. The Dean expressed
mwmmm.summmmamedbmwmmmmm
negative remarks of Mr. Peristeln, the Dean recommended that Ms. Siragusa notbe
reappointed, Mr.Perlsbln'srasponsatomehlﬂaloompla!nlwasMhemulddo
whatwerwasneoessarytoeﬂeeﬁ:abM&Slragusa’sternhaﬁonofemphymentm
then embarked on a relentiess and commitied campaign of retaliation.Clearly, Ms.
Sh‘agueaexpeﬂenoeddlsaininaﬂonbecauseofharcomplambHR.

As noted above, the current situation exisis because CCSU falled fo take
eﬁeeﬂvemndialacﬁmlnmeﬁ'stplaoeanddlosetolgnomthewmphhbuudeby
Ms.suammﬂm.mmmesmﬂum:ndhw«dbbdmmqematmnm
couid cause. She Is part of a small department. Mr. Peristein Is apparentiy astrong .
pemwlltywtnhasﬂnablﬂlytohhencooﬁmmhandwudeofﬂnm.smsa's
departhCCSUdmuldlnveanﬁdpatedmehmandtakenoﬂacﬂvammdal
action to prevent that harm from occurring.

Conglusion

Mr. Peristein has been permitted to camy on with lils retaliatory campaign for the

_ bettter part of two years. CCSU has an obligation to provide Ms. Siragusa with a fair
andhnparﬂdmvlawmandawakenvbmmﬂﬂ\atlsﬁeeofdwhﬂnaﬂm.
harassment.bullylngandretallaﬂon.Thesequoneeofwamsﬂmatbeganh2010has . .
been harmfi to Ms. Siragusa. The damage to Ms. Siragusa, with the result of a tainted i
tsnurerevlewmss.cannolbeundonebyai‘nplyhophgformebut The etakes for

_ Ms.sngusamdheraeadeni!ccamermuldnotbeﬂgher.hbﬁmfwccsumﬁnﬂl
mmmmamewwmeﬁmmmmmmma
tenure review process that s free of lllegal bias or Influence.

5
R
- _____________________________________________________|




| Pleass contact me upon recelpt of this letter io advise what steps CCSU will take
to protect Ms. Siragusa as her tenure case proceeds to decision.

Very truly yours,

b bz

-cc:  Df. Jack Miler, President-




HR document May 11, 2012

Ifailed to document an event in May 2011. Student came to me witha
report that she had transferred fo another college because been targeted by
Josh Perlstein throughout the year. She gave me several examples of these events .
and I recommended that she talk to her parents about approaching Anne Alling
about these events, Itis importantto note 'no knowledge of my
documentation of the event involving her and had not heard any information about -
. my conflicts with Josh fromm me (nor did other students in the deparunent) Asfar
asllmawﬂleydldnotlmowﬁ'omanyfacultymember.

s

Please see final pages of the prevlons document to HR dated 9/25/11 for conteit for
these following comments.

facuity begins to discuss forbidd!ng my directing student
do his final project in the directing cycle (scheduled to go upin
. December and already having been researched and rehearsed during the previous
year). The faculty complained that his GPA is too low to be f1ivolved in shows. This
istrue, according to the department policies. These lidechavebeenoons!shenﬂy
ignored since my arrival here in Fall 2007, despite mulﬁple students’ sub-par GPAs.

Sep 26

TomCtzlledmeintohhoﬁcemrepﬂmandmeforthetensionlhavebeenarrying .
around the department. He reprimands me for being disrespectful for stating that."I
wﬂlﬁghtyouonﬁxis"lnregardwthe shownothappening this
December. . ] .

- He sa!dthathehasmadevenndﬂgramstolookatconvmaﬂonsw!ﬂltensionin'
them in his department and that I am the common denominator in each event. This
when every conversation for the past couple of weeks has been about readjusﬂng
student showsystems. '

Sep 27

Josh Perlstein arrives at work and leans into Tom C'3 office andstate'ttseemshh
you've got everything iinder control. There are a lot of closed door meetings

- happening in the last few days...(with a laugh)” I deduct this is about the student
shows as meetings in the past two days have all surrounded this issue.

During Antigone rehearsals in November, there {3 an.opening scene that is very
chaotic and dangerous for the actors on stage. Three actors are hurt over several
rehearsals in the same segment. The third studentto be hurtis—
who ends up in the [N axd subsequently has dificulty with
for a couple of weeks. On her return to campnus, is speaking with




sy

Josh and one other student in his office, Josh responds to a comment of_i:y
{mitating her slurred speech. The students are quiet in resporise and then Josh says,

“you know I'm just kidding you”". _ :

In January, Thom Delventhal and I go to the Kennedy Center Festival together with

16 students from the department. While at the festival, Thom Delventhal tellsme °~ -
that I should be careful because josh is “after the student shows” now. He says that
Josh is going to go after the fact that student shows are overloading actors’

- schedules and harming their grades.

It has Jong been a policy that no students are cast in two matnstage shows in oxe
semester. This policy has been something we try to observe with.every casting
session (shared at the beginning of each semester for just that purpose) and have
made several exceptions to everyterm, © )

- When this first came up asacdng:em in te fall of 2009, Faculty member Ken

Mooney agreed to help me in coordinating casting of the student shows in the same-
way. There would be an attempt to use non-cast students, and then when we :
veittured into the already cast population, we would look to the student being cast

_inapart of the semester in which the miainstage which they were already cast was
*. not performing, Also, we worked to “share” cast members in the student shows so

now one was being overworked. Ihave continued this practice to the present.

- Asthe semesterwentohitdidbecomeadisaxsdonlnthe'bcultyineeﬂpp.'md
. faculty voted to mandate that stndents would not be allowed to be involved with

student shows while cast in a mainstage in the same semester.

Faculty members argued that this has always been a policy, but ignored my point
that exceptions are regularly made, with an eye toward the heart of the policy,
which is not to overload students. I was aware that Josh was angling to mandate
this so that no exceptions could be made to student shows and I therefore spent
several meetings trying to get him to articulate that he was getting to that, He
finally admitted that he thought it should be mandated at the end of the third

. meeting. Department Chair Tom Callery sent out emails on the subject and finally '

sent out an emafl with the subject heading indicating that he was restating in
already existing policy. This new policy stated that all faculty members bad to
approve exceptions for “double-casting” which has never happened previously.

This effectively ends my student directed program. Students upon finding out they
will not be ableto direct and be in shows at the same time are unwilling to direct.
Mso.mdem(upedanyuﬂxeypmpusudkma)wmmuseamﬂm::n '
already act, rather than students that were not cast, for the most part, because they
were unable to effectively do so. ..




k)
Lt

_{from Thom Deiventhal)
Hoooray!

I maintain that the purpose of the student directed shows (and my running them as

the Directing faculty member) will not be about directing if student actors have no
crqﬁwhatsoever. . .t

February of 2012 I became concerned that a longtime student of ours, ([N
was getting into Students had been observing this
in dass and brirging itup. Student eaned into my office to see if ll

was okay after he had a long session with me one afternoon (indeed he was notand
I called student counseling that day). She told me that she knew things weré offin -
the fall when Josh showed her a “crazy” letter that Jijaad written to him, explaining
how howhe had uncovered that secret. [asked her .
again if Josh had shown her the letter and she said yes. 1find this to be an example
Professor Peristein’s pattern of not observing appropriate professional boundaries.

InMarchloshreraisedthediscuslohofchmg.esmﬁem(seed_ocumentaﬁonoﬁ:
this subject in original HR document). He again framed it as if it was urgentata
moment when we had about a week and a half to get the paperwork into the Dean's

. office in.order to get it on the curriculum agenda before semester’s end.

The faculty agreed we should pursue it s0 we discussed changes and 1 prepared
materla]sggalnandlsubmittedﬂ:byﬁaedudljne. '

i one of the meetings, Josh brought up again that 1 had been at fault that théy had

* not gone through initlally and I spoke up immediately and defended myself and Tom

Callery backed me up.

"Them deenﬁ reported that he had several conversations with Josh after that

meeting, trying to get him to understand how what he had said was attacking me
and that Josh would not see it. . : .

.T'he changes went through lntile cm.'rlc\ﬂumco)hmitweinAprll after so much work

and problem (see previous documentation) since November 0f 2010 and I emailed
the entire department tp let thetn kmow it had been passed.

April19

From: Siragusa, Sheila (Theatre) .
Sent: Thursday, April 19, 2012 8:10 AM




To: Callery, Jr., Thomas (Theatre); Delventhal, Thomas (Theatre);
Beaver, Cassandra (Theatre); Bartley, Scott L. {Theatre); Sheila
Siragusa; Perlstein, Joshua (Theatre) .
Subject: BA and TH 147

"BA -and TH147 have been passed'

' Neither the department char, Tom Callery, nor Josh Peristein responded to the

In February I receive notification that Josh is coming to observe my classes forthe
DEC. He attends and dpes not give me responses until after the DEC has written my
evaluation letter. I put his responses in my book before sending it to the Dean, but
no one else on the committee sees them. .

Iri April several students were jokingly commenting that josh was “up in arms® in
his Acting class about the fact that we were discu different settings ofa
particular play in my Script Analysis class. Smdenthmpomdﬂntthey
tried to explain it to him and they just gave up. Students were not concerned about
this, but  was very concerned that he was expressing judgment about something we
were discissing in my class. . ) )

. In'May our office assistant Vanessa (larke-Blighe reported that she overheard Josh
talking to students about how he didn’t understand what I was talking about in my
Practice class when teaching about “stillness”. She indicated that this waswitha
mocking tone. Again, I object to the simgﬁonofmygqldentshavingmdefendwhatl
am teaching to another Professor. .

' OnApril 2, Ireceive the evaluation letter and send a response letter to Dean Pease
onApril19th. - .o ) :

ON May, I receive a letter form the Dean stating that she is recommending othe
Provost that my tenure track be diseonﬁnueq. '

On Tuesday May 8% I call the Provost’s office to request an appointment to speak )

with him and ask for fair consideration.

* OnMay 10 I seek advise from Union reprresentatives Caryl Greatorex, Jason Jones
andDonpaSims.'Theyadvlsemetowﬂteanaddendumletﬁermmpmvostand
* send remaining documentation to Anne Alling in Human Resources department.

May 11: I send an addendum letter to the Provost and this document to Human




' Alngl Anne ‘chlof Human Resources Oﬂlﬂ :

From: Sheila Siragusa [smsiragusa@gmall.com]
Sent: ~ Monday, September 26, 2011 4:58 PM

To: Aling, Anna (Chief Human Resources Officer)
Subject: documentation | .

Desar Anne, .

Just want to request that I be informed about any conversations that you may have with members of my
department about oy email to you. Jt would really add to my feeling of safety if I knew that I could get a head's
up 50 I could prepare myself for possible strong reactions. . . _ ’

' This morning had a fruitful conversation with Thom Delventhal reminding me to keep clear-cyed and non-
_ defensive during this time. 1 think its good advice and am making an honest effort to do so.

Thanks again,
Sheila




We'rea fewweeks into the new semesher, and with renewed negative attenﬂon
from Josh Perlstein, I'd like to fill you in on details from the Spring semester to .
present day. Josh’s relentiess hostile attitude toward me in the workplace continues
to cause megreathardxhlp.Agaln.lrequestﬂmyoudoamﬂﬂnspossiblew
alleviate the effects of this on my work situation. :

Sprlng Semester 2011

mrst dayback, Jan 248Il Iosh :Iammed his door prettymuch as loud asone
possibly could while Thom and I were laughing and chatting in the office ha]lway

]an25ﬂ1 KennedyCentermnference.iwaﬂtedupmmera]smden&inadrde
* with Josh to congratulate them on their work in the dcting competition. josh
obviously and abruptly left the conversation and walked away. This was '
particularly bothersome to me, because the entire faculty has worked so hard to
keep faculty conflicts separate from the students, . .

. Onmeﬂrstdwoftheoonference(’h:esday),[oslitoldmeﬁmhewmﬂdonlybe
there only some of Tuesday, Thursday and Friday, because there was no money for
" - another hotel room as he'd used up his travel funding: The conference wis

Tuesday-Saturday and I stayed there with all of the students (22 students) the
entire time, after thinking I was chaperoning with Josh the whale week.

Early Feb .Thom Delventhal reports to me that]osh said heis sohurt by what1
havedonethathevﬂnnotswpnnﬁllamtermln:ted. . .

Ithenbmught that up (not that Thom said it) to Josh and he didn't denythathc‘d
said it.

Feb 15

See previous documentation about a November faculty meeting in which Josh
pmposedhrgechangectoﬁzedeyeepmgmmverydoseto-theumesﬁer’sﬂnﬂ
deadline for curriculum changes. Overjanuary break, 1 had prepared and submitted
the changes to the Dean’s office and the curriculum committee by the earliest spring
deadline (Jan 28). The changes were rejected by the Dean’s office on the grounds -
that vast programmatic changes required a longer discussion and process.

1was feeling nervous about going to the our 2/15 fm:ltymeeﬂng,suspecﬂngﬂm

Josh might suggest1 was at fault for the changes being rejected and I was exhausted
from fending him off in the fall. He did indeed suggest thatit-was my faunlt. Ivery .
powerfully and clearly defanded myself, and suggested he'd set me up for this event
by proposing changes so close to the deadline and that I'd expected he would blame
me. [ was very strong in my response, and as Josh argued, people got more




impatient with him until Tom Calleryﬁnallysaidtbatitwas durlynotmyfanltand
asked him to stop. .

After the meeting. ]oshmldTomCanerythathewufeellngmarglnaljzedbyﬁle
department. Tom attempted to close the door and Josh sald not to as he didn't want
to be accused of anything. He continued to talk about how my behaviorhad |

_marginalized him and that everyone was silencing him.as aresult. Iresponded -
from my office and sald thatI had been frustrated throughout the entire process
with him because so few people would stand up for me in the arguments. He said he
was having a privaté conversation. Iasked him why then didn’the close the door?
He then began to engage with me. Josh and I fought back and forth for over an hour.
TomCallerylnteﬂecbedperlodimnyﬂmtit wasn’t true that he was treating Josh
unfairly. I spent considerable time keeping Josh from attacking Tom.

Josh told me that they (HR and the folks who'd been reviewing iy eomplalnt: about
him)ﬂnoughtthatlnﬂghtbedemﬂlnganypossibﬂnyﬂmtloshmuldgetmﬂxeway ‘
of my moving forward in my job. He said he had criticism about me before we got
fnto conflict. This is certainly untrue and heavily documented with Human
Resources. He said that he, the AAUP and the people over in HR couldnt understand
(aﬂ:ergoingoverandgolngoverthedomment)whatlwanﬁed.ﬂmtmy :
documentation was all unclear. .

]oshsaidtlmtinlheﬁalllreﬁnedmhave a mediated conversation with kim. I -
reminded him of my reasons (thatlhad had 4 conversations trying to resolve
differences, with other faculty member's present, and rather-than improving things,
his behavior worsened) At this time, I offered to set up a mediated conversation.
Tom Callery asked Josh several times if he'd be willing to have a mediating
conversation with me. Josh didn’t answer our direct questions, and changed the
sub]ect.ﬂnallysayinghewantedtogetbacktohiswork'

Aﬁ:erﬂaeargumentended and Tom C had left, Josh came to my office door and sald
. he felt like he'd just taken a big crap and that ft felt great. He went back to his office,
andreﬂ:medafewmomem:laterandsaldhehopedldldn‘ttakethatthewrong
Thefoﬂaw(mmominghecamehtomyoﬂiceagahandrepeaﬁedﬂmmemp
cominent. .

In March sometime Tom C asked me to tome and talk to bim and when I went into .-
his office he asked me, “what is wrong in our family?” 1didn’t know whathe meant
andsoaskedhimtodaﬂfymdhesaldcommunicaﬂonwuatanalltlmelawinﬂie_
department. Iapeed.saylng(aslhadsomayﬂmubeforeandhvedm)ﬂutwa .
should all commit to having open conversations rather than bustiing around'and .
talking about things behind closed doors. He agreed. Then after an awkward pause
he said, “so what should we do about it?” I suggested that we have a meeting '
. ,devomdmﬂxeissueandﬂlenhavomapeementmpmceedwlﬂmewmmmmm




and meetinore regularly. He said he didn't think we could find time for more
meetings. I was totally confused and said, “then why are you asking me what we
should do?* He responded thathe needed me and Scott Bartley to “get along”. Iwas
totally confused, as I'd had absolutely no conflict with Scott since his arrival at CCSU.
Werled.IaskedhimifScotthadbeenreporﬂngt!mtwehadoqnﬂlctandhuaidno.
lmldhin}I&oughtwewerpﬂneandprmedhinfandhesaldhejustknowsm’
don’t get along, ltoldhlmﬂntlhad_nolmowledgeofﬁmtmdﬂmtlwouldeeruinly
. go to Scottand clear it up. He againsaldttgatScotthadn’ttoldhhnmyﬂxin&

That day I went to Scott and related the story and he said he hadn’t complained
about it and thought, as did I, that we had a fine working relationship. I stressed to
Scott that [ was very opén to criticism and conversation about work styles if he ever
found our communication stratned or unsatisfactory in any way. We agreed that we
thought our work relationship was characterized by open communication. Weare
boﬁxverymalanddealmﬂmnydisagreementwemnmtonghtonﬂaespotm
one another. I really thought Tom was having some weird, misguided father

" moment and forgot about it. .

Afew days later, Thom D told me that Josh had said to him and Tom Callery that
Scott and I couldn't stand to work together and were so polarized in our opinions
about work that “one of us would have to go” because there was no way we could
work together. - .

Throughdut the entire spring, I had been trying to arrange a retirement event to
honor Lani Johnson before she left us in May. I have email documentation of several
exchanges. The only ones who responded were Thom Delventhal and Catherine

* Fellows. Thom and I finally arranged a dinner on the night she was being honored at
- a ceremony at the Hole In The Wall Theatre in New Britain (Thursday May 5) anda
. ceremonymda_glttpresentaﬂonatthedoslngdgyofashowﬁntweehnd
(Saturday May 7). Catherine, Thom, Tom Cand I collected money. for a gift. Josh did
not contrfbute, We’'d scheduled a four o’clock dinner on-Thursday night before her
award becase Tom Callery was going to another show that evening and couldn't
‘make a later gathering

A few days before hand, 1 suggested we have a more relaxed dinner after Lant's
award ceremony since Tom C would be at the weekend event and it seemed - .
unfortunate to have an early and rushed dinner on the night of her award
presentation. Tom C said he didn’t mind and so we moved the dinner to after the
ceremony on Thursday night. Josh was quite upset (I heard from Thom D.) because
I had inoved the everit to after dinner and that he couldn't go. This was the first
communication Fd had from himi abput anything regarding Lani’s retirement. Josh .
hadri't responded to a single ematl or suggestion. He didn’t come to the difner or
the ceremony. And, as far as I know, he never had any intention of doing so.

) lnthellayéﬁhmltymeu:lngmdeddedonp'roducﬂon 2011-12
- academic year. We agreed for Dec 8%and 9% for student shows to be directed

by and Beast to be directed by Both of these are final




. spring to go forward with

. aspartofhis con

' :ﬁecﬂngprojecgéforsm&entsﬁmtlhavemeanMmydke;:ungpmmonfor

In addition, in May we finalized inversaﬂons that had happened all throughout the

as the director of the coveted surimer slot for
the coming summer (2011) with his production of children’s theatre production The
_Themmmerslotistheslotﬂut_gouw
ﬂudirecwr.ﬂmthasﬂsenmﬂ:empinﬂmdlrecungsequenoeandithasbeen
supportedforﬂlepastfouryearsbyﬂxedepamnentasaparudpaﬂngshowmﬂm
Kennedy Center Anierican College Theatre Festival. This means that an adjudicator
will attend the show and nominate students for various levels of further
parﬂdpaﬂonhﬂxereglonalfesﬂvd(acﬂn&dlrecﬂn&design.sugemagement
‘the show itself competing at the festival). ,I;lsoutbfthiuummerslotﬂmtmy
mrecﬁngmnuesMVebunmmmdmwmpeuamewonﬂksﬂvﬂﬁrm
consecnﬁveyears(ofwhldxtwosmdentsweresentmwmpm:gmstaﬂeight )
regions in the nation and then won the single national college student directing
awardatdleKennedyCenterinWashingwnDC.aﬁrstforCCSU):

. This practice of the department supporting the summer slot began with a student .
created show, Suicide King and the One Eyed Jack, which was unconnected to my
smdentdi;ectgdsequenceandwuofsudxquhlityﬂmtmefaqltywantedw
support it for ACTF participation. In sulisequentyears, the summer slot was filled

. only students in the directing and the first year after
for which! n th ACTP support

.. wasdlscussedafmmeshowvmmgedmdmefacultyvowdmsuppomu Atthat,

pom;ﬂ;eréwasdiscusdonmﬁcmymuﬂngsthatmemerslothﬂmdmcﬂnz'

sequence “prize” and that we support the student show that earns theslot Josh

‘contests that I remember that inaccurately and that the agreement pever took place.

[ cannot find documentation in the minutes of the conversation but still maintain

~ thatit, indeed, occurred. Ipresentasevldencethefactﬂmtforthefollowingm

summers we supported the summer slot without rehewed discussion or .

reconsideration. The following summer’s JJJfwhich was invited as one of eight

shows out of 42 fa and student directed shows to go to compete at the reglonal
festival and for which 'won the was supported

without discussion. In the summer 10, r .

invited to compete for the wassupported . .

without discussion. - -

in
Connecticut) with a group of students there
WO his MFA in General Theatre Education at CCSU
(working with Thom Delventhal as his mentor). There had been discussion about
whether or not he should receive the summer slot because 1 had not worked with
-nmyowhsmdentdirecﬂngpmgressionandfeltﬂmtgivlnslttohhnmight
causeresenmentinﬁ:esuidenswlﬂlwhomlhadbeenmﬁdng.xnowmgthnt
Thom’s mennurshipwouldhaveaslmﬂardirecﬁngfocus(whlchit_cem!nlyhad)m

d directed a production of
the spring at




agreed that the slot, Eaving done the (st (for
Educational MFA student’s work) for the past three years. The other students who

: :lvaremunefordaemmerslotmhappyandmppomo(-mwvmm
ot.

The TD (Scott Bartley) and Tom
while divecting the department’s
plece with department materials
wuabadmgemmpponmmmwhohndwmmlmdﬁntmgrmlm
'l‘hecholeewentforwa:;d.nlthadmdiﬂomnybnnmycholum gelect the work.
Andt_l:kyur.ﬂ:ecﬁqicewasa]omtonebetwe'cnmmndvenﬂmlandm

were unhappy with the choice, as [JJlj bad,
ow the [JJiiyear, built a set

SN Towp Callery and | met in May and got deadlines to @itor bis -
build. He was asked to have bufld plans to Scott by June 16% and it was agreed that
&ehﬂdmﬂduhpmm&SeoudeomCmdMslihdppnmdy
Aug 26* and Monday Aug 29. 1 asked at that time if it would be enough time and

Tom C and Scott Bartley confirmed that it was. .

Thnfsdayuayiﬂmemyouto_ﬁmkyouﬁoryoufhelpmdmpup. Inldlotli )

n seemed to be backing off as much as he was able and that I would keep a continuing
record of anything and let you know how it was going, ' :

Ihndmgumeﬂuth&eeoﬂnuucﬁomnthe'nmnﬁmdsmdﬂnmr
. breakbegan.

Midjuly I from Tom Callery that Wmm
build plans for the deadline. 1immediately told him to
send the plans away. Itold him I would have zero tolerance for missing
deadlhumdmoﬁ\erhdcofrsponsibﬂitjwlﬂimmchfmﬂv. He apologized
andpromisedthatitwonldpeﬂmhstﬂmelwouldhvwoulktohm. Itwasalong
and very serlous conversation, and 1 feit fully confident that understood the
seriousness of his missing a deadline. 1 was determined to ahassie free
mmmmromcmmmmmwmao-

InJuly, Josh emafled the following:

UulyZZ)Hq.(andShcﬂamdmmwhoramlndmmmBmmdon) ) .
mawhatlhadwwadaboutwlmﬁdla(youwrﬂnumwmeﬂbutdmum
the end of the semester I dont think | had thought It through completely. The plan
djswnedwwhatyoudm.aunﬂaﬂymmupmdtpcﬂmcdmym

' mmandeMﬂkunmmmmNmmmmMnMdosnu_
make for a very coherent process for you.

- How do you think you and your cast woul feel about the 2-options you describe . |




" pelther want to promise people anyithing In casting. In other words they may think that if
we are opening things up again it Is because | definitely want to cast them... after
auditions it could be that you could just proceed os planned because | decide not to use
any of you) nor force them to choose or anything like that. . :
My vote would be to do It as Winterstock but that may have diready bee

* assigned....that way noone would have to be recast and Fall Faculty could have an open

slate for casting . )

Sheila?Thom? What you think>>>Josh

on-22 July 2011 12:48, I vroto:

* Hey Josh, | had cast my show in may because | had Intended to work on things
for a tle during the summer. | haven't done anything yet with them considering
I'm also trying to werk around llllllhow. | wanted to go into the semester with *
already doing some work in the summer so we wouldn't need-more rehearsal
fime during school. | agree with you, though. Ldon't want anyone, including -
myself, fo bs overwheimad and the malnstage Is the priority but we can-work this
out. Now | have a couple ideas... The first is that.| hold off on rehearsals until you
cast your show. If any of the four are cast in yours, | recast. Or the second option
) beinglholdoffonwavemtilmespﬁngsemester...lunwork.durhgwlnﬁar
- break if need be. I'would prefer the second option because not only do | not want .
to recast, but | want a shot at your show. So you letme know what you think
about these ideas. ’ ‘ )

. Also on July 22 I responded as follows I just want to say how great this-
conversation is: everyone so clear about needs and assuming they will get

- met because they are being expressed. Way to go Joshand[l}

I think we should go with your idea Jllland bump you to the spring. WeTll
place it wherever it doesn't compromise Dream Play energy or casting. Maybe
winterstock as Josh suggests. I think we should revisit that when we returs
with Tom C in conversation. '

Sound good to'all? .

Hope summabr is good.

Sent from my iPhone’

L4

As far as ] am aware, the only students that know about anything that has happened
with Josh and me are the two students who were called last year about the conflict.
Nonetheless, I have suspected that students have sensed tension between Josh and L
I deduct this from the fraquent incidence of students making negative comments
about Josh and his teaching around me. Students don't make this character of
comment to me about other faculty members, and I suspect they are trying to get me
.to comment. For therecord, I consistently ask them to be upfront with Josh about




l.

problemsﬁteyhaverthMmanddefendemgenerﬂwaysﬁatreegmbhshthek
respect and decorum. ) L
_Whenwereuunedforﬂnebeginn!ngofmesemesber,lwasdetermmedmbegln
anewMthIosh.’Iwantedyerylpuchtotalkaboutsu'engﬂlofcommunivand )
practicing interaction and behavior that is respectful and honoring of one another. I
-plannedmmakeitdwinﬁxenommunityofstudentsandfacultyﬂmt]oshandl
were in positive communication, thinking that strting with the relationships of the
leadenasamodelwotﬂdgoalongmymsetﬂngpodﬂvecdmmun!tqudﬁlnm '

1am in charge of the department practicum this semester; which is a requirement
for most of our students and ends up being department gathering meeting, .
espedaﬂygmundspedalspeakersandﬂxebeglnﬁlnsspfumuters. Announcement
and welcoming of new members happens there. I welcomed all and introduced ’
faculty members and they came up and spoke and then I gathiered everyone intoa
 circle. 1 asked all to hold hands and then'made a joke about not wanting to hold
Josh's hand, and both of us made pained faces holding each other’s hands and all fell
into howls of laughter. This was an intentional attempt on my:part to alleviate
tension publicly. I then proceeded to talk about how much we value the community
of our department and that our efforts to respect and listen and show up for one
another is what creates that community. I stressed that itis our actions that create
this and not some stroke of luck and asked for a sharing commitment to mindfulness
with all the new members. Then I had everyone choose a partner and I chose Josh.

1 asked everyone to talk about the most difficult momentand then the funniest
moment that happened to them over the past few months. Then I asked people to
share one thing they learned about themselves iri the same period. Joshandl
langhed so hard and really listened to one another. It was the best interaction we'd

had In years.

Iinclude the following account about the student directd shows to {llustrate a
pattern that Josh Peristein is finding an opportunity to derafl my areas of
{nvolvement in the department (reference documentation Jan 21, 2011 in which
detafled that Josh’s curriculum change proposals directly affect the areas that [
teach) )

Therelsahistoryofdismmfoﬁandannoyance_on&eputofﬂxemchnimlﬁnﬂty
arbundsmdentpmjecuthatpredatesmyarnnlatccsmsmdgntmrecwdshowi
have gotten significantly more mentored, systematic and regulated since I was
handed the projects upon my arrival in the fall 2007. Since those changes have
occurred, there has been a détente of sorts. All seem to agree about the posttive
) students glean and the national exposure that the program has brought
the department, and the technical faculty have made room to include the program in
our season schedule and allowed for their students’ participation in the projects.

Thlsfaﬂhasbaenmarkedlydiﬁerentandﬂaea&omtlsetdownasfoﬂo-m
mumatawhatisloshreﬂshein'snewandnnpreuedenndmvolvementmﬁ:e :
student directed shows. ..




menextdayamerﬂmpracﬂmmmeeﬁng,l“rldny,&ptember 2, we had a faculty

meeting and the subject of student shows came up and Josh led an argument to-not

support for ACTF bécause his communication had beén poor with

Scott and Tom over the summer. Tom and Scott were very vocal about this (which

generated the conversation) and | responded by writing [lllflan email and reaming
himfdrnotreun-nlngphonecallsmScoumdgeneraﬂybelngapoorcommun!aﬁor._ ..
exh'emelyupsetandsai@ﬂiatsinceourphmallmmesmmerhehad '
been extremely conscientious about communication and had not had any mis-steps. ’
'Hehngotrecelvedaslnglephoneca;lﬁ'omSoott.asIhadsuggesmd.andfeltuput

* thatThad reprimanded him. I

IaﬂedScottﬂghtaWayandScottnidﬂmfhehademaﬂedhim.-l ointed out that1
was under the tmpression he had cilled and he said no. Since doesn’t have
lntametathjshousa.hlss'tagemmgerhadsentanemaﬂpallofus(lnd
Scott) to contact her with anything that needed a response and she would let
know. I reminded Scott of this and he sald he didn't have [l phone number. .
After looking into the accusation that Stad not been communicating, it seemed
qumedeatﬂ;atboﬂxSeottnnd'l‘omhadbeenlnﬁdloommun!uﬂonwtﬂltheme
mmgeralmostdai[yandforsomereason[seemgherdaﬂybyd:hﬁme didn't tell
herwhatﬂ:eyneededtohoworevenﬂmtﬁ:eywereu-ylngmepnuct When -
Iaddressedthlsdlrecﬁyﬂxeyboﬂimalnhlnedm-houldhnvebeenln
contact with them. It was clearly totally baseless. :

Itwas atthe'end of the next faculty meeting that we would have a vote (after
seeing )lboutwheﬂurornotweshouldsupporth!mtngotoAm. ) 4
ivasmde;smodmﬁntmeeﬂngﬂmtﬁmngﬁcultymppomdumdemwnldm
the money themselves if they wanted to go. Proof of this is that Thom Delventhal
went to JJJland told him that we would vote as a factlty after seeing the show
.and that they would have to raise the money themselves if we voted not to support.

We met as a faculty on the following Tuesday (Sep 13). Before the meeting, I asked
Ioshabautsometlﬂnglnhisoﬁceandhehadmdephe comment “I think we gre
going to have a fight on our hands® referring to Tom.C and Scott about the
"performance area of the department. Iresponded; saying that it seemed like there
wasrwismnee,buthopeﬁmywecanaubeupﬁontmdposlﬂveabontgoing
forward. Hethgnagi'eedandsaldweshoNd-justconﬂnueMﬂxa'poddvem

A moment later he went in to Tom Callery’s office and closed the door. 1 didn'teven
noﬁeeuni;ﬂl‘hombelvenlhalcamebyandmenﬂonedltwb:ha;ﬂm&ce. He said that
]oshwasn’tgomgmthemeeﬂngbutthathewumahnghisvotéabon;-lhow .
clear. When]qshopenedtlgedoor,hesald.'goodluckf’andhughodtoTomCana’y. :

At&emeeﬂngshbrﬂytherea&er.théﬁaﬂtywudmnotmpport-show. Josh
did show up and was the primary generator of the vote. Nonetheless, the whole




- show in the spring(with Tom). Jo:

faculty voted for non-support for ACTF, except for me. The motion was made by
Ioshandwa,s[va%mﬂonmnotsupport-showform'l?enuﬂngand

- use his show for

Thom Delventhal told JJjjjjif that we were not going to support his show. A couple
of days later, Thom told JilillJthat he and the cast could not raise the money
ﬂxemselvesbmusemdidnptwantﬂleshowrépmenﬂngﬂle department and
that was inferred in the vote. Ithad indeed been discussed that way as areason we
shouldn’t support him, but faculty members (including me) had forgotten that Thom

‘had already told {Jfjabout our vote and that JJjjjjjjwes planning to raise the -

money with his castif we didn’t sipporthim. -
When Thom remiembered this he discussed it with Tom C and Josh, and they both

. said that it was inferted in the original vote. Idid not agree and wanted another

opportunity to oppose. SO-lrequestadanoﬂlervoteandTomaasqultnngryand
said there vis no way we were going to let the show go. 1said I kaiew that was 50
but I wanted to go on record opposing. He said ] already had and I countered that
we had not voted against them raising their own money. Knowing thatthiswasa -
secondhnnl;blowforﬁxemldents,lreaﬂywanwdachincewmteagamtit It -
wasnotlnferredintheﬁrstvote.Joshstarnedaddlngtotheconversaﬂonﬁ'omhls
oﬂ!ceandsaldﬂmtlflhadbeenfollowlnsnﬂesallalong.noné‘ofthlsconfusion

would’vehappened. Ther Tom C said we should get together to vote about whether
or no*sbould be allowed to do his show, because his GPA is down.

This has been a rule in the department as long as 1 have been here and has never
‘once been observed or enforced. Tom C then added that he didn't know shows had
been moved in December and how that was another example of my .
miscommunication. We had discussed the changes Josh talked about over the
summer right when we returned and had even found a new date together for I
sh agreed and | commented that he was the one
who changed the show’s date. Josh said that he shouldn’t have to be the bad guy
about moving shows because 'm not following rules and making sure everyone
knows everything, josh said he doesn’t think [llllshould be able to do his show but
thiat he didn't think he could make it to the meeting to vote on it and thathe didn’t
think he should be inconvenienced by iny lack of communication and adherenceto
the rules. lwasshochedandTomCmadereferenumvodngonﬂlenewponq
document for student directed shows. 1 didn't know what he was talking about and
he said it was tn my email.

There I found the following:

mmwonnsormmrnmmmmmommmcm
: “NEW RULES”




1) All class related Student shows will be pecformed in A123 tsing only the portable
" Yight board and rehearsal cubes. Stadents will provido their 6wn props, and

2) Non class related stadent shows will be pecformed fn A123 or the Torp Theatre
uﬁngﬁepuhblelighbondinll%meﬂsﬁngequipmmaﬁqm)md
rehamlcnlguwithmdmlxovﬁingprops,eommu,mmmm-
wﬂlbemdiﬁoncd.us&ﬁgﬂsmedordmmwiﬂmutpmppulw
approved by the faculty. No Budget aveilable student director nxust have & GPA
of at least 2.5. ' . o)

3) Nondlssmhtedsmdeutshowimbepdomedalsewhﬁc(de,Bhokbbx.or
Tmplhate)wﬂhmytypeofdepummlbrmhniwlsmmtwﬂlteqm
prior approval of the faculty the academié year before the performance. No
student show will be anditioned, cast, rights secured or dates schoduled wntil
propoulpapawotkhasbemapprovadbyﬂmfacuhy. Any budget is subject to
faculty antl/or cheir approval. Student director must have a GPA of at least 2.75.

4) -Any mainstage student directed show will bo troated as such as part of the seescn
and require unanimous fculty approval and support. Proposals to be approved in
mmmwmmpmmsm&mmmmmom
Jeast 3.0, ) ) . ,

'S) AnylmdmtdinctadnbuwtobemdinACI'Fwﬂlrequinﬁqnhymdehdr )
approvalinﬂmwadanicyeupiortothcpafonpm The faculty and/or chair
mﬂ:qﬂg!ntomdndmydueméubmdardpmdncﬁmmpuﬁmnm
values or budgetary considerations.

6) Anyshow.perﬂ:rmminvitedguestuﬁstmmwmbombjmwﬁmhy
and/or chair spproval gnd will not be scheduled or supparted without proposel |
paperwork spproved prior to booking and scheduling. Budget subject to faculty
and/or chair spproval. o

7) To be inctuded in my student production proposl; stadent diroctor with GPA, .
shownmgeutsigdm,ﬁme&mhmmdnhpmmdlmﬁmedﬁf .




8) No Stndent show will interfere with 8 mainstage show with cast, crew, time of
rehemdwnﬂimmmwwdmmdﬁepuﬁahvolwdmd
ﬂ:oappmvalofthefamltyandlorchm

' ‘There had been no Incidence of me not communicatlng or breaching these
understandings before the argumentwewerehavlng]ustnﬂzatmoment, s0 ltlu.d
clearly been a previous conversation with Tom C and Josh.

Thom Delvethal.whowasln&e argument about the vote when the documént was
brought up, said thathe read the document and that 1 hadn’tbrokenanyofﬂmse
rules. o

Atthatpointtmaﬂzedthat,lnfamwhﬂetbhgsseemedwhavacalmeddownm&e
spﬂngsemester,vdﬂlﬁteremrntoschoolisammwdeepwnﬂictandhoxﬁuw
'Ihenldeddedttwasﬂmetosendyouthenewdocument

This document includes ﬂungs from the sprlngﬂmt 1 had.ertben down before my
meeting with you in May. lhadheldontoﬁxmraﬁxerthansending.uth!ngs
seemed to havé almed down significantly.

Write a conduding pa.ramph that sums up How you feel you are be!ngtremdby
Josh (and perhaps Tom C7) using key words like uncomfortable and unsafe




Hi Annal

I'rm 50 sorry | didn't call you to give you an update about the practicum rehearsal. Josh sald
you were wondering why | didn't call and tell you so you could prepare for the Dec 2nd class.
I'm so sorry about that, but | didn’t even know you were walting on that. :

So every group c¢hose a play and it sounded like they were quite happy with them (based on
thelr animation in rehearsing). There were lofs of questions about whether they could use
other class membérs for chorus in thelr scene. { wasn't sure what to respond, 80 | said |
thought that would be possible, but that they should be prepared with some choice to do it
with fewet people (those just In their group). : '

"Thitik that's itl Let me know if you need/want more.

Best,
Sheila
And then I right away called the house and left o messago saying the same thing.

The next day I received this from Josh:

Shella .
1t would be better if you contact Anna by emall.
~ Josh . .

Imﬁdamsponuﬁvamaﬂghtawsyﬂut,hohﬂdﬁ'tbeﬂmﬁndatm mdevuyﬂmswuﬁne.

Decopitier 3




OnDeqs".wehadaﬁ:nfmnymeeﬁngmdimxmﬁ,nowingm:

rmm'mm(mmwmmmmmmmmmmmhmm
(mmmmsﬂmm.

T asked if he and Ken and Lani had doe that together and he szid yes. A moment later Lani said she hadn’t
seen or adjusted the document in years. Josh did not comment. . :

memmmwxmhedycmcmwﬂnymwmmofﬂsmdﬁo
_oonfame(notmwhyandlﬁdn'tnk). ’ .

Mbeﬁmmdimumﬁmtumchmgundugainismmqﬁnuyhﬂmmnﬁm I stop him to
dnﬁfyﬁﬁmudhlﬁngaboﬁﬁoappﬁdMﬁh&ayh(ﬁmﬁﬂMmuﬁu)mdbuy,“mﬁd
theatre?* (locking completely confused). Impmdbyharﬁngbﬂtomoﬂlﬂmeaingmdhauylﬂmhah-
talking more sbout Boal and social justice theater (looking at me ke I'm totally stupid). 1just drop the sbject.

Immmwmmmmmwmmmmmwwwmumwm
16®. Poopl: indicats feeling nervous about fhe fime crunch and Josh laughs and pauses. Bveryone is quietly
-lookingathimto-eeifhe'igoingmuplﬁnhislmmmdhsm‘ﬂaepmhhois.doiuﬂngudﬁm
(ma)hubdomewo&boﬁnsdoﬂ:unhoohmdaednswhnﬁdrpmm are” Tome, hois
mmwMofmmhmmmmpmmhmmwm

' wmmmmwmapmummm .

in the summer) and Tom Callexy says, “Well Ken directed for years” and Josh responds that he had
experience and so that’s different. He said if you're going to wmmmmmmm

Josh makes aﬁgmmmmmm&emblmofﬁe@mmnnﬁngb got an additional room at tho
Kmdycmmbmlommdlm’tnhmamm(ﬁaMOfmmmmm
amommdﬁﬁnymitsjnst]oshmdl)ﬂ:isyuforobvimmm. Bvuymobmnheditoﬂmdoﬁdm’d
find the money. Heﬁmﬁdmwﬂh&muuadqgmmpmmmmmmh

onemdﬂlubmhemdlmnldn’tbeﬂmeinﬁemmomtogdhﬂ. Astonished, I ssid, “with stodents?” - -
. . § .

#




and he said, “yes”
Nooneseamdtolmow‘whattouysoitwudmpped.
December 7;

I went out 6f my‘office to phchuhbaﬁquloshwulﬁnsbﬂnwuﬁmmmymm

: behindhim(bohd]ihhawumedinmidmmcthoughmdoor). He was leaning against the door,
propping it open. almmmmﬁmmmmmm(mmw)muy,
“syrow. You're welcome”. By the time he uidﬂutlwuaboutmﬁetmfmﬁhim.nlpmdedbgot
hﬁtlﬁmbm[didn’tknowhowtohmﬂemhobviamhosﬁﬁtyhﬁoﬁofm. Then I heard him ssy
toﬂ:umdenh,“youopenﬂmdoorﬁouomme.ﬂnleastﬂwyooulddoil say thank yon".

Ihadsddﬁmamﬂmﬂmwmhgofbwﬁuyhgﬁoﬁkbwkwuc@dndﬁemuﬁnswn
11:30 axty for the pexformance parade. ’

Student directing pieces wero schoduled for the. evening of the samo day, the Itb. Tn light of theso schadule
chmgu,wededdedto:ehmeﬂmmchqguﬁnﬂwlhowduﬂnsﬁemﬁmm Sowewero
scheduled foTeet from 3-4:30 and o perform at SPM. The dates of that pecformance bad been published sinos
September. '

This same week Ihad agreed, #Jonh’smquect,ﬁntwemoat(inspibofhil eextier conoems) from 2-4 PM én
Tuse Dec 14® for ACTF (the Kennody Center Conference). . .

On Dec 7® I réceived the following exnail:




Shelfa and Thom
Because, our Performanca faculty meeting did not happen I have a few announcements/requests

HeasewﬂteanmdofsemmﬂahnﬂméfaﬂBFAmdenismudingmdissand performance work as well
asgoals.Iwwldllkem.smdmseoutassoonasposue . )

Irawnmma\dmt-beadmmdtoﬂnprogrambasedonrdsmkln—

There wil be an Informal takback for Speli Bee at 3:30 on December 9. This wil be Immediately folicwed
byanIreneRyanmeeﬂng.Candldateshmallbemreglsha'edandmmtwbm!tmdﬂcsbyﬂ/ﬂ. .
Makemreyourcandldmmmu\ls.ltlsforlnfonnaﬁonal purposes.fmerewmbeZoMmeamgs.

OnewlllMheweekbdweanmHandﬁeoﬂuwﬂlbeﬁnMondaybd’ommlmeﬂbe
mawngmysudmsovsmebmkmswmwmylastmmrmmmmmklwmh

smdentswillbeparﬂdﬁaﬂnghaanorkmownseﬁ\elastweekmMay.Thbwmuuﬂmm by TU

That's all for now.
Josh

m“kmakymfmeeﬁhshc'lpeah ofis ACTF.

)
So I went into Josh's office and asked him why he had reschoduled this without consulting ms, and be said that
studeﬁtshadbeenvu’ynpntﬂutﬁ_:nwasmtﬂkbwkmdnhemamdit

L 461d him that the ACTF teeting had already been called for Tucs 14® and he said he didn’t care that ho

IWmmmmymwm@mmmhuhmmmmaummmwu .
o1 to maks cither meting (my directing students inoluded all of the Spelling Bee pérfitmers and all of the

He said they have to be there.
' I conldn’t cancel the stiging of the show and I told him so.

Hcre'spondedbyuyhzﬁmtﬂﬁsiswhatmwlﬁng!upinﬂwdmm 'Ijhntlem’tjnltgochmging
somahinghﬂnwhndﬂnwiﬂ:mﬁmnlﬁnsmmﬂdnwhohnmdbyﬁddedﬁm I took that nots .
mmwmbmmmmmmmhmspmsamwmm
MWMW:&M&M&MM(%MWM;M)&M

' mwl'mmm.mmmsmmmmpﬁm@mmmmm

ACTE. Nooomnnﬂodinnb'rhamnorl .




December §:
Tosh walked by my offioe docr stnd mads pig snorting sounds agsin.

.

. mmmmmam.mq‘mmmm'wmmmmm; '
cofetence, ssying that Josh bad just waved hex away n office when she came in to ask him sbout it end
sdd."ﬁd:tnﬂyon’mﬂ:ﬂlustofmypﬁndﬁu" .

She was angry whed she approached me mdlpoeeodedwimaanemho:detb not provoke Josh or
g’vo_huﬁai:npmsionlwuaidingwithhahaiﬁcimofhilwﬁonl. .

- Thnmyommmﬁdmﬁuﬂﬁlm&mehuhppmeddmelndwdﬁmymmhﬁm:
Ihwmdmumchomﬁomuchnhowmmpﬁeinmompeﬁﬁm

‘We divide them up. Ifﬂiesmdmmchmﬁomuhowwedi:ecbd.wemmnﬁnmyﬁdrm i
MmoMMMOfmmmmmmmbbm“mmm .
coinhofﬂ:rm@aﬂsmdma:pecbdtohelpﬂmnpmpmﬁ)rﬂmfsﬁvﬂ. ‘We havo always been extremnely
mdﬁﬂ:ﬂ:emAMEdwiﬁmmﬁuﬂmmmdmm%medmhbmnpmmoﬁudm
orunhaveﬂuhmmehcdbyamﬂmpmﬁamifﬂmmmh.wmin&otovmhmmofuleoadut
geparats sossions. Haﬂdm@um-mm&emmmmmwmmwoﬁdﬂm
know and get their okay. . .

With this in mind, I explained to [JlJhst sho wonld have to asic Josh and that if he's ckey with it sho is
: mmmymmmmmmmlmmmn

Shpcmdbackaoouphofdmlatetq:dddnhewm&m Thenlmeivedﬂwi:nawinsnilﬁumloﬁ:




-
LA

Sheila ' - '
1 would have grestly appreciated it if you hadukedmabeforeﬂlkingwlﬂ\mylrenekylnandmmldﬂmn
ltwasvuyoonﬂ:slnghavlng,lnasense,twodlrector:.Solfshe meetswlﬂtywonizlzBﬁ\enplemmemof er for the

entire process
{ had phmtoworkwlﬂ\ﬂnemlmrlnﬂ;epm

Josh

Iwm-hnmwaechooﬁngoﬂymyfudbwkifshemmﬁmdlymd:homm

Ispokewiﬂﬂ‘homDelvmﬁul,who seemedﬂddledwiﬁlwonyaboutbdngmyDBCmm. He said that Josh
hMbem“ﬂﬁmthyhsbthﬁnMImﬂdmberdﬁdIuhdhimwhyhacoﬂdn't .
jmﬂmmmamaﬁmedmmmmnadnhdmmdoﬂminwmmw
the sare thihg). He said he was planning to. Iagninvoicedmyﬁmthatﬂ:optooe-wmldbeabautdcfendmg
mymﬂﬁumlouh’pmchinsmdofudimdmaboutmyndﬁwm Thom said he would try to
memmwsmmnmmmmamwmmwmﬂm 1don't feel
confident about this Anne. kmmmﬂ:ﬁpmofeﬂeigﬂotﬁ‘sjobhbﬁsuanMhymmba’l
concemms about me during this discussion. Bntwhatifloahnevumplhlkinslongmglmmnwm
mmmmmmmmhmmrwmmmmmm%mﬂm
ialeastlikc]ytobeablohmdlehilbehniormdmdaitmdﬂmiﬁnﬂum

iconﬁnnebbeqnﬂbmomedmmeUﬁvmhyisMingIonhto git on xy re-hire committee, when he
mmwmmmmwmmmlmmm

This is what I have right now. Thanks again for plodding through.
T hope your break was edoynble'.ndmm:m'anmhm-kyémydaylm Yay spring!

Sheila .-




Alllm, Anne ‘cmef Human Resources Officer)

From: Shella Siragusa [smsiragusa@gmail.com]

Set . Friday, January 21, 2011 8:03 PM

'g:; clmho. Anne (Chief Human Rssources Officer)
Iraauuﬂno‘:llm

Subject: Missive from the Theatre Department .

Hi Atne,

Sorry I didn’t get this to you before the winter break. Asltoldyun,it’udequlmgglofdrmeb'nliwﬂ:sa
incidents, I:eallyﬂ:cnsedonreﬁngava‘ﬁn&uk.whichwuquitahnﬁnxﬁtmé. Now I want {c write this
beﬁremmtﬁgm.hﬁopuﬁlthn’shldﬁmebreﬂwtabmﬁlchdm g

- 8o heré goos:

Nov23:

Jouhwa&nbetﬁndmﬂinﬂmhnﬂwuywhﬂa?mcbaﬁnzwithastudﬁhwhbil.ittinginﬂwboxoﬁoe. Ho
mahspig-morﬁngminpsuhopaselbehindme. I turn and no one else is in the hallwwy. .o

Meeting fhat Josh hay callod to discuss corriouluzn issues further. Only Thom and Josh and T stind.
(Anne-This is a continnation of discussion of meeting that I sent you notes about in an email on 11/10)

Josh opens the meeting by talking abonthuwivcnoeqtodoamuehbmjob on publicity. He is non-specifio. _

Heemmmmeelnek(ﬂwpmﬁamlwumwmphm)wm’tmﬁingmya&vm_et!danes.tht
mmmmmkwmmmmmm,updmmmmmmmmd
documentation I sent you re this subject). Hesaystha:ifﬂmeiugoodtuchﬂr(inﬁumcmﬁhlmk)ﬁn
ﬂ:pnclmwmsiphmpeoplehhﬂ_mdepmﬂn. -




[

Thom Delventhal talks about education as a feeder, which was discussed in the last meeting, and Josh disminses
him and suddenly treaks off to tell tne ha's afraid that what he’s saying is being written down. 1 immediately
show hitn my notes and say that ] am writing meeting notes. After that I did, indeed, start taking notes of what
he was doing/saying for the remaitder of the meeting. - .

Josh provides kis notes and says he's created a new core cumrioulum for the BA. Ho tells us that Tam Callery s
reﬁsﬁngbmhadoem’tymtmletgoofﬁeBFA. :

Thom D says that thess changes tight increase everyons’s numbers.
Josh dgrets and says that Scott Bartley wamed him that Tom would resist.

Yosh éxplains that there will be a core fir the BA. and then they can present a prtolio to be acospted into the
BFA .

He mentions this makes some courses non-requirements for the BA students (Anno-again, this touches on my
11/10 notes) . \ ‘

‘We begin to talk aboutt program changes and that we will have broad base introductory coursés (theatre’
workshop 1) that will includs edncation, playwriting, design, directing, acting, tech. Josh calls this applied
-Memprsﬁdwamdwhmlukmmmmmmmhemmum
myadfabm&n(appﬁdﬁeatemdﬁemu&wﬁmmch)wlmmﬂ:mﬁnpbﬁqcmﬁmm
commiftee. ..but does not answer my questions, so I remain in the dark. .

Whax_xlaﬁanothcqnesﬁonholqui:ms‘mdliglnm&uyl, “we'll type it up”.
Joeh explaing that the word “applied” needs to go on students’ transcripts.

i‘olhaﬂnmab.bokupmnpmgtmfmappﬁedm U . 1

[ukhﬁnﬁrpﬁmbmhnismﬁoﬁnmmmndvmﬁﬂmhepupmm
.2 :
—#




Dmﬁoﬂamnﬁedepmmmtagndmmeedwiﬂﬂuh'lmJolhtolhmeﬁntlwm
have to work oh changing the curricutum daily. Iaﬁdloonldn’tspmdmnchmmﬁmebmnlwuworkim
hndalreudyasﬂ:omolHappmmhedmeqlqn Iashdhimagaintohvemmpsﬂmandhudd

mewmmﬁmmmmm-mm(mmmmmm
and 1 ai i chargs of tho fall 2010 secnestes).

mﬁdmwmmhmmw(nmmamdmnpﬁmm
andlﬂnoncallyhavo,whmappmpmta, pntuidoclmﬁmatoatmdtoﬁomﬁgmdbmml.m
of the organization azotind these focus youpshnlﬁmﬁanyhappmodouhideofﬁemoﬁmm)
'l‘hoh1Dmbﬁmmdmﬁﬁhdﬁn’tdoﬁomwﬂbmzdtmmmmﬂomm
himmdsdditwumlybmelhndmta]]oﬂndﬁm& : '

Fhen he seid that Atma Dolan, Tosh's wifs, was upeet becsnse I had yet fo oomtact her sbout what she has to do
pext in our collaboration (Anna dehadbe&wukhatogeﬂwronwxiﬁnslhottphylhﬂnpueﬁmdm).
Arma and I had prepared in an extiemely deteiled memmer about dates and what we would do together and
sepmlyonﬂ:oudates(Amo-lhavemnﬁpleumﬂltobmkﬂﬁlup). Tn addition, wo had becn talking as we
Mdongwiﬂxﬁnuﬁmlwemdohgbgaﬂm. :

' 1wmpﬁnmmxawtmmmmmnmmmpmmpm. He aaid
.itwaqmy.qhssandﬁnhhuuld‘.veuned. Iaﬂmdhimwhyﬁedidn’tmnmbnkmdheuiditwumy

Ho ficn skid that he had spoken to huian resources «bout fhe marathon 24-hr rehearsal 1 had with stadents for
omupomninsoompdﬁonatﬂ:nxmmdycmrmﬁval andﬂwyluduiditwm'tohyb do that. (Anne-we
spoks sbont that and 1 subsequentty held the rehoarsel at school).

Atmemwﬁng'smxm:«umm-oenﬁmbumxmdmmmmmmam
dooen’t have 2 cell phone”™. Iukediflshouldjustclllﬂ:ehmgnmbzandheuidyu.

mmlmﬁeﬁmmﬂamwmmd-ﬂwmmm@:
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: Human_resonrces

Josh Perlstein announced in the fall that he was doing a production of David .
Mamet's Oleanna, a two-person dratha about a female student that accuses an older
male professor of sexual harassment. ]oshhasbeenuyinswdomlsshowsfor
several years with different students, and all plans previously have fallen through
. for one reason or another. This year he solidified plans to dothe-showMth-
- S theatre major. When | found out about the show, I
_immediately felt concerned, as Professor Peristein has had two reports of
harassment filed against him and female students arequlhavocalabo\ngetﬂnshm
. _"tolookatandtalktoﬂ\emlnsbeadofﬂueirbreasts'. With all of the continuing
hostility [ have received formlosh.lwasunwmingtobeﬂle one to bring thisup to
the Chair, who knew of the show and of osh’s history with students. More alarms
went off for me when 1 heard fromihltloshwas show, which
would mean that he would be unsupervised and alone with rehearsals.
Noone onﬂ;efacultysmppedmlsoralledanyoﬁt fnto question.

yan7 Josh emailed me about the dates of his production of Oleanna (not agreed
upon or scheduled by the department) conflicting with my student show dates. He
was apologetic and telling me in the spiritof communication.

nefonowedmatemanwimohemwmmheqnesumdﬂmmydawsform
student shows were approved by the department. [lethim know they had and he
wrote back emails about looking for the minutes in which that was recorded.

Another profeséor concurred with me that the dates had been approved.
Jan 13 Josh apologized and blamed it on beginning of the semester confusion.

Weekof Jan 28-Feb3In preparation for the Kennedy Center American College
Theatre Festival (we goasa department every year) Josh made conference hotel
reservations (after volunteering to take care of themso I didn’t have to) I had for
four years shared a room with Josh and Thom Delventhal at ACTF, asthe -
department could not afford an additional room for faculty. Thiswasnota problem, .
but 1 was pleased when1was pffgredaroombyﬂxeSGA.whopaysfora'ﬁawmdm
roomsat the COnferenoe-SoSGA'waSpaylngforaslnglemomformeandloshand
Scott Bartiey (our Design Proféssor) were sharing a room paid for by the

department.
When [ arrived at the festival to checkm.]oshhadreservedaroomforScottBarﬂey :
andlsharlngandaroomforhlmself. Thanl:mllylwastheﬂrstpersonume.sol




mvestedmﬂﬁspmcssandwehadbeenMsmgﬁtepossibﬂityofdomgmephy
aﬂyearand.vashavinggreatsuccesswlﬂlﬂxe Othello (and Shakespeare is an
area of expertise and scholarship in my work). Josh was complimentary, whiich is
exceedingly rare, about the work. Other Professors from the conference were
presentwhen he lauded that praise.

First week of February few days before thefacultymeeﬁnslosh requested that
casting policy be puton the agenda. Thishas been the ongoing conversation he has
spearheaded to create confusion and discredit my student-directing program-

At the meeting on Feb 7t Josh brought up again that the casting would be
conflicting for student shows and his solution included me moving my student '
shows out of the slot he wanted for Oleanna. The Chair nipped the conversation in
the bud. '

]oshwrotemememaﬂﬂmtcontalnedanoumghtrequestformemchansethe
dates for his show, Oleanna, because the student in the show preferred the

that we were scheduled to go. lnﬂxesameemallheaskediflquldm!ndlfher
directed Othello in the fall. Hesaid uld be perfect for it. He also
mentioned that he had talked to students about it and they had informed him thatl
had been talking about doing it for a year. He simply said he didn't want me to think

he’d stolen the idea.

lnmeffonmbeeooperadve,!chmgedmesmdentshowdmwawukearuer
and told him to take Othello. He promptly told the students (and that I had okayed
it) and even told them whom he was considéring for casting. He talked to the -
student who'd been working on it and told him that ifhe got into the BFA this
spring, he would casthim. The student did getinto the BFA (admission to the BFAls
Josh's decision) and said the show was a go. Jtwas the talk of the department.

Another faculty meeting takes place in the beginning of March, at which discussions
take place about my directing classes, the student directing program and hiringa
new assistant for the professor who is doingdepar@entMamgement (this has
been me since my second year here and still is my responsibility at the time of this
meeting. )

No one looked at me or acknowledged my presence in any way during these
discussions, despite the fact that they are all my areas. .




On Mar 19 Josh came into my office and asked if we might get together and clear the
, airapdtan(thlngsmroushsqﬂnerewasnomldualhardfeelings (presumably after
" 1left). 1told him that 1 would do that, but not until the tenure argument was
decided. He said that he understood and didn’t know why I wasn't getting tenure
anyway. My materials reflected that I had MORE than meet expectations creatively.
He suggested that 1 had received bad advice about my preparation (Thom
Delventhal was my mentor).. He them apologized three or four times, teary eyed,
Ifhe had contributed in any way to any of what is happening.

On March 22, I recelved a text from Josh asking if 1 would consider castinghimin
one oftwofolesfqraprofesslonalshowﬂlatlhavebeenhiredtodirect He didn't
ask if he could audition. He asked if  would consider casting him. 1was quite-
surprised and didn’t respond for a couple of days. When we returned to school on
Monday, he approached me and apologized, saying it was justa whim and he didn’t
know what he'd been thinking. Itold him he was very welcome to cometothe -
auditions on the following weekend. This was a perfect solution, as those auditions
wemhr&ewholesuﬁ:herseasonandwqre;pre-saeenlnsunforme (sincel
was unable to attend the auditions), during which the artistic director of the show

* - was goingto tell me if he heard anyone 1 should see for the roles.

The artistic director did not give me his name to reréad.

That following week | was told by another faculty member that I should be
_prepared for the upcoming faculty meeting because Josh was planning to take the
student directed shows away from me because of suﬁ confusion around one of
. the students’ directing shows. That student, had gotten a primary
role in one of the main stage shows. We had that (in accordance
wlﬁndxeponcy)hewouldhavetoyveuphis directing show if he got a bigrole. He

. was taken ont of the evening of Student Shows.

He had approached me about wanting to do the show in ancther venue on campus. I
told him that we couldn’t stop him from doing that but that the policy was in place
to protect students from overextension. 1also told him that meant ] could not
mentor him in the directing process. He beard and agreed. Both Josh Peristein and
Tom Callery knew about this conversation and concurred. )

He later scheduled a rehearsal in the buflding for his show. The faculty has no
mvolvememmschedulmguhearsalsandlcemmlydldn'thavemlmowledgeof
hlsreheai'sals.havinssethhnfreebfﬁaﬂtyanddepamnentsupport.

Josh went to Tom Callery and protested that [ was mishandling my responsibilities
by allowing him to rehearse in the buflding and that we should do away with the
shows altogether. ' .

'l‘hesmdentreportedtomethathehadbeenmlledlnseveraltlmesbythechlh'and
Josh to discuss this. He told me that he thought he should giveme aheadsup that
they were continually leading him back to “trying to gethimtoﬁxmwmeunderdle




bus” about the whole thing. He would not and, ultimately, the Chair called me into
his office and apologized for accusing me of complaining about the policy and
creating confusion. He sald that I wasn't the one that was running into his office
every five minutes complaining...in fact, 1 was the only one who was not’

At the March faculty meeting, the directing program was discussed despite the
fact that 1 missed the meeting due to fllness. .
The following week Josh complained that I was not in my office during my posted
office hours (this after a day that [ had called in sick with the same bug). The Chair
sent out an emafl and thena subsequent email apologizing for having to say it
because he knew we spent our every waking moment there. . .

The April Faculty meéeting: After hearing that the main P & T Committee
recommended me for tenure, stating that [ had exceeded expectations, Josh came to

the meeting with the news that he did not wantto direct Othello anymore because

who would play Othello, wasn’t good enough to hold the show. He told
that as well and soon all the students in the department had the
on.

Ialsoleamedinﬁntmeeﬂngﬂmt]osh.whowduldbetaldngmrd\esmdmt
directing projects, wouldbeusingmymainstage_slotford:e second stage
productions, and that I would not be directing. Tom Callery, the chair told me that
he had told me this in a conversation in December. He had not. Thankfully,1

_ documented that conversation he referred to and sent it to HR at the time.

My mention of the shows lwa;proposlnglnthe March meeting and the lack of any
comment about me not directing next year reinforces evidence of this not being the.
truth. ' .

Thom Delventhal, a professor in my department who had spoken truthfully at the
HR investigation that Anne Alling conducted, said he was angry because he was
immediately approached by Josh the following week and confronted with
everything he said (the which Anne revealed had been said by Thom). Thom
expressed fear that the same thing would happen again ifhe spoke up and said, 1
have to work here, Shefla. ’'m not leaving this job". -

In the final weeks of the semester, students were gossiping about R
and Josh having én affair. Another faculty member confronted Josh and he denied
the involvement. : .

On Thursday May 23, a colleague and friend of mine, who is a Professor in
Massachusetts, ran into Josh’s wife, Anna Dolan, who {s'an adjunct in CCSU’s English
Department. WhenaskedhowshewasAnnarepliedmatshewas'berﬂble. My




husband’s having an affair with a student” There was another witness there for this
conversation. .
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Chief Diversity Officer, Central Connecticut State University :

Nicholas D’Agostino
Associate in Diversity and Equity

Nature of Investigation: Alleged violation of Nondiscrimination in Education and
Employment and Sexual Harassment policies.
Complainant: Sheila Siragusa, Former Assistant Professor of Theater
Subject (s) of Investigation: Mr. Josh Perlstein, Associate Professor of Theater
Introduction

Rosa Rodriguez, Chief Diversity Officer and Nicholas D’Agostino, Associate in Diversity and Equity
‘conducted an investigation to examine an allegation of a violation of the University’s
Nondiscrimination in Education and Employment and Sexual Harassment policies filed by Sheila
Siragusa, Assistant Professor in the Theater Department. Siragusa reported that she was subjected
to disparate treatment based on her gender by Josh Perlstein, Associate Professor. Siragusa reported
that she had filed a complaint in 2010 alleging that Perlstein had subjected her to unwelcome
comments of a sexual nature. She further alleged that she was retaliated against by Perlstein as a
result of the 2010 complaint. In August of 2013, Siragusa submitted a letter of resignation from her
CCSU faculty position stating that she was taking this action due to disparate treatment based on her

gender.

The investigators conducted seven (7) in-person interviews of current employees and one (1)
telephone interview of a former faculty member.

Summary of Complaint and Complainant Interviews
1. Ssheila Siragusa (Meeting on May 30, 2013 and complaint received on June 13, 2013}

Sheila Siragusa was an Assistant Professor in the Theater Department. She was hired in August 31,
2007 as an Assistant Professor. Siragusa made the following allegations in her June 2013 complaint:

1. She and other women in the department were subjected to inappropriate comments that were
of a sexual nature. Additional comments were made against Professor Lani Johnson'’s age.

2. Peristein made inappropriate comments about female acting students including but not limited
to: referring to a female student as a sloth, students are too fat, while referring to a student
Perlstein stated, “l don’t want to fuck that.”

3. Siragusa alleged continue harassment and retaliation as a result of her filing a complaint with
Human Resources in 2010. Specifically, Siragusa alleged:

¢ “} believe | have been harassed, retaliated against and treated unfairly based on my gender
by losh Perlstein.
e Having reported Prof. Perlstein to Human Resources in Oct. of 2010, | have been victim to his

consistent and daily efforts to discredit me, to hostile treatment, to his negative comments
about me to other faculty members and students. He has made comments about me both in




. and outside or the classroom and attempted to recruit stuaents in his quest to interfere with
my work here at CCSU.

e Professor Perlstein also deals with other faculty members and students in a way that | feel
" duty-bound to respond to in this document. T ' ' T

e Inaddition, my complaint of retaliation against those who adopted Professor Perlstein’s
position and retaliated against me by denying my reappointment (Dean Susan Pease) in
Spring of 2012 and by denying me a positive recommendation for tenure this year (Theater
Department Chair Professor Tom Callery, Professor Thom Delventhal, Professor Gil Gigliotti).
Dean Susan Pease in particular has been heard to describe me as a “troublemaker” since my
original complaint against Professor Perlstein. Despite the fact that | received a positive
recommendation from the University P&T Committee, | have been denied tenure by Provost
Carl Lovitt and President John Miller.

A. Professor Josh Perlstein making repeated comments about having to be careful about
what he says in our department so he is not misrepresented have continued since
October 2010.

B. Chair Professor Tom Callery making continued reference to events perpetrated by
- Professor Josh Perlstein as a personality conflict between Josh and me.

C. Professor Josh Perlstein actively pursuing other faculty members to “side with him”
about my action and creating endless conversations with individuals and in groups
about my work in the départment and my value as a faculty member.

D. Professor Josh Peristein suggesting more than once that my job could be terminated
due to the current fiscal crisis.

E. Professor Josh Perlstein discussing my teaching style and content negatively in his
classes {with our shared students).

F. Professor Josh Perlstein embroiling students in his conflict with me, through criticism
of my actions to my students and compelling them to apologize to me for what they
understand to be them causing conflict.

G. Professor Josh Perlstein twice commenting to other faculty members that he “will do
anything to see me terminated.”

H. Dean Susan Pease commenting that, “She should have known I'd be trouble” in
reference to my submitting my complaint to HR after having already approached her
about the problem with Professor Josh Perlstein.

I. Professor Josh Perlstein’s presence on my Promotion and Tenure committee after my
filing the complaint in fall 2010, despite my request for protection against that. He
subseguently recused himself from the committee with the insistence that he meet
with the committee to express his concerns before my meeting. My meeting was still
dominated by his continued discourse about my performance.

1. His return to my committee in the spring of 2012 with the report of Chair, Professor
Tom Callery dismissing discussion about the rightness of his presence on my
committee.

K. His presence in my classes to review my teaching performance and the allowance of
his documents about that review into my tenure materials after the committee
reviewed them (other members did not see his reviews) and before it went to Dean
Pease and Provost Lovitt.
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L. _ His unquestiviced opinion about my wark outside of the university in consideration of
my materials. These opinions were the basis of the bulk of the negative comments in
my committee’s letter to Dean Pease.

- M. Thelack of communication from anyone in my department; including Chair Tom Callery -

about Dean Pease’s recommendation that my tenure track position be terminated and
my ensuing rebuttal letters to both Dean Pease and Provost Lovitt.

N. Denial of tenure by the University, despite the University P&T Committee’s
recommendation granting such tenure.”

e Siragusa further alleged that there is a “clear pattern of significantly adjusted expectations
that began after my filing a formal complaint against expectation can be clearly observed
starting in April 2011.”

Letter of Resignation and Allegations of Gender Harassment—during 2013

According to Siragusa, Perlstein threatened her job, harassed her, created a hostile and intimidating
environment in the department and during department meetings, sat on her tenure review
committee in 2012, and influenced the tenure committee members to not renew her in 2013.

Siragusa further alleged in August 2013, due to the continued harassment and retaliation by Perlstein
and the University’s failure to address these issues, she resigned from her position at the university.
Siragusa Declined to Participate in Investigatory Process

Siragusa was asked to come for an interview and she declined. After she filed the complaint with the
University, she was contacted by the Office of Diversity and Equity and she had a third party contact
the office to inform us that Siragusa was working on a theater production and she would not be able
to attend an in-person interview meeting. Siragusa later requested to be interviewed by phone or
video.

Rodriguez informed her that interviews of this nature are conducted in-person and a meeting was
scheduled for August 2, 2013. She was informed that her unavailability would result in a delay for
the completion of the investigation within the ninety day (90) time frame. Siragusa did not show for
the August 2™ appointment and later that day she contacted Rodriguez via email that she would not
be coming to the University to meet with Rodriguez; however, she would respond to written
questions. Siragusa was asked questions via email and she provided brief responses.

Resolution

No resolution or remedy has been identified by Siragusa.

Withesses

Siragusa identified the following individuals as possible witnesses:

1. Thomas Delventhal, Professor in the CCSU Theater Department

2. Tom Callery, Associate Professor and Department Chair in the CCSU Theater Department

Witnesses

Investigators interviewed eight (8) witnesses. The investigator explained the provision of the policy
related to retaliation to all witnesses. All witnesses indicated that their statements were truthful,

complete and accurate.
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Summary of Witness Interviews
1. Gil Gigliotti (Interviewed on September 9 and 19, 2013)
Gigliotti is-a Professor of English at CCSU and has been with CCSU for over 20 years. For purposes of -

this matter, Gigliotti participated in the final three DEC reviews for Siragusa. Gigliotti reported the
following:

Relationship with Josh Perlstein ‘

e Gigliotti stated that he has known Perlstein the entire time he has been at the University.
Specifically he stated, “We have worked together on projects. | would consider myself a friend of
his.” He went on to share that he is only friends with Perlstein on a university or professional
level.

Relationship with Sheila Siragusa

e Gigliotti reported that he did not know her as well, but they got along very well. He got to know
Siragusa by working with the Theater Department. He added that when she was working on the
Kentucky Cycle, he would send Siragusa songs to use for her production.

DEC Recommendation for Siragusa

e Gigliotti stated that he was a member of the DEC for the Theater Department for three years.
The first year he served, he was contacted by the dean [Susan Pease, Dean for the School of Arts
and Sciences] asking him to serve on the DEC [for Siragusa] due to internal problems in the
department.

e When asked by the ODE investigators what his role was on this DEC, Gigliotti reported he was
there to be a third full professor on the DEC and to assist them to get their reports in line and
standardized.

e Gigliotti stated that in terms of the DEC, Perlstein was not involved in the 2011 evaluation;
however, in spring 2012, he was there. He said he didn’t question Perlstein’s presence as Thom
Delventhal and Tom Callery were there. He added that for Siragusa’s final evaluation Perlstein
was not present.

* Gigliotti reported that when Perlstein participated, he was more negative about Siragusa than
everybody else. He went on to state that the other members present did not contradict what
Perlstein was stating, and they all agreed on what was in the final report. Also, he did not recall
Siragusa expressing any concerns with Perlstein’s presence on the DEC.

e interms of her creative activity and the DEC's evaluation, Gigliotti stated that Siragusa never met
the expectations in creative activity. He stated, “In the beginning, | made it clear in these [DEC]
interviews what was lacking in her creative activity. She never addressed these in the
subsequent two years. You can see it in the narrative. We were looking for publications; sending
out what she was working on to publishers. The third year, she sent out a letteron a publication,
but it was two weeks before the review. This was the thing that has struck me year after year.
She is not doing what we specifically told her to do. | had limited knowledge on other things and
no ability to comment on those other things but the creative activity was clearly lacking every
year and she did not address it.”

o Gigliotti indicated that Perlstein did not influence the DEC process for Siragusa’s non-renewal,
and specifically stated that he did not have any contact with Peristein an the matter.

o Gigliotti reported that he has never heard Perlstein make disparaging remarks about female staff
or students.

o When asked if Siragusa was subjected to disparate treatment based cn her gender, Gigliotti
stated, “Absolutely incorrect.”
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_ Closing Comments O
Gigliotti identified any Theater Department faculty or staff who would have been around the. .
department during production meetings or areas where faculty interact.

2. Louise “Lani” lol‘insoﬁ.(lnt’érviéwed on Septéinbéi‘ li, 20i3) '

Johnson was a Professor in the Theater Department who retired in May 2011 and is currently
teaching as an Adjunct Professor. She was with the University for over 40 years in the Theater

Department. During this time, she served as the lead costumer for productions, served on the DEC
committees and was the department chair for 22 years. Johnson reported the following:

Theater Department Climate

e When asked to explain the climate in the Theater Department Johnson stated, “There was
concern about Ms. Siragusa, Sheila. Some of the things she was initially hired for were not being
accomplished. She had come to filt a vacancy with a focus of going from literature to art; she said
she was very interested in doing this.” Johnson went on to state, “Her area of expertise was [in]
Shakespeare. In spite of many DEC meetings, encouraging her to expand her professional work,
which was required for tenure, [she] did not. They [the DEC] wanted her to attend conventions,
present papers, and write papers. She was encouraged by all of us, including Gil [Gigliotti].

¢ Johnson stated, “In 2010, there was the sexual harassment case that went to human resources,
but it was not determined to be sexua! harassment. It went to human resources and we were all
interviewed there. | was almost retired. But this is hearsay. The tension in the department was
palpable after the complaint. |did not see it before. | was not aware that there were problems
between the faculty members.”

Relationship with Peristein

¢ Johnson stated that she got along with everybody in the department. She went on to explain
that “Sometimes Josh would say things, we all do this, not out of malice and not think about how
it may appear to someone else.” Johnson felt Siragusa was beyond being super sensitive.

Relationship with Siragusa

¢ Johnson indicated that she and Siragusa got along fine; Siragusa would hug her when they saw
each other. Johnson added that even after all this and her retirement, she thought Siragusa felt
they were friends—they lent each other books. Johnson described their relationships as a very
cordial relationship. .

e When asked about what she meant by sensitive, Johnson indicated that Siragusa would listen to
Peristein’s conversations with students and write them up and would say things in faculty
meetings. Johnson did not realize Siragusa felt she was being attacked. Johnson added that
Siragusa would document things in writing after every meeting trying to say that people were
attacking each other.

e Johnson went on to say, “Everything | saw happen was constructive criticism and how to improve
her [Siragusa’s] work at the Theater Department. | didn’t know she was keeping this file.”

Allegations of Retaliation, Sexual Harassment and inappropriate comments

e When asked how she got along with Perlistein, Johnson indicated that she never had a problem
with Perlstein. She never felt there were any issues with her being a female and never felt
Siragusa was treated differently for being a female.

¢ Johnson indicated that after Siragusa filed her complaint in 2010, Perlistein and Siragusa avoided
each other and they wouldn’t look at each other in the department.
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Johnson never heard Perlstein make.age or sexual jokes about nér.or negative/offensive
comments about students. L
Johnson stated that she does not believe gender or retaliation were factors of how Siragusa was

treated by members of the department. -. . . S e - -

DEC Recommendation for Siragusa

Johnson stated that the committee tried to have Siragusa improve so that she would be eligible
for tenure. Johnson indicated the committee wanted Siragusa to do professional theater and
Siragusa listed her work with a Massachusetts Theater, which was not a professional theater.
Johnson said that Siragusa directed the same play she had directed at CCSU.

Johnson stated that the DEC had encouraged Siragusa to attend conventions, write papers, and
get professional credits.

Johnson went on to share that her teaching reviews [student evaluations] were generally really
good.

Closing Comments

Johnson identified the following as witnesses: Tom Callery, Thom Delventhal, Gil Gigliotti and
Catherine Fellows.

3. Thomas Delventhal {Interviewed on September 9, 2013)

Delventhal is an Associate Professor and has been with the university for 16 years in the Theater
Department. During this time, he has participated on DEC committees for the department and was a
member of Siragusa’s DEC. Delventhal reported the following:

Theater Department Climate

Delventhal indicated the department has been struggling since Ken Mooney left, He indicated
that he felt when Mooney was at CCSU the atmosphere was more creative and productive. He
added that since Mooney left, there has been more tension.

Delventhal went on to share that “communication has always been a little bit difficult. Everyone
in the department is a creative artist. Everyone acts independently. Decisions are made without
everyone knowing {without consultation]. Most {faculty members] are okay with this, but
sometimes there is tension. When Ken was here he was a stronger personality in the
department. He was brilliantly creative. Most people agreed with what he said. When he left
everyone went on doing things on their own. The sense of focus when he was here hasn’t been
here since he left. There seems to be some level of mistrust. When Ken arrived, he gave us a
distraction from that mistrust as he gave us something bright and pretty to look at.”

Delventhal stated that “the last three years have been completely dominated by Josh’s and
Sheila’s differences and before Ken showed up, Josh drove a lot of people crazy because he’s not
good at meeting deadlines and following through.” He continued that when Mooney was there,
“gveryone was striving to reach his [Ken's] level. That didn’t bother Ken, because Ken was so
much bigger creatively than that. Josh’s not following through and meeting deadlines drives
people crazy. He [Peristein] has a lot of big ideas that two to three months down the road it’s
not there and would shrug his shoulders.”

Delventhal went on to describe Siragusa as a different type of person. He said, “She’s very
structured. They [Siragusa and Peristein] clashed.” Delventhal stated that he has always been a
person that’s able to work with everyone. He said he worked well with Perlstein and Siragusa.
He concluded that he tried to be a middle person where they could come together, which never
seemed to work. Delventhal stated, “It was exhausting with Ken leaving and trying to make
peace between them.”
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{
Relationship with Perlstein -

. w-. Delventhal indicated that Perlstein pushes himself into people’s personal-space and can be
disruptive in the department. He also stated that Perlstein is pushy, and pushes everyone
- around. He stated that Perlstein is pushy with him.

e Delventhal stated that he has heard Perlstein make age jokes about Lani Johnson. He also
reported that he had heard Perlstein make comments about female students (their looks, being
fat, and whether or not a student was sexually appealing). However, Delventhal indicated that
these comments were not made to students and were within the context of Theater, casting and
how students saw themselves.

e  When asked if Perlstein has made similar comments to male students, Delventhal said, “No.”

Relationship with Siragusa

¢ Delventhal described Siragusa as “open, warm and supportive.” He described their relationship
as “very close and intimate” meaning that they talked about things that went beyond the scope
of work.

e Delventhal indicated that people felt Siragusa could be intimidating and that he could see why
people would be put off by her.

DEC Recommendation for Siragusa

e In terms of his involvement with the DEC for Siragusa, Delventhal indicated that Perlstein did not
influence his decision on Siragusa’s tenure. In this process, Delventhal stated that he was under
the impression that the DEC committee had to use a consensus approach to the final decision.
He did not fully agree with the discussion about Siragusa’s creative activity. He felt she had done
a lot in this area, but the conversation focused on her publications and her writing a book with
little progress.

¢ Delventhal did not believe Siragusa was subjected to disparate treatment based on her gender or
retaliation for having filed her October 2010 complaint.

Allegations of Retaliation, Sexual Harassment and inappropriate comments

e When asked about Siragusa’s 2010 complaint being based on her gender, he stated, “From
where | was | never saw gender-based discrimination. But, | was more than willing to accept that
her perspective inside herself had greater authority than mine on that subject.”

e When asked about Perlstein making inappropriate jokes towards other faculty, Delventhal
indicated that he has heard these things and referenced that these are jokes theater people
would make to one another.

e When asked about sexual comments about female students, Delventhal indicated that he has
heard him make these types of comments, but never to a student’s face. These were in
reference to performances, class work or auditions. He went on to state that “acting is a “type”
driven industry and so sometimes the talk about a person can be you are not looking at the
person inside you are looking at the person outside, this is the kind of role you are going to play.

¢ Delventhal indicated that similar comments were not made towards male students, but again
referenced the Theater industry and how it has more flexibility with male actors. Specifically, he
stated male actors were critiqued by Perlstein for being “too scattered, your concentration is not
good, your energy is spastic, your stance — things about their person.” He continued by stating,
“It’s definitely an industry that is more demanding on a woman’s sexuality than a man’s.”

e When asked if Siragusa’s tenure process and treatment by Peristein were impacted by her
gender and/or her filing the grievance in 2010, Delventhal did not think this was true.

»
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Scheduling Meetings:'v'vith Perlstein.

e - Formal meeting did not occur outside of faculty meetings. Delventhal indicated that they would -
connect in passing or drop in to Peristein’s office to meet.
Closing Comments

e Delventhal identified the following persons as possible witnesses: Callery, Bartley, Johnson and
ireland-Beaver.

4. Tom Callery (Interviewed on September 9, 2013)

Tom Callery is an Associate Professor in the Theater Department and has been-employed as CCSU for
31years. Currently he is serving as the chair of the department. Callery has served as a member of
the DEC committees and participated in all of Siragusa’s evaluations. Callery reported the following:

Theater Department Climate

e When asked about the climate of the department, Callery indicated that how people treat each
ather differs from day to day and can be fluid. He stated, “Like any family. We spend a lot more
time together compared to other departments because of the nature of what we do. It's not like
a math department that teaches classes and then occasionally meets in a faculty meeting. We
work on different plays and some days we can spend 12 hours with each other.”

¢ When explaining issues in the department, Callery indicated that tensions remained in the
department after Siragusa filed her complaint against Peristein (2010). Callery said, “It was as
much her issue as his. You never knew which person you were going to get when she was in the
room. One day it would be someone very nice thenin other days it was like someone with
smoke coming out of her ears.”

Relationship with Peristein
e Callery indicated that he got along with Perlstein and that they were colleagues.
Relationship with Siragusa

e When asked about his relationship with Siragusa, he indicated that they got along fine. However,
he stated, “When becoming chair, she often didn’t do what was asked of her by the department.
She was often asked to follow department policies and often would not. She didn’t like to be
told she couldn’t do something. There were times | told her not to do things and she would.
There’s a policy for student produced shows and you have to fill out the paperwork for proposal
before anything is cast or advertised. She would have everything cast and announced to the
students that were selected for the play and there was no paperwork.” He continued, “She
would do this every time. It puts us in the position in having to decide, do we cancel the show
and make the students suffer or do we accept that the process was not followed. We were often
over a barrel.” :

DEC Recommendation for Siragusa

« While describing Siragusa’s DEC experiences, Callery stated that the first DEC, where he was
chair, “She had come up with a statement that she was not willing to teach Intro to Theater
[course] because that was not what she was hired for. We gave her a mild DEC, and gave her
some bullet points on the side to work on. We gave her a separate set of bullet points. The first
DEC we barely have gotten to know you. She wrote a rebuttal on the very first DEC to the Dean.”

e In terms of the DEC process for Siragusa, Callery indicated that Perlstein expressed his opinions
as a faculty member in the department when he was not on the DEC. However, Callery indicated
that he did not listen to Perlstein’s opinion and based his decisions on Siragusa’s work. Callery
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_went on to state that S('.n_agu_s_a “didn’t do as the DEC, provost and dean told her to dotoget
tenure. She did not meet the creative activity standards. In her creative endeavors, she did not

" meet an appropriate standard. Her work with the theaters she worked in was in the reaim of just °

_.above community theater. She didn’t publish anything, except one interview ~that wasnotata _.
professional level — it was at the level of a college sophomore. She was supposed to be a
Shakespearean expert. She was a director but didn’t bring her work to a significant professional
level. She directed a play in a small company.”

e Callery did not believe Siragusa was subjected to disparate treatment based on her gender. He
went on to explain that when Siragusa didn’t like his point of view she became “caustic” and
disrespectful. He described an instance where his daughter was present where he had a
disagreement with Siragusa and she responded, “I will fight you tooth and naill” He said that this
embarrassed him because it was done in front of his daughter—a student in the department.

Allegations of Retaliation, Sexual Harassment and Inappropriate Comments:

Callery did not recall Peristein making sexual or age jokes about Lani Johnson.
Callery said he did not witness Perlstein making derogatory or sexual comments towards female
students,

e When asked about witnessing retaliation by Perlstein towards Siragusa, Callery stated, “No, what
I think he was trying to do was distance himseif so this didn’t happen. Josh was trying to help her
in her first years by telling her what she needed to do to succeed and make it.”

Scheduling meetings with Peristein

e Callery stated, “Faculty meetings are scheduled by the Dept. Sec. [Department Secretary] usually
the first Fri. [Friday] of every month or as needed. Show Production meetings are scheduled by
the student Stage Managers as needed. As for the rest, I’m afraid we’re not very formal around
her [here] as we are in such close proximity to one anather; Josh is right across the hall from me
for example. Due to our hectic schedules most meetings, such as they are, with all faculty are
Hey, have you got a minute? Can you spare 10 mins. after class? How’s noon tomorrow for the

three of us?”
5. Scott Bartley (interviewed on September 20, 2013)

Scott Barley is an Assistant Professor in the Theater Department. He is a graduate of the CCSU
Theater Program and was hired as a faculty member in fall of 2012. He was interviewed by Rosa
Rodriguez, Chief Diversity Officer. Bartley reported the following:

Theater Department Climate

Bartley said there are days that the faculty members are cordial and friendly working together in a
‘production and there are days when the climate is tense and they can barely talk to each other. He
stated that faculty members intervene into other faculty member’s creative work and that the level
of professionalism is questionable because everyone is telling someone else how to do their job. He
provided some examples:

Rehearsal Observations

e The first incident between Bartley and Siragusa occurred when a student observer was assigned
to record his/her observations of rehearsals reported an issue involving Siragusa. Afteran
incident when Siragusa did not give students a break in a three-hour rehearsal, the student
observer recorded this situation in an email to the participants and the department, Siragusa told
Bartley that the student did not have the right to send out the email without clearing it with the
faculty involved in the production. Bartley stated that the student was only recording his/her
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observations. Bartley stated that he felt Siragusa was concerned because she had not allowed ..
studentstotakeabreak. .
Bartley stated that every time he was working with Siragusa on a production there would be an
argument.. When asked how issues were generally resolved between him and Siragusa, Bartley -
stated, “Conversation. Back and forth. She would tell me that this is how it's done by
professionals and | would tell her that how it's done ina professional theater is very different
than a community theater. I’'m a production manager ata professional regional theater—Bay
Street in Sag Harbor, New York.”

Twelve Angry Men Production

Bartley stated that the second incident between him and Siragusa occurred during the Twelve
Angry Men production. Bartley stated thatina professional theater, rehearsals are held ina
rehearsal hall because the theater will more than likely be hosting another production.
Additionally, he stated that in professional theater, only water is permitted on stage until the last
dress rehearsal or first performance to avoid damaging the floor and other props used in the
productions.

Bartley stated that he believes that most of Siragusa’s theater experience has been at the
community theater level. He said that working ata professional theater is different. Ina
professional theater, the actors and the crew are paid professionals and community theater is
generally comprised of volunteer performers and normally an unpaid crew.

Bartley stated that one day Siragusa became upset when she overheard a student stage manager
telling him that one of the actors had been drinking a brown-colored drink on stage. Siragusa
told Bartley that she did not appreciate that he and the student stage manager were accusing
her actor of drinking alcohol on stage. Bartley stated that at that time, the stage manager was
unaware of what was in the glass as the actor had finished the drink and hid the glass before the
stage manager got to the stage. He added that later another student found the cup and it did
smell like alcohol.

Bartley reported the incident to Tom Callery, department chair and Callery stated that the issue
would be handled at the next department meeting; however, the possible consumption of
alcohol was not discussed. The drinking on stage issue was resolved at the department meeting
when the chair told the faculty that only water was allowed on the stage. Bartley added that on
a prior occasion someone had spilled a cup of coffee on the stage floor requiring a six foot area
to be repainted. Bartley stated the issue was addressed without using any faculty members’
names.

The third incident between Bartley and Siragusa occurred during this same production. Bartley
reported that he was responsible to construct a 20 foot circle (turn table) that would rotate the
stage.

In a professional theater, Bartley reported he would have a three day period to install the table
without having to clean the theater daily to make it actor safe. He said “actor safe” means not
allowing actors on stage until the installation is completed.

Bartley was frustrated that he had limited time to work on and complete the turn table. When he
was asked by a student stage manager, he told the manager to write on the email that the table
would be “ready when it was ready.” Siragusa told him that she was offended with this response
because she felt that he knew that she was the one asking the question. Bartley stated that
Siragusa told him that she wanted him to publicly apologize to her. Bartley stated that the status
of the table was given at the production meeting and that Siragusa knew that he was still trying
to work out some of the bugs on the table.
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.Bartley said that he reported the incident to Callery and he was, told to provide progress reports
on the table to Callery. Bartley stated that for the rest of the productlon there was tension

" between him and Siragusa.
. When asked to describe his relationship with Siragusa, Bartley stated that the only time he and

Siragusa did not experience tension with each other was when they worked together on the -
curriculum committee. He said the department expressed excitement with their work and

direction on curricular issues.

Bartley’s and Others Relationship with Josh Peristein

Bartley stated that he and Perlstein are colleagues and when he was a student at CCSU he had
worked on several productions with Perlstein but reported that he had never taken a course with
Perlstein.

Bartley stated that from his observation, he thought everything was fine between Perlistein and
the other women {Johnson, Ireland-Beaver and Colon) in the department. He stated that Colon
had told Bartley that she felt uncomfortable with Perlstein due to issues related to his personal
hygiene.

Bartley stated that he had not heard Perlstein make offensive comments about women in the
Theater Department or jokes about Johnson’s age or appearance.

Bartley stated that he has not heard Perlstein make offensive comments about women and men
students. He added that he has heard him discuss with both male and female students their
character type and what type of auditions they should seek based on their character type.

DEC Recommendations for Bartley

Bartley reported that after his first year he was told that he needed to work on more hands-on
class materials and to try to engage his students. Bartley reported that he told them that he
would like to incorporate the use of a CNC machine to build scenery and that he has not done
this to date. He said that Provost Carl Lovitt also advised him to develop this area before his next
renewal. The DEC told him that it was important to move from a theorist to an actual
practitioner. Based on these recommendations, he stated that he plans on seeking employment

with a theater that has this type of technology.

DEC Recommendations for Siragusa

Bartley stated that he has not been told the reasons that Siragusa was not recommended for

tenure.

Bartley stated that he did not know if Perlstein had given Siragusa’s DEC feedback on her
application. Bartley added that they are all encouraged to go see each other’s professional work
and that Perlstein has gone to see his and Delventhal’ s work at the Hartford Stage Theater and

Siragusa’s work at the community theater,

Allegations of Retallation, Sexual Harassment and Inappropriate Comments

Siragusa Investigatory Report

Bartley stated he did not think Siragusa was subjected to disparate treatment based on her

~ gender.

Bartley reported that he had not observed Perlstein acting in a disrespectful manner towards

Ireland-Beaver or Johnson.
Bartley stated that Siragusa is the only faculty member who has treated him in disrespectful

manner. He alleged that students have told him that Siragusa has told students that he is

unprofessional in his knowledge of theater.
Bartley stated that he has not heard about or seen Perlstein treat students in an inappropriate

manner.
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. Scheduling meetings with Perlstein

Bartley stated, “For the most part, if we need to speak with someone we catch them in the
haliways. We have scheduled faculty meetings set by the Department chair, and production
imeefings are emailed ouf by the stage manager (student). I€'s usually never a problem to ask
someone if they have a few minutes to just talk, we didn’t have formal meetings outside of the
meetings | spoke of.”

Closing Comments

6.

Bartley identified the following persons as possible witnesses: Delventhal, ireland-Beaver,
Johnson and Callery.

Bartley stated that the above statements are truthful, complete and accurate and that his non-
tenured status did not affect how he answered the questions.

Cassandra Ireland-Beaver (Interviewed on September 23, 2013)

Theater Department Climate

ireland-Beaver indicated that the climate depended on each faculty member. She got along with
Thom Delventhal, Jacqueline Colon (administrative assistant) and the university assistants. She
also indicated that she got along with Siragusa for the most part. She indicated that her worst
relationship was with Peristein because he was pushy. Ireland-Beaver continued by stating,
“There was pushiness amongst male faculty except Thom Delventhal he was pleasant to work
with. There was an underlying feeling of an old boys club.”

Also, Ireland-Beaver stated that faculty meetings were tense and several times a year faculty
members would end up yelling at one another.

Relat_ionship with Perlstein

ireland-Beaver described the relationship as tense and non-collaborative. She shared a specific
instance where Perlstein did not want to work with the student designers she recommended for
a show. She indicated that she knew the students and worked the most with them and Perlstein
said something to the effect of, “You're not going to be here; it doesn’t matter what you think; or
your interactions with them.”

Relationship with Siragusa

When asked to describe her relationship with Siragusa, Ireland-Beaver stated, “I've been
fortunate. | have good relationships that | enjoy the person 'm warking with and | have some
creative dialogue to create and achieve a terrific product using the ideas of everyone involved. |
have had interactions with directors in particular where they will dictate exactly what they want
and not care what others bring to the table. | would say she [Siragusa} was somewhere in the
middle.”

ireland-Beaver went on to state, “There was one instance where she [Siragusa] called me on the
phone and she was yelling about something. I'm trying to remember. Something dealing with
the costumes for the show or maybe props for the show, but | can’t remember. She was yelling
at the beginning of it, and by the end we were able to talk out a solution. We came to a solution
that was reasonable for both of our parts. Overall we got along okay. Not the best professional
relationship, but not the worst.”

Allegations of Retaliation, Sexual Harassment and Inappropriate Comments

Ireland-Beaver did not recall hearing Perlstein make inappropriate and sexually based comments
about faculty members or students. When asked if she heard Peristein make comments that she
found offensive — she could not remember anything specific.
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_ o __When asked if Siragusé was subjected to disparate treatment based on gender, she stated,

_don’t know if | have any direct proof that that occurred. Given the overall atmosphere ofthe
department it wouldn’t surprise me.” Ireland-Beaver went on to state that she felt women were

. treated differently in the department. She explained that Callery would refer to herand the _.
other female university assistants as “kiddo,” but did not do the same to Scott Bartley who is
male and younger than she. She also expressed that it was hard for her to get her opinion heard
in the department. Ireland-Beaver wasn’t sure if this was due to her being female or because she
was in a non-tenure track position.

DEC Recommendation for Siragusa

e Ireland-Beaver was not a part of the DEC committee; however, she did recall a conversation with
Scott Bartley (also not a part of the DEC committee) where he stated, “It [Siragusa’s Tenure
request] would never go through and if it did go though he would leave.”

Scheduling Meetings with Perlistein

s Ireland-Beaver stated, “To get a meeting with him, rather than looking at everyone’s calendar, he
made us line up like we were his students. He didn’t make us line up, but he would make us sign
up for an appointment on his door, like he does with his students.”

e When asked if Callery or Delventhal had to sign up the same way she stated, “l don’t think they
ever did, but that is something you would have to ask them to be certain.”

Closing Comments

e Ireland-Beaver identified the following as possible witnesses: the Theater Faculty, Jackie Colon
and Vanessa Clark.

7. Jacqueline Colon (Interviewed on September 24, 2013).

Jacqueline Colon is a full-time Secretary 2 for the Theater Department and she has held this position
for two years. She has worked in a variety of offices including Admissions, Counseling and Wellness,
Student Affairs, Art and Theater. Prior to her full-time assignment in the Theater Department, she
was assigned to work for both Art and Theater Departments. Her primary work function is to provide
administrative support to the Tom Callery, Theater Department Chair.

Theater Department Climate

e When asked to describe the climate Colon stated, “There is a lot of bickering and the students
know what is going on...The relationships between them are not comfortable; it’s a stressful
environment.”

Relationship with Peristein

e Colon described Perlstein as arrogant and indicated that she tries to stay away from him. She
further indicated that he makes her uncomfortable. This was in part due to his personal hygiene.
o She stated that on one occasion Perlstein told her that she could not speak Spanish in the office.

Relationship with Siragusa

e When asked to describe her relationship with Siragusa, Colon indicated that she worked a lot
with and helped Siragusa’s university assistant and the assistant would help her when she
needed assistance. Siragusa treated Colon and the assistant out to secretary’s day for lunch.
Colon said, “She [Siragusa] was cool people. ”

e Colon described Siragusa, “She was very sweet. Always said good morning. 1love the way she
treated the kids. We had a few incidents where the kids might be in distress, and they would
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wind.up in her office. | came from counseling; | have that approach. If 1 saw.someone inthe
 bathroom crying, | would let her [Siragusa] know.

e Colon described some of the dynamic between Perlstein and Slragusa when she explamed it
almost seems like she has students that favor.her, and Josh has students who favor him. Then .
their students don't like each other. They would say they don’t like her or they don't like Josh. |
would ask them why, and they didn’t have an answer. *

Allegations of Retaliation, Sexual Harassment and Inappropriate Comments

e Colon did not recall hearing Perlstein making inappropriate and/or sexually based comments
towards faculty members or students (male or female).

¢ Colon indicated that Siragusa was treated differently, but she could not determine why she was
treated differently. She did not believe it was because of her gender. When asked specifically
how Siragusa was treated, she stated, “I saw a lot of her work being criticized for every show she
did. Either by Josh or Scott Bartley; maybe Tom Callery. We had the same issue with Cassandra
Ireland-Beaver, they didn’t like her work.”

DEC Recommendation for Siragusa

e Colon was not a part of the DEC or formal conversations on the subject, however indicated that
people were talking about and indicating that Siragusa may not get tenure. She also indicated
that the students were aware of this situation. She stated that the “students were doing a
petition because they wanted her to stay. They did a big Facebook, or written petition. They
wrote on their evaluations that they wanted her to get tenure.”

Closing Comments

e Colon identified Vanessa Clark Bligh {university assistant) as a possible witness.
e Colon stated that after this interview she felt that she would need to seek employment
elsewhere.

8. Susan Pease (Interviewed on September 30, 2013).

_ Susan Pease is the Dean of the School of Arts and Sciences. Pease has been at Central Connecticut
State University for 25 years; Dean since 2002. She has a PhD in Criminology.

Theater Department Climate

e She was not aware of any issues within the Theater Department. She indicated that Siragusa
never came to her directly about her concerns with Perlstein. Pease indicated that it was Anne
Alling (former Chief Human Resources Officer) who informed her about the issues Siragusa had
with Perlstein.

Relationship with Perlstein

e When asked to describe her relationship with Peristein, Pease indicated, “I had no relationship
with him before this. After this | had more of a relationship because of another issue that came

up‘ll
Relationship with Siragusa

e When asked to describe her relationship with Siragusa, Dean Pease indicated that she did not
have a relationship with Siragusa. They only emailed each other regarding tickets to theater
productions.
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Allegations of Retaliation, >cxual Harassment and Inappropriate Comments

e Pease stated that she had no knowledge of Peristein making inappropriate comments or
engaging in sexual harassment towards other staff or faculty.

» She explained that there was one isste with a female student; howeverthe student did not”
complain about the situation another CCSU staff person raised the concerns.

DEC Recommendation for Siragusa

e Pease indicated that Perlstein’s involvement was limited to when he was on the DEC. He was
then asked to step down, and he did so voluntarily.

e She also stated that the DEC believed that Siragusa did not meet the expectations for creative
activity. Pease further indicated that the standard is publications and academic journals. She
stated, “This is where the DEC needs to help me figure out what is considered peer reviewed for
their discipline. | rely on the DEC.”

Allegation that Dean Pease stated that she “should have known that Siragusa was going to be
trouble”

e Pease denied making this statement and further indicated that she didn’t know Siragusa.
Closing Comments

¢ Pease identified members of Theater Department and Dr. Gil Gigliotti as possible witnesses.

Summary of Respondent Interview
Joshua Perlstein {interviewed on August 15, 2013)

Joshua Perlstein is an Associate Professor in the Theater Department. Perlstein was accompanied by
Donna Sims, AAUP union representative. Peristein reported the following:

e Perlstein stated that he and Siragusa lived near each other and during her first year at CCSU, they
had commuted together, exchanged personal information about their lives and joked about
things.

e Peristein denied engaging in disparate treatment towards Siragusa based on her gender, making
inappropriate and sexually based comments towards Lani Johnson, and engagmg in retaliatory
practices towards Siragusa as a result of her 2010 complaint.

e Perlstein admitted to having discussions related to budget cuts and jobs cuts with Siragusa, but
this was more about the realities of departments being decreased across the country and how
they could protect her position,

e Perlstein denied talking to students in the program about Siragusa and her teaching. He also
denied stating to other faculty members that he would do anything to see Siragusa terminated.

e When asked about if he provided feedback on her performance he stated, “I didn’t have a lot of
criticism for her as she taught well, was well liked the in the classroom. It was never personal.
she would send her students to me. During a class on scenes, she would send students to me to
help her find more plays with scenes she could use. | suggested that she should read and
become familiar with plays.”

Closing Comments

e When asked about possible witnesses, Perlstein stated, “No, | don’t think anyone else should be
involved in this.”

» Peristein stated that his statements are truthful, complete and accurate.
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Peristein was advised .of the non-retaliation policy.. .

Evidence Discovered during Investigation -

In December 2010, Perlstein recelved written notification from Human Resources (HR) as a result
of the investigation launched due to Siragusa’s 2010 complaint. HR made the following
recommendations based on the complaint and investigation:

1. Be sensitive to others’ feelings and consider how they might react to something you say
before you say it.

2. Listen more than you talk.

3. Consider the fact that others may be offended by something that you may not consider

offensive,

Do not make off-color jokes.

5. Someone else in the department should be assigned as a mentor to Assistant Professor
Siragusa and you should step back from being her “self-appointed” mentor. | have discussed
this with Tom Callery and he plans to ask Thom Delventhal to serve as Sheila’s mentor, in
accordance with Faculty Senate Promotion and Tenure Policy and theatre Department
Guidelines.

6. Do not use e-mail to have a conversation with other faculty, including Sheila, about other
faculty, students, or personal issues. E-mail should be used for routine departmental
communications only.

7. Do notinvade others’ personal space.

tal

The letter further stated, “1 trust that you have and will continue to take seriously the concerns
raised by Professor Siragusa, some of which were corroborated by colleagues. It is incumbent
upon you to do everything you can to modify the behaviors that are making her uncomfortable
so that the department can move forward in a productive way.”

There was only one other person receiving DEC evaluations during the time Siragusa was at
CCSU. The other faculty member in the department was Scott Bartley (male). According to his
second DEC evaluation, he met or exceeded all categories noted on the evaluation report.
However, both the Dean and Provost encouraged him to expand his work in scholarly and
creative activity. The Dean, as written in her letter to the Provost, strongly encouraged
“Professor Bartley to continue his work on an article related to computer-aided cutting and
fabrication processes and on the text he hoped to complete with Tom Caliery.” Although Bartley
exceeded expectations in this category for the review, it was still identified that he needed to
expand his scholarly work.

In May 2010, Provost Lovitt in his letter ta Siragusa regarding her renewal stated, “As you plan
your creative activities in the coming years, | encourage you to seek opportunities to participate
in activities are that juried, adjudicated, or peer-reviewed.”
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. Findings

: Findinés ‘Regarding Issue 1: Allegation of Disparate Treatment Based on Gender and Tenure’
Declision ‘

While one witness (Ireland Beaver) suggests that gender may have been a factor, the preponderance
of the evidence suggests that gender was not a factor in the treatment of Siragusa.

A. Siragusa stated she was subjected to disparate treatment by Peristein because of her gender;
Perlstein denied it.

— Siragusa complaint and Perlstein interview

B. The evidence suggests that the University's decision not to grant Siragusa tenure was based on
not meeting creative activity expectations. Since May 2010, the DEC, Dean and Provost informed
Siragusa that she needed to take steps to increase the standard of quality in the area of creative
activity. There is no evidence that gender was a factor in this decision.

— DEC Evaluations, Callery, Delventhal, Gigliotti, and Pease Interviews

C. ltisimportant to note that most employees regardiess of gender described the climate of the
theater department as uncomfortable and often confrontational. Of the seven witnesses (four
males, three females), only one female faculty member (Ireland-Beaver) indicated that gender
may have been a factor in Siragusa’s treatment. Ireland-Beaver did not have any direct proof of
this, but indicated that she believed women were treated differently in the Theater Department
by male faculty members with the exception of Delventhal; however, she said she was uncertain
if this treatment was due to her non-tenure status or because she is a woman. Another female
faculty member (Johnson) stated that she did not observe women faculty members being
subjected to different treatment because of their gender. Additionally one male faculty member
expressed concerns about Peristein treatment towards him and described him as “pushy.”

— lreland-Beaver, Johnson, Callery, Bartley and Delventhal Interviews

D. A female faculty member indicated concerns with the manner she was required to schedule
meetings with Perlstein. She explained that she was required to schedule time using the
schedule posted on Peristein’s door; simifar to the way students would schedule time with him.
When asked how they schedule appointments with Perlistein, the three male staff indicated that
formal meetings are not common, and meeting would often occur in passing or on a drop-in
basis.

— Ireland-Beaver, Bartley, Callery, Delventhal Witness Statements

E. Another female witness indicated that the male staff (Peristein, Bartley and Callery) would
criticize Siragusa’s work as a group; however, she did not believe it was due to her gender. This
same witness indicated that the same three faculty members also did not like another female
faculty work but she did not identify gender as the basis for the critique. In addition, a female
faculty member indicated that she did not care for Siragusa’s choices of productions. Based on
these statements, it appears that the criticism was based on Siragusa’s productions and not
related to her gender.

— Colon and Johnson Interviews

F. Although a male witness corroborated the allegation that Perlstein made comments about
female students’ appearance and sexual appeal, this was always related to acting and casting.
No other witnesses reported hearing such comments. ‘

— Delventhal interview
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inappropriate behavior did not discover evidence that Siragusa’s concerns were based on her
gender; however, some of the allegations investigated were corroborated by others in the
department. At that time the university addressed these concerns with Perlstein.

Findings regarding Issue 2: Allegation of Retaliation for the 2010 Complaint

A. All witnesses did not believe retaliation was a factor in Siragusa’s experience; however, they
stated that this complaint had an impact on the department as the tension among all of them
increased.

— Witnesses Interviews

B. There is no direct evidence that the DEC’s decision was impacted by Siragusa’s 2010 complaint or
influenced by Perlstein. Siragusa was asked in the 2010, 2011 and 2012 evaluations by the
Provost that she “participate in activities that are juried, adjudicated, or peer-reviewed in order
to meet expectations in the area of creative activity [May 2010 and May 2011]; renewal of your
appointment in the future will depend on your developing and successfully implementing a plan
to increase your standard of quality in the area of creative activity. [May 2012]"

— Provost letters to Siragusa, and Callery, Gigliotti Delventhal interviews

C. There is no evidence to support the claim that the expectations of the DEC showed “a clear
pattern significantly adjusting expectations” as a result of her fall 2010 complaint. Complainant
was told of the expectation to expand creative activity in May 2010, prior to her complaint. This
remained a constant area needing improvement through the remainder of her employment at
CCSU. Additionally, another faculty (male) who exceeded expectations in the creative activity
category was also strongly encouraged to pursue scholarly creative activity. The expectation of
creative activity appears consistent for both Siragusa and a male colleague in the Theater
Department.

— Provost letters to Siragusa and Bartley (regarding DEC evaluations), Siragusa’s 2010 DEC
evaluation.

Other Issues

Siragusa’s concern regarding a possible violation of the Consensual Relationship Policy was referred
to the Office of Human Resources. The issue was investigated and administrative action was taken.
Conclusion

The investigation in this case is com pleted and is marked as closed.

This report will be provided to Lou Pisano, Chief Human Resources Officer to determine appropriate
administrative action in this case.

All original statements and other documentary evidence in this case will remain in the custody and
control of the Office of Diversity and Equity. Rodriguez can be reached at 860-832-0178.
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DIVERSITY & EQUITY

Central Connecticut State University

2013 "RECEIVED |

October 8, 2013

OCT 8313

Eumap Resources

Ms. Sheila Siragusa

Dear Ms. Siragusa:

This is to inform you that the investigation of your complaint alleging disparate treatment based on
gender and retaliation based on previous opposition has been completed. After careful review of the
information presented in your complaint, investigative interviews, documents gathered and CCSU’s
Non-discrimInation in Employment and Education and Sexual Harassment Policies, | concluded that the
information of record does not rise to the level of a policy violation. Specifically, the findings are as

follows:
Findings Regarding Issue 1: Allegation of Disparate Treatment Based on Gender and Tenure Decision

While one witness suggests that gender may have been a factor, the preponderance of the evidence
suggests that gender was not a factor in the treatment of Siragusa.

A. Siragusa stated she was subjected to disparate treatment by Perlstein because of her gender;
Perlstein denied it.

B. The evidence suggests that the University’s decision not to grant Siragusa tenure was based on not
meeting creative activity expectations. Since May 2010, the DEC, Dean and Provost informed
Siragusa that she needed to take steps to increase the standard of quality in the area of creative
activity. There is no evidence that gender was a factor in this decision. -

C. Itis important to note that most employees regardless of gender described the climate of the
theater department as uncomfortable and often confrontational. Of the seven witnesses (four
males, three females), only one female faculty member (Irefand-Beaver) indicated that gender may
have been a factor in Siragusa’s treatment. Ireland-Beaver did not have any direct proof of this, but
indicated that she believed women were treated differently in the Theater Department by male
faculty members with the exception of Delventhal; however, she said she was uncertain if this
treatment was due to-her non-tenure status or because she Is a woman. Another female faculty
member (Johnson) stated that she did not observe women faculty members being subjected to
different treatment because of their gender. Additionally one male faculty member expressed
concerns about Perlstein treatment towards him and described him as “pushy.”

1615 Stanley Street — P.O. Box 4010 — New Britain, Connecticut 06050-4010 — T: 860-832-1653 — F: 860-832-2146 — www.ccsn.edu
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A female faculty member indicated concerns with the manner she was required to schedule
meetings with Peristein. She explained that she was required to schedule time using the schedule
posted on Peristein’s door; similar to the way students would schedule time with him. When asked
how they schedule appointments with Perlstein, the three male staff indicated that formal meetings
are not common, and meeting would often occur in passing oron a drop-in basls.

Another female witness indicated that the male staff {Perlstein, Bartley and Callery) would criticize
Siragusa’s work as a group; however, she did not believe it was due to her gender. This same
witness indicated that the same three faculty members also did not like another female faculty work
but she did not identify gender as the basis for the critique. In addition, a female faculty member
indicated that she did not care for Siragusa’s choices of productions. Based on these statements, it
appears that the criticism was based on Siragusa’s productions and not related to her gender.

Although a male witness corroborated the allegation that Perlstein made comments about female
students’ appearance and sexual appeal, this was always related to acting and casting. No other
witnesses reported hearing such comments.

Lastly, the November 2010 investigation conducted by Anne Alling, former Chief Human Resources
Officer, to address Siragusa’s concerns regarding Perlstein’s alleged misconduct and inappropriate -

behavior did not discover evidence that Siragusa’s concerns were based on her gender; however,
some of the allegations investigated were corroborated by others in the department. At that time

the university addressed these concerns with Perlstein.

dings regarding Issue 2: Allegation of Retaliation for the 2010 complaint

All withesses did not believe retaliation was a factor in Siragusa’s experience; however, they stated
that this complaint had an impact on the department as the tension among all of them increased.

There is no direct evidence that the DEC's decision was impacted by Siragusa’s 2010 complaint or
influenced by Perlstein. Siragusa was asked in the 2010, 2011 and 2012 evaluations by the Provost
that she “participate in activities that are juried, adjudicated, or peer-reviewed in order to meet
expectations.in the area of creative activity [May 2010 and May 2011); renewal of your appointment
in the future will depend on your developing and successfully implementing a plan to increase your
standard of quality in the area of creative activity. [May 2012}

There is no evidence to support the claim that the expectations of the DEC showed “a clear pattern
significantly adjusting expectations” as a result of her fall 2010 complaint. Complainant was told of
the expectation to expand creative activity in May 2010, prior to her complaint. This remained a
constant area needing improvement through the remainder of her employment at CCsu.
Additionally, another faculty {(male) who exceeded expectations in the creative activity category was
also strongly entouraged to pursue scholarly creative activity.. The expectation of creative activity
appears consistent for both Siragusa and a male colleague in the Theater Department.

Other [ssues

Your concerns regarding a possible violation of the Consensual Relationship Policy were referred to the
Office of Human Resources. The Issue was investigated and administrative action was taken.

Conclusion

At this point, no further action will be taken by this office. This conclusion constitutes the formal
institutional process decision of-CCSU. Under the CCSU Procedures and Timetables for Processing
Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Complaints, the complainants and the respondents have the right
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to appeal this decision to the President within fifteen calendar days (by October 28, 2013) of the
issuance of this determination. For further Information, please see the attached procedure,

Please be advised of your legal options to file a discrimination complaint with the Connecticut
Commission on Human Rights and Opportunities, the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission and
any other agencies, state, federal or local, that enforce laws concerning discrimination.

Should you have any additional concerns, please feel free to contact me at 860-832-0178.

Sincerely,
Rosa Rodriguez
Chief Diversity Officer

Enclosures

C Lou Pisano, Chief Human Resources Officers
Dr. Jack Miller, President
File '
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ReCEIVED

Mr. Josh Peristein

oCT 29 W

Buirzn Rescurces

Dear Mr, Perlstein:

This letter is to notify you that | have completed the review of the complaint filed against you by Ms.
Sheila Siragusa alleging a possible violation of the Nondiscrimination In Education and Employment and
Sexual Harassment policies. After a thorough review of the allegations in the complaint and of the
above mentioned policy, | find that the information of record does not rise to a violation of this policy.

Specifically, the findings are as follows:
Findings Regarding Issue 1: Allegation of Disparate Treatment Based on Gender and Tenure Decision

While one witness suggests that gender may have been a factor, the preponderance of the evidence
suggests that gender was not a factor in the treatment of Siragusa.

A. Siragusa stated she was subjected to disparate treatment by Perlstein because of her gender;
Perlstein denied it. :

B. The evidence suggests that the University’s decision not to grant Siragusa tenure was based on not
meeting creative activity expectations. Since May 2010, the DEC, Dean and Provost informed
Siragusa that she needed to take steps to increase the standard of quality in the area of creative
activity. There is no evidence that gender was a factor in this decislon. .-

C. Itisimportant to note that most employees regardless of gender described the climate of the
theater department as uncomfortable and often confrontational. The Theater Department Of the
seven witnesses (four males, three females), only one female faculty member (Ireland-Beaver)
indicated that gender may have been a factor in Siragusa’s treatment. Ireland-Beaver did not have
any direct proof of this, but indicated that she believed women were treated differently in the
Theater Department by male faculty members with the exception of Delventhal; however, she said
she was uncertain if this treatment was due to her non-tenure status or because she is a woman.
Another female faculty member (Johnson) stated that she did not observe women facuity members
being subjected to different treatment because of their gender. Additionally one male faculty
member expressed concerns about Perlstein treatment towards him and described him as “pushy.”

D. A female faculty member indicated concerns with the manner she was required to schedule
meetings with Perlstein. She explained that she was required to schedule time using the schedule

1615 Stanley Street — PO, Box 4010 — New Britain, Connecticut 06050-4010 — T: 860-832-1653 - F: 860-832-2146 — www.ccsu.edu
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posted on Perlstein’s door; similar to the way students would schedule time with him. When asked
how they schedule appointments with Perlistein, the three male staff indicated that formal meetings
are not common, and meeting would often occur in passing or on a drop-in basis. -

E. Another female witness indicated that the male staff (Peristein, Bartley and Callery) would criticize
Siragusa’s work as a group; however, she did not believe it was due to her gender. This same
witness indicated that the same three faculty members also did not like another female faculty work
but she did not identify gender as the basis for the critique. In addition, a female faculty member
indicated that she did not care for Siragusa’s choices of productions. Based on these statements, it
appears that the criticism was based on Siragusa’s productions and not related to her gender.

F. Although a male witness corroborated the allegation that Perlstein made comments about female
students’ appearance and sexual appeal, this was always related to acting and casting. No other

witnesses reported hearing such comments.

G. Lastly, the November 2010 investigation conducted by Anne Alling, former Chief Human Resources
Officer, to address Siragusa’s concerns regarding Perlstein’s alleged misconduct and inappropriate
behavior did not discover evidence that Siragusa’s concerns were based on her gender; however,
some of the allegations investigated were corroborated by others in the department. At that time
the university addressed these concerns with Perlstein,

Findings regarding Issue 2: Allegation of Retaliation for the 2010 Complaint

A. All witnesses did not believe retaliation was a factor in Siragusa’s experience; however, they stated
that this complaint had an impact on the department as the tension among all of them increased.

B. There is no direct evidence that the DEC’s decision was impacted by Siragusa’s 2010 complaint or
influenced by Perlstein. Siragusa was asked in the 2010, 2011 and 2012 evaluations by the Provost
that she “participate in activities that are juried, adjudicated, or peer-reviewed in order to meet
expectations in the area of creative activity [May 2010 and May 2011]; renewal of your appointment
in the future will depend on your developing and successfully implementing a plan to increase your
standard of quality in the area of creative activity. [May 2012}"

C. There is no evidence to support the claim that the expectations of the DEC showed “a clear pattern
significantly adjusting expectations” as a result of her fall 2010 complaint. Complainant was told of
the expectation to expand creative activity in May 2010, prior to her complaint. This remained a
constant area needing improvement through the remainder of her employment at CCSU.
Additionally, another faculty (male) who exceeded expectations in the creative activity category was
also strongly encouraged to pursue scholarly creative activity. The expectation of creative activity
appears consistent for both Siragusa and a male colleague in the Theater Department.

As we discussed, Ms. Siragusa expressed concerns on your treatment towards her. Although, some
evidence was corroborated by witnesses’ accounts, the evidence as a whole does not rise to a level of a
policy violation, Please use this experience as a reminder to be cautious of what you say and how you
treat others in the workplace. Sometimes the most benign statement can significantly impact on

another person’s experience.
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At this point, based on the information gathered during the investigation, no further action will be taken
by.this office. Under the CCSU Procedures and Timetables for Processing Discrimination and Sexual
Harassment Complaints, the complainants and the respondents have the right to appeal this decision to
the President within fifteen calendar days (by October 28, 2013) of the issuance of this determination.

For further information, please see the attached procedure. Should you need additional information
please feel free to contact me at 860-832-1652.

Sincerely,

RSN

Rosa Rodriguez
Chief Diversity Officer

Enclosures

c: . Pisanox CHET 31T Resourcas Officer

S i

Dr. Jack Miller, President
File
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March 6, 2014

DelMara Cabrera

Dear DeMara:

When we met on February 10, 2014, you expressed concerns about the behavior of one of your
colleagues. You stated that It has been very difficult to establish a healthy working relationship because
of his aggressive behavior towards you, other colleagues and students In the theater department.

As | informed you, the Office of Diversity and Equity handles complaints that allege a violation of the
Non-discrimination In Education and Employment and Sexual Harassment policles, If you belleve that
you have been subjected to different treatment based on a protected class (e.g, race, national origin,
gender, etc.), you may file a complaint with my offlce, If you are uncertain if your complalnt Is based on
a protected class, | would aisk you to let us make that determination. Please take Into consideration that

you have only 90 days from the last Incldent of harassment or discrimination to file the complalnt.

Be assured that the unlversity takes your concerns very serlously. | have enclosed copies of the
Non-dfsctimination in Education and Employment Polcy and CCSU Procedures and Timetables for
Processing of Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Complalnts, and a complaint form.

e of these policies, you may contact the Offlce of Human Resources
Dean of Arts Sciences. You also expressed a concern that Josh
nship with one of the students in the department. |
fficer of this situation and he assured me that hels

if your concerns fall outside the scop
af860-832-1751 or Dr, Susan Peass,
perlsteln may have continued a romantic relatlo
have informed Lou Pisaho, Chief Human Resources O

addressing It.
Should you have any questions about my role or the policy,.plaése' contact me at 860-832-1652,

Sincerely,

Rosa Rodriguez
Chlef Diversity Officer
Enc.

Ce: File

1615 Stanley Street — PO, Box 4010 - New Britaln, Gonnectlout 06050-4010 —~ T 860-832-1653 - F: 860-832-2146 — wwwiccsu.edu
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‘ DAgostino, Nicholas (Diversitz and Equig)

From: DAgostino, Nicholas (Diversity and Equity)
Sent: Friday, May 23, 2014 8:52 AM

To: Cabrera, DeMara (Theatre)

Ce: Rodriguez, Rosa (Diversity and Equity)
Subject: Confidential

Dear. Ms. Cabrera,

This email is to follow up on a meeting you had with Ms. Rosa Rodriguez on February 10, 2014. During the meeting, you
expressed concerns regarding a colleague’s behaviors. After this meeting, Ms. Rodriguez sent you a letter regarding the
scope of our office and to submit a complaint with our office if you believed you were subjected to different treatment
based on a protected class (e.g. race, national origin, gender, etc.). To date, we have not recelved any response from
you regarding this matter. If you still wish to pursue your concerns through our office, please contact us at your
convenience. If we'do not hear from you by May 30, 2014, we will consider this matter closed.

Thank you,
Nick

Nicholas D’Agostino

Associate

Office of Diversity and Equity

Central Connecticut State University
Davidson Hall, Room 102

1615 Stanley Street, New Britain CT 06050
860-832-1653

Nicholas.Dagostino@ccsu.edu
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DAgostino, Nicholas (Diversity and Equi 7.

g ( ty quity) . e
From: Cabrera, DeMara (Theatre)

Sent: - Friday, May 23, 2014 10:01 AM

To: DAgostino, Nicholas (Diversity and Equity)

Cc: Rodriguez, Rosa (Diversity and Equity)

Subject: RE: Confidential

Hello,

After careful consideration | felt that | could not say that | was subjected to different treatment based on my gender. His
objectionable behavior has also been directed at my male colleagues. We are pursuing disciplinary action through HR. |

appreciate you following up with me.

Thanks,

DeMara Cabrera

Central Connecticut State University
Theatre Department

From: DAgostino, Nicholas (Diversity and Equity)

Sent: Friday, May 23, 2014 8:52 AM -

To; Cabrera, DeMara (Theatre)

Cc: Rodriguez, Rosa {Diversity and Equity)
Subject: Confidential

Dear. Ms. Cabrera,

This email is to follow up on a meeting you had with Ms. Rosa Rodriguez on February 10, 2014. During the meeting, you
expressed concerns regarding a colleague’s behaviors, After this meeting, Ms. Rodriguez sent you a letter regarding the
scope of our office and to submit a complaint with our office if you believed you were subjected to different treatment
based on a protected class (e.g. race, national origin, gender, etc.). To date, we have not received any response from
you regarding this matter. If you still wish to pursue your concerns through our office, please contact us at your
convenience. If we do not hear from you by May 30, 2014, we will consider this matter closed.

Thank you,
Nick

Nicholas D’Agostino

Associate

Office of Diversity and Equity

Central Connecticut State University
Davidson Hall, Room 102

1615 Stanley Street, New Britain CT 06050
860-832-1653

Nicholas.Dagostino @ccsu.edu<mailto:Nicholas.Dagostino@ccsu.edu>




HiR | was forwarded your e-mail by Tom
Callery and was wondering If you would have time to
speak with me. Are nearby CCSU? Would you be able to
come to my office in Davidson Hall (Room 101)? Thank
you.

Best regards,

Lou-

From: Callery, Jr., Thomas (Theatre)

Sent: Thursday, March 13, 2014 4:09 PM

To: Pease, Susan (Dean Arts and Sciences); Pisano, Lou
(Human Resources) !

Subject: FW: Letter regarding incident

FYl

Tom Callery

Chair, Theatre Department
Room 101 Maloney Hall
1615 Stanley St

New Britain CT 06050
860-832-3153 Office
860-888-9663 Cell
860-832-3150 Theatre office
callery@®ccsu.edu

—— Forwarded Message

From:

Date: Thu, 13 Mar 2014 15:57:20 -0400

To: Thomas Callery <Callery@mafl.ccsu.edu>
Subject: Letter regarding incident

Hi Tom,

Wishing you a much belated congratulations on
becoming Department Chairl | hope all is well with you
and your family.

1 am writing you today to relate an few incidents that
occurred while | was a student at CCSU. It invoives an
inappropriate sexual advance made towards me by
Professor Josh Peristein and inappropriate sexual
conduct that | witnessed between him and another
student.

I had been in the hallway, outside of the Theatre offices
and the Black Box theatre when | heard Josh and a
female student engaged in a brief struggle. To my
recollection, Josh had grabbed this student and kissed
her on the lips, which appeared to have been unwanted

3




by the female. | distinctly remember him stating that he
*could do this now that [she was] no longer [his]
student®, for she had just completed her final semester
and would be graduating. | do not recall exactly what
she said to him but | remember her screaming angrily at
him and slapping his face prior to storming out of the
doors leading to the buildings entrance.

The incident involving myself occurred at the beginning
of a semester, on the day of and time just prior to the
first theatre practicum of that semester. | was in the
same hallway with my back to the offices reading the
call board for any new info about upcoming shows for
the semester and was planning to go into the theatre as
soon as | was finished. The Black Box theatre was full of
students and other faculty and | was alone In the
hallway when he approached me from behind. He came
up close behind me and | turned my head towards my
right to see who it was and he attempted to kiss my lips.
1 pulled back suddenly and moved sfightly to the left but
he was extremely close and | was very close to the call
board in front of me. When | did this he quietly laughed
and leaned even further towards me and quietly said
into my ear "Don't pulf away from me when | try to kiss
you". | was totally shocked and did not know in that
moment how to respond and ended up doing exactly
what he commanded - for his tone, although softly
spoken, was nothing short of threatening In nature -
and he kissed me on the cheek. | was extremely upset
by the encounter and more so after i realized that | was
to be or the show that he was directing
that semester. That meant I would spend a great deal of
time with him, some of that time would be alone and at

night,

nd he would be supervising that task. | would
also have to leave the building with him and walk to my
car. Needless to say, | did not feel safe in his presence
under those circumstances so | declined the
opportunity and someone else took over.

| declined to lodge a formal complaint at the time,
despite being strongly urged to do so, because | felt that
it could be easily dismissed by the university. I still
needed to complete my degree and | am not sure that |
would have felt able to do so if | was made out to be
someone that was not being truthful. There were no
witnesses to what happened with me and he was a
tenured professor. | felt his word would have been
believed over mine if he denied or contradicted my
statement. | chose instead to confront him directly and
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he did try to deny that he did anything wrong. | refused
to accept anything less than an apology and insisted
that he never conduct himself with anything other than
professionalism with me.

| am not sure what good this information will do now
that so much time has passed. Possibly shed some light
on the fact that there is a repeated pattern to his
behavior, perhaps? Please contact me if you have any
questions.

| think of the Theatre Department at CCSU as part of my
family. Many of the students, faculty and staff
collaborate together on many different projects and
productions and that fosters a great deal of trust with
one another and a real sense of community. His actions
tainted that sense of community and trust, He violated
my trust and the trust of that other female student.
There is no denying that fact.

Again, please feel free to contact me with any questions
or if you would like further information.

Regards,

——- End of Forwarded Message




On Friday, November 11 Professor Thom Delventhal approached me and asked who Lvoted for. He
was clear that he would understand if | didn’t want to share this information. | told him | don’t share
this type of information especially in the workplace. 1 wished at the time that | had mentioned that this
is how | was raised and my parents were very private with this as well. We did have a conversation
where | told him that my daughter just turned 18 and called our home and spoke with my husband
because she was having difficulties on making a decision on how she should cast her vote. They had a
great supportive conversation where he explained what her options were including a write in vote. He
was extremely careful not to sway her vote in any way. |admire him for doing this because voting is one
of the greatest opportunities we are given as Americans. As| explained this to Thom, | told him that
both my husband and | do not like to force beliefs on anyone; rather we like to do our research and
make the best choices we can each and every election. | also explained to him that | have been
registered for all parties. | do what is necessary. | explained to Them that as a student at CCSU, | didn’t
care for how political views and beliefs were forced upon me not only at the undergraduate level many
years ago, but also more recently when | was a graduate student. 1 told him about a book called
"Women's Ways of Knowing.” It was a great book that describes the women’s development theory.
“Despite the progress of the women’s movement, many women stili feel silenced in their families and
schools. This moving and insightful bestseller, based on in-depth interviews of 135 women, explains
why they feel this way...”* This is also why | believe so strongly in not sharing my views in thework
place as | am around so many young minds and | do not want to force my befiefs on them. | only wish to
provide a safe environment for them to grow and learn. As a University responsible for educating many
young people, we should be teaching them to think, rather than telling them what to think. Developing
their own identities is important to their sense of self and independence. Molding them into some sort
of group think mentality is not in thelr best interests. As Thom and | continued to talk | also explained to
him about the town in which | live and how we have been trying to pass a new garage. Over the years
my husband | have attended many town meeting so we can be well informed. | mentioned how my
husband recently spoke at a meeting and was misquoted by the media. He ended up following up his
perspective with a letter to the Canton compass. In the letter he was informative stating many facts,
but didn’t dictate which side to vote for. It was basically a factual document to help the voters make
their own decision. Finally, | asked Thom why he would ask me who 1 voted for and he said he had
heard | voted for Trump. 1told him | was shocked since | know for certain 1 do not tell anyone who | vote
for, and the last time | checked, going into a voting booth was supposed to be secure and private. |also
told him | was mad, hurt and very angry hearing this. | asked him who told him I voted this way and he
said Josh. He then included that Josh said “I think she voted for Trump”. Josh doesn’t know whom |
voted for; he is making an assumption. 1 want it to be clear that | have not shared this with him or
anyone..| am beyond frustrated that he is spreading this to other employees. These actions that Josh
has engaged In, are an infringement of my civil rights and he needs to stop. This is not appropriate .
behavior especially for the work place and | will not stand for it. He is destroying my work environment
and | no longer feel safe. Thisis not acceptable when this man hardly even knows me. 1 will not put up
with this type of behavior. His behavior has caused me great anxiety. On Josh’s way out of the office on
November 11t" he said “Sarahi, have a great weekend.” 1 could tell by the tone of his voice he was not
happy with me and he actually didn’t mean it. | realized at that moment he knew | had reported his
behavior. This would have been the appropriate time to apologize rather than waiting until Monday,
November 14™. The apology | received on Monday, in my opinion, was forced. The more 1 think about
this situation it is affecting me far more than | ever expected. In some respects | feel | should have kept
this to myself. He makes my heart race when I see him and I'm extremely anxious. | don't like being
alone in the office when he is here. On November 17t | had a doctor’s appointment and they took my
blood pressure and it was very high. They recommended | see my general physician so he could monitor
it. | saw my general physician on the 18™ and while it was still high he understood I'm clearly under




tremendous stress. He asked how | was sleeping and 1 told him not well. I'm up several hours during
the night. 1 have a follow up appointment in a few weeks, but I'm angered that | even have to take time

off from work, drive to the appointment and pay the co-payment each time. Thisisnota situation that |
asked for.

11/21/16

Sarah Atkinson

1 https://www.amazon.com/dp/0465090990/?tag=mh0b-
20&hvadid=7010998822&thmt=e&hvbmt=be&hvdev=c&ref=pd_s|_89u29kr3e1_e




| am beyond disappointed that | have to document the incidents that have been
occurring over the last several months. | come to work daily trying to make this a
peaceful and safe environment for all, especially our students who are at the stage in
life where they are forming their own opinions. | myself try not to influence them. it'san
important time in their lives to discover who they are. 1 would also like to be clear that
by reporting this 1 do not wish for this incident to be used in a way that will make it
difficult for me to come to work. It took every ounce of effort for me to drive myself to
work this morning after being up all evening thinking about if | had done something
wrong. | know [ haven't, but this is causing extreme stress for me. | do not feel
comfortable working under these conditions.

Several months ago Josh Perlstein googled my home address and discovered that my
husband was registered as a Republican. I'm not sure why he felt it necessary to look
up where | five or how much my home cost and looked like. While | know this is public
information | found it disconcerting to have someone | work with look into my personal
life. 1do realize that he was trying to get a reaction out of me. At the time | just brushed
it off. Over time he has continued to invade my personal life and personal space. He
often touches me when he ls reaching over me to either borrow a writing fnstrument or
tape. All these items are provided to him in his office, but he finds it necessary to use
mine. This happens on a regular basis. | was willing to once again overlook this
behavior, but 'm getting to the point where | cannot do it anymore. Too many things
have occurred where | no longer feel safe. Just last week he made a comment that
went something like this "I hope your husband is not planning on voting for Trump.” |
have never once brought up politics with him and don't understand why he continues to
bring my husband and his political affifiation into the workplace. Yesterday was the last
straw when he abruptly came out of his office and rudely placed a plece of paper on my
desk and proceeded to raise his voice and say “read this, read this, read thisl" He
continued to raise his voice while doing this. | reacted by saying "okay | will*. He turned
the paper around and began to read “If | were to run, I'd run as a Republican. They're
the dumbest group of voters in the country. They believe anything on Fox News. |
could lie and they'd still eat it up. | bet my numbers would be terrific.” Then Josh
stormed out of the office swearing and pinned the paper with the picture of Trump and
this quote on our press bulletin board. As he entered the office he made another
comment toward me "f**** voters”. | am beyond angry and frustrated with the way |
have been treated. | have not disclosed how | voted nor how my husband has voted
during this election, and ironically my husband didn't support Trump during the primary
nor during the election. I'm not sure why he continues to bring my husband into the
workplace, but | do feel extremely uncomfortable with this situation.

Sarah Atkinson
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Memorandum

To: File

From: Nicholas D’ Agostino, Associate % o =ann
Date;  12/20/2016

Re: Atkinson v, Perlstein GC2017.13

This memorandum documents the outcomes of the ODE review into concerns brought.forward by Sarah
Atkinson, Secretary in the Theatre department, against Joshua Perlstein, Associate Professor of Theatre.

Complaint/Investigatory Status: ODE received a formal complaint from Atkinson on 11/18/2016. This letter
indicated several concerns regarding interactions with Perlstein. This matter was also presented to Human
Resources, While Atkinson indicated that Perlstein has touched her (non-sexually or inappropriately) while
reaching for a writing utensil, e.g., pen or pencil, the primary concern was based on Perlstein’s assumption that
Atkinson’s husband was republican. Since political affiliation in not a protected class, the matter will remain
with Human Resources for review.

Case Update: Atkinson was notified on 12/2/2016 that the matter would remain with Human Resources. She
was also informed that if she believed this was a matter of protected class should could file with our office or an
external agency, e.g., the CT Commission on Human Rights and Opportunities. This matter is considered
closed.
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